

GENESYS[®]

This PDF is generated from authoritative online content, and is provided for convenience only. This PDF cannot be used for legal purposes. For authoritative understanding of what is and is not supported, always use the online content. To copy code samples, always use the online content.

Genesys Engage cloud Supervisor's Guide

Genesys Engage cloud Public

12/29/2021

Table of Contents

Supervisor's Guide	4
Accessing your Genesys Engage cloud applications	6
Agent Desktop (v8)	10
Getting started (v8)	12
Navigating Agent Desktop (v8)	21
Channels (v8)	34
Calls (v8)	37
Email (v8)	44
Chat (v8)	51
Facebook (v8)	53
Twitter (v8)	62
Customer interactions (v8)	68
Contacts (v8)	73
Contact and interaction history (v8)	79
Workbins (v8)	86
Standard responses (v8)	87
Co-browse sessions (v8)	91
Internal interactions (v8)	102
Outbound campaigns (v8)	110
Supervising agents (v8)	116
Agent Desktop (v9)	147
Supervising agents	153
Voicemail for Supervisors	187
Genesys Softphone	190
Platform Administration	196
Accounts	198
Access Groups	199
Agent Groups	201
Agent Skills	203
Roles	205
Users (Persons)	206
Routing/eServices	211
Business Attributes	212
Environment	213
Scripts	214

Switching	215
Agent Logins	216
DNs	219
DN Groups	222
Agents	223
Gplus Adapter User Guide (v8)	227
Gplus Adapter for Salesforce (v8)	228
Getting started (v8)	229
Logging in (v8)	234
Changing Your Status (v8)	240
Navigating to a Channel (v8)	244
Handling calls (v8)	245
Answer incoming calls (v8)	254
Dial a call (v8)	257
Caller Identification for outbound calls (v8)	262
Transfer a call (v8)	263
Conference calls (v8)	265
Consultations (v8)	267
Call back a disconnected participant (v8)	271
Recording a Call (v8)	273
Working with the Chat channel (v8)	275
Chatting with a customer (v8)	282
Managing multiple chat interactions (v8)	286
Transferring a Chat (v8)	288
Chat consultations (v8)	290
Case Information management (v8)	293
Voicemail (v8)	296
Contact management (v8)	298
Viewing your reports (v8)	302
Submitting feedback (v8)	306
Gplus Adapter for Saleforce - Agent Desktop option (v8)	308
Lightning Experience (v8)	313
Reporting	315
Workforce Management	318

Supervisor's Guide

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

Basics	Historical and Real-time Reporting
Getting started	Reporting in the cloud
Managing agents and more	Historical Reporting with GII
Monitoring and coaching agents	Historical Reporting with CXI
Workforce Management	Genesys Pulse
Reporting	GVP Reporting
Using the Agent Desktop v9	Genesys Info Mart Historical Database
Platform Administration	A supervisor manages agents. For example, they can create agents, assign
Managing agent accounts Routing calls by business attributes Choosing scripts Creating DN and DN groups	them skills, and then monitor, coach, and, when necessary, barges in on conversations and interactions to provide further assistance or to evaluate an agent's performance. As a supervisor, you can also be tasked with other important aspects of contact
Managing agent logins	center operations, such as workforce management, monitoring real-time

reporting, and generating reports for managers.

About Genesys Engage cloud

Genesys Engage cloud architecture leverages the world-class SIP-based GVP/ Media Services products at the core of Genesys Engage while providing the full Genesys Engage suite of services in the cloud. This offer is customizable to meet the needs of enterprise customers, whether they need a large number of seats, heavy-duty premise system integration, or bespoke routing and reporting. Built on market-leading universal queuing and routing features, the full Genesys Engage suite will add the ability to support blended agents of any type, including blending inbound with outbound, voice with e-Services, or any other combination.

Accessing your Genesys Engage cloud applications

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

The Genesys Portal is your single point of access to applications within Genesys Engage cloud.

Get started with Genesys Portal

denesys				?
Welcome to your Genesy	vs Portal		All Apps U	ser Administration Support Custom
Agent Desktop	Platform Administration	Agent Setup	Designer	Real-Time Reporting
Historical Reporting	Interaction Recording	Workforce Management	Performance DNA	Workforce Administration
Reporting Administration	Genesys Care	Mobile Services Administration		

Use your browser to access the Genesys Portal landing page (your Administrator will provide the link).

All of your company's Genesys applications can be found on the **All Apps** screen. These applications are also divided into categories, which you can select by clicking the corresponding category links at the top right of the Portal.

The out-of-the-box categories are:

User – User applications can be used by contact-center agents and supervisors, such as Agent Desktop, Workforce Management, and Reporting.

Administration – Administration applications can be used by contact-center administrators and supervisors to configure users and applications based on their roles.

Support – Support applications are used by authorized contact-center administrators to submit requests with Genesys Customer Care, and to view the status and schedule of service for Genesys applications.

Documentation and **eLearning** are accessed via the Help (¹) menu, located in the top-right corner of Genesys Portal.

Using the Genesys Single Sign-On feature

	<mark>e</mark> gene	ESYS [®]				okta		
U	sername							
Т	enant (Optional)							
	Next					Sign In		
			_		1 Username		0	
				\rightarrow	Password		0	
					Remember m	e		
						Sign In		
					Need help signing	g in?		
						/		
					\checkmark			
Genesys	Workspace	-				📀 Ca	arole Spencer 👻 💇	• 0 •
Type name or num	ber Q							=
Ay Workspa	ce							
My Channels	My Campaigns	Dashboard	My Statistics	Information				
Media		Status				Forward		
C voice		0	Ready		(00:26)	No Active Forward		
O chat		0	Ready		(00:26)			
\varTheta email		Ø	Ready	_	(00:26)			

Genesys Single Sign-On (SSO) is an optional feature that allows you to access multiple applications with a single username and password. Once you are signed in to one SSO-supported application, you can open all other SSO-supported applications without having to re-enter your login information.

Let's look at the login process for Agent Desktop with SSO enabled.

First, click the Agent Desktop icon in Genesys Portal and enter your username. You must log in to the application even though you're already logged in to your workstation.

Click Next and you will be prompted to enter your username and password. Once you are

authenticated, you're redirected back to Agent Desktop and automatically logged in.

Now that you're authenticated, you can choose any SSO-enabled application from Genesys Portal and you'll be automatically logged in without entering your credentials.

If you happen to close all browser tabs without logging out of the applications, you will remain logged in for five minutes. If a second window or browser is opened after five minutes, to either the same application or any other SSO-enabled application, you will once again be prompted for your credentials.

Agent Desktop (v8)

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

Agent Desktop lets contact center agents communicate with customers and team members through channels such as calls, chats, and email.

If you are looking for the Agent Desktop v9 help, it is here.

Link to video

You can

- respond to or contact customers through the channels assigned to you
- get help from team members
- find standard responses to customer questions
- make sure that you are meeting your center's expectations

Ready? Watch the video for a quick tour of Agent Desktop, and then get started.

Looking for answers to specific questions? Try these topics:

- Customer interactions
- Internal interactions
- Channels
- Contact Directory

Lost? See Navigating Agent Desktop.

Are you a supervisor? You can also monitor agents and calls and provide email quality assurance.

Tip

The pictures and videos in this Help document show native Genesys Agent Desktop. Your company might have customized many features including corporate logos and the name of the product. This document

uses the name Agent Desktop to mean the application that you use to handle calls and other interactions, and to manage your work and your contacts.

Getting started (v8)

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

Agent Desktop is your gateway for handling calls (both inbound and outbound) and other interactions, such as chat or emails.

Important

What you see in Agent Desktop depends on your contact center and your role within it, so you might not be able to do or see all the things covered in this help. If you think you should be able to do or see something you can't, check with your supervisor or system administrator.

Now that you know what Agent Desktop is, you're probably wondering how to use it. This Getting Started page will get you logged on and ready to take a call. Let's get started.

Tip

• The pictures and videos in this Help document show native Genesys Agent Desktop. Your company might have customized many features including corporate logos and the name of the product.

Agent Desktop video tutorials

Check out this video about how to handle a phone call! Link to video

Log in to Agent Desktop



Open a supported browser (if you are using browser communication, use Chrome) and go to the link for Agent Desktop that your supervisor gave you.

Log in with your username and password. You might also have to enter some additional information:

- If prompted, enter your phone number, place, or preferred language.
- If your system uses browser communication, select **Use browser communication**.
- If this is your first time logging on, you might have to change your password.

If you are not sure about any of the prompts, ask your supervisor for help.

Tip: Clicking Change login account takes you back to the main log in screen.

Tip: Agent Desktop has a security feature that might be set up for your account that logs you out if you stop using Agent Desktop or your computer for a while. Agent Desktop first displays a message to warn you that you are going to be logged out. If Agent Desktop logs you out, just log back in again when you are ready to start using Agent Desktop.

Important

Hot Seating — In your environment, you might either have a single phone number assigned to you at all times, or you might have a different phone number assigned to you each time that you log in (called Hot Seating). If Hot Seating is available in your environment, you must enter the phone number that you are

using when you log in.

Important: You may log in only to a single Agent Desktop session at a time. You must log out of one session before logging into a new session.

Important: To log out of Agent Desktop, you must use the **Exit** option from the menu in the upper right-hand corner. You won't be able to log out if you have any active calls or interactions.

Remote and virtual desktop environments

You might work in an environment that uses Virtual Desktop Infrastructure (VDI, sometimes called VMware) to run Agent Desktop. This means that when you start Agent Desktop, it is displayed on your screen, but it is not actually running on your workstation, it is running on a remote machine.

In VDI environments, your administrator installed the Genesys Softphone on your workstation before you logged in, or, you were instructed to install it by clicking on an installation hyperlink in an email or other document.

When you start your workstation, the Genesys Softphone automatically launches and the Genesys Softphone icon is displayed in your system tray. Until you log in to Agent Desktop, this icon looks like this: S. After you launch Agent Desktop and the Genesys Softphone is connected, the Genesys Softphone icon looks like this: S.

Log in to Agent Desktop if your company uses OAuth



To start Agent Desktop click its icon in **Genesys Portal**, or open a browser and go to the link for Agent Desktop that your supervisor gave you.

Log in with your username and password.

Tip

- You enter your password on a different login screen.
- Clicking **Change login account** takes you back to the main log in screen.
- Agent Desktop has a security feature that might be set up for your account that logs you out if you stop using Agent Desktop or your computer for a while. Agent Desktop first displays a message to warn you that you are going to be logged out. If Agent Desktop logs you out, just log back in again when you are ready to start using Agent Desktop.

Important

- You may log in only to a single Agent Desktop session at a time. You must log out of one session before logging into a new session.
- To log out of Agent Desktop, you must use the **Exit** option from the menu in the upper right-hand corner. You won't be able to log out if you have any active calls or interactions.

Remote and virtual desktop environments

You might work in an environment that uses Virtual Desktop Infrastructure (VDI, sometimes called VMware) to run Agent Desktop. This means that when you start Agent Desktop, it is displayed on your screen, but it is not actually running on your workstation, it is running on a remote machine.

In VDI environments, your administrator installed the Genesys Softphone on your workstation before you logged in, or, you were instructed to install it by clicking on an installation hyperlink in an email or other document.

When you start your workstation, the Genesys Softphone automatically launches and the Genesys Softphone icon is displayed in your system tray. Until you log in to Agent Desktop, this icon looks like this: s. After you launch Agent Desktop and the Genesys Softphone is connected, the Genesys Softphone icon looks like this: s.

Place



During login, you might see a window that asks you to input your Place.

Your Place is the name or number of the workstation or phone you are using. If you do not know what to enter, ask your supervisor.

If you do not see this window, your account is set up to always log you in on the same Place.

If you move around from Place to Place, you might have to enter a different Place each time that you log in.

Change your status to Ready

Link to video

To receive calls, you must be in a **Ready** status (indicated by a green checkmark beside your name).

If you need to change your status, go to My Channels and toggle the voice channel to Ready.

Tip: You can also change your status for all channels in one easy step. Click your name at the top right-hand corner of the screen and select **Ready**.

Watch the video for a short demonstration of changing your status.

What happens if not all channels are available when I log in?

Ś	enesys [.]	• Workspace			🕒 Carole Spend	cer 🕶 💇 👻 🔹 😯 🕶
Т	ype name or numb	ber Q				≡
Μ	y Workspa	се				/
	My Channels	My Campaigns	My History			/
	Media		Statu	S		Forward
	🕲 voice, instar	nt messaging	6	Not Ready	(00:01)	No Active Forward
	O chat		0	Out Of Service	(00:02)	
	😂 email		0	Out Of Service	(00:02)	\backslash
	() workitem		0	Out Of Service	(00:02)	
						/
						/
						/
e	Channel(s) 'chat	ť, 'email', 'workitem' are	not available. Yo	u will not be able to send o	receive any interactions.	

Sometimes when you log in, one or more of the channels that you are assigned might not be available.

You will know that one or more channels are not available because you will see a warning message at the bottom of the Agent Desktop window.

When this happens, you can still log in, but when you look at your My Channels tab, you'll see that one or more channels have the **Out Of Service** status. When a channel is out of service, you cannot log on or off on that channel and you cannot set your status.

When the channel becomes available again, a message will be displayed at the bottom of the Agent Desktop window. You can use the **My Channels** tab to change your status on that channel.

Setting your status to Not Ready with a reason



Sometimes you need to set your status on one or more channels to Not Ready so that you do not receive new interaction on that channel. You can choose to set the status to Not Ready or Not Ready with a reason. Your administrator sets up the Not Ready Reasons that are available to you from the Status drop-down menus.

Тір

If you manually set your status to Not Ready while you are handling a phone call, chat, or email, the system starts recording your time in that state rather than the time spent handling the call. Some contact centers have the Pending state enabled so that the Not Ready state does not take effect until after you end your phone call or chat interaction, or after you send your email or place it in a workbin.

Handle an inbound call

Link to video

Make sure your softphone or phone device is connected and ready.

Need help with your softphone? See How do I use my web phone with Agent Desktop?

When a call arrives, you'll get a pop-up in the bottom right-hand corner of your screen. You might also

hear a sound to alert you that a call has arrived.

Click **Accept** to connect the call. If you **Reject** the call, or ignore the pop-up, it goes to the next available agent.

To get you started, here are some common call handling features:



After the call is complete, you might enter an **After Call Work** state, during which you can complete any tasks related to the call. For example, you could add a Note or select a Disposition code.

Watch the video for a short demonstration of how to handle a voice call.

Log in, log out, log on, log off, and exit, what's the difference?

You log in and log out of the Workspace Agent Desktop application. Logging in means launching the application in your browser and identifying yourself to the system so that you become authorized to receive interactions and use the various features that are enabled for you.



Typically, you log in to Workspace Agent Desktop at the beginning of your shift and log out (Exit) at the end of your shift. To log out of Workspace, you must use the **Exit** option from the menu in the upper right-hand corner. You won't be able to log out if you have any active calls or interactions.

You log on to and log off of channels in Workspace Agent Desktop. Channels include voice, email, chat, and so on. Channels are the media that you use to interact with contacts. When you log in to Workspace Agent Desktop, you are usually logged on to all the channels assigned to you, and when you log out (exit) of Workspace Agent Desktop, you are logged off from all the assigned channels. In some environments, you might be logged off from one or more channels when you log in because the

channel is out of service or your administrator has set up your account to be logged on to specific channels only.

Use the **My Channels** tab to log on or log off one or more channels. Logging off of all your channels does not log you out of Workspace Agent Desktop. You must still exit the application to log out.

You can log on or log off all your assigned channels by using the Global Status menu.

What do I do next?

You might want to learn more about:

- Media channels
- Handling calls
- Working with contacts
- Using standard responses
- Managing your workbins (which store your work in progress)

Navigating Agent Desktop (v8)

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

Having trouble finding your way around Agent Desktop? If you need help identifying a button or field, hold your mouse pointer over it to reveal a tooltip.

Do you use a screen reader? Do you navigate Agent Desktop using a keyboard? You can find out all about it here!

Main view

Link to video

The main view lets you access the most common features that you use every day, such as managing your channels, campaigns, KPIs, workbins contacts/customers, and messages.

Some of the tabs include:

- My Channels Set your status on individual channels, such as voice, chat, and email.
- My Campaigns View and manage your Outbound campaigns.
- **My Statistics** View your statistics (KPIs) and alerts.
- Contact Center Statistics View the latest statistics and alerts for your contact center.

Watch the video for a quick tour of the Agent Desktop main view.

Supporting views

My Channels	
My Campaigns	
My History	
Total Abandoned Total Answ Dashboard	
0 My Statistics	
Contact Center Statistics	
0 0 My Workbins	
0 0 My ream workbins	
0 0 My Interaction Queues	
0 0 Contact Directory	
0 0 My Messages	
- 0	

Use = to access all of the views available to you, including returning you to the tab views.

Contact Center Statistics and KPIs



There are three places where you can view and track your performance and the performance of your contact center:

- The Statistics Gadget in the main menu bar
- The Contact Center Statistics tab in My Workspace
- The My Statistics tab in My Workspace

Note: Some or all of these features might not be available in your environment.

Statistics Gadget

The Statistics Gadget helps you to stay up to date on certain key statistics. Your administrator decides which statistics are available for you to view.

The Statistics Gadget displays one statistic at a time, giving you the current status of service level, number of calls waiting, number of calls you have handled, and so on.

Hover your mouse pointer over the Statistics Gadget to see the current values for all of the statistics that have been assigned to the gadget by your administrator.

The red circle with the number tells you how many alarms currently apply to the statistics being evaluated by the gadget.

If more than one statistic has been assigned to the gadget, click it to open a list of currently available statistics and select a different one to display. A check mark is displayed next to the current statistic.

Here are the icons that you might see in the Statistics Gadget, the Contact Center Statistics tab, and the My Statistics tab:

- A worst icon is displayed if the evaluation of the performance is the worst of your group (\mathbf{P}) .
- An error icon is displayed if the evaluation of the performance is below the expected error level for the KPI (\bigotimes) .
- A warning icon is displayed if the evaluation of your performance for the KPI goes beyond the expected warning level for the KPI (A).

To see all of the statistics available for your contact center or for yourself (all your KPIs), click the appropriate tab in My Workspace. You can also choose these tabs from the Available Views (=) menu.

Contact Center Statistics tab

The items displayed on this tab are statistics for Routing Points, Queues, and other contact center fascilities.

The Contact Center Statistics tab displays statistics that summarize the state of various conditions, such as waiting time, calls in queue, average maximum waiting time, service level, and answered and abandoned calls, that are monitored by your contact center.

Click the **Contact Center Resource** column head to change the sort order of the resources.

🖁 Workspa	ce			Test.	Gundared (Agent Group 10P One)	1 - 0	Candia Spencer +	٤.	•
ge name or numb	P 9								=
ly Workspac	æ								
My Channels	MyCan	pages	Wy History	My Statistics	Contact Contact Statistics				
Contact Center In	- source	Average1	Nating Time	Garrent in Garandhop)	Current Max Call Waiting Tanas	Service Level	Total Abundoned	Total Are	word
9001_5w8ch5P			6.34		0	88.85	1		
Game Group Exc	ing in				0			•	
Writed General Ex-	angle		6.12			00.00			

My Statistics tab

This tab displays the list of your Key Performance Indicators (KPIs).

The KPIs that are displayed are set up by your system administrator. The statistics might be for your agent group rather than for you personally.

Click the **Objects** column heads to change the sort order of the KPIs.

g Worksp	ace		Tend Abandored (Agent C	nag 50° 0m) 1 - 🕕 Carl	interner - 🚊 - 😖 ·
ype name or mani	e 9				=
ly Workspa	ce .				
My Channels	MyCampaigns	Ny York Ny States	an Deat Casta	Statistics	
Objects -	Internal Calls	Outbound Calls	Index and Calls	Current Target State	Current Number in Call
Account Ser	1		10		0

Quick Search

0	Wang	×O
8	2+	
NTAC	Wen Wang	_
H	Xin Wang	
	Vanessa Wang	=
	I≪ ≪ Page 1 of 1 ►	1 - 4 of 4 10 💌 per page

In the Quick Search field, you can enter the name or other information, such as a phone number or email address, of a contact, then click the magnifying-glass icon to begin the search of the contact

database.

Chronology slider

Informatio	on History		
All	Last Month	Lest Week	Last Day

The chronology slider lets you search the contact history for interactions that took place within a certain time period. The slider has four positions:

- All—Search the entire database from the most recent interaction back to the earliest interaction
- Last Month—Search the database from the most recent interaction back to one month ago
- Last Week—Search the database from the most recent interaction back to one week ago
- Last Day—Search the database from the most recent interaction back to one day ago

Page controls



Page through the list of search results by doing any of the following:

- Go to the Next Page (>)
- Go to the Previous Page (
- Go to First Page (
- Specify the number of items that are displayed on each page by using the **per page** drop-down list.

List and Grid views



The List view displays an unsorted list of all of the contacts in the contact database that match the search criteria.

Grid mode results are returned in tabular form and sorted according to the default search field, such as Last Name. The Grid view can be used to help to refine your search by sorting the results.

Click a column head in the Grid view to sort the list based on that criterion. Click a column head a second time to switch between ascending and descending sort order.

Show/Hide panel details

The **Show Details Panel on Bottom/Hide Details Panel** button (•) enables you to specify how the Details panel is displayed. The details panel can be shown or hidden, and, when shown, can be displayed below or to the right of the window.

Click the **Show Details Panel on Bottom/Hide Details Panel** button to choose one of the following views:

- ——Hides the Details panel.

Interaction Bar



The Interaction Bar is displayed in the main view whenever you have one or more active interactions. If you have multiple active interactions, only the tools for the current active interaction are displayed. The toolbar for other active interactions collapse until you click them to make them current.

Each interaction is represented by a control bar. You can use the control bar to perform basic actions that are specific to the interaction type, such as ending a call.

- Click the control bar for an interaction to give it the focus. All other open interactions are collapsed to the Interaction Bar.
- Click the small colored bar on the left of the interaction control to toggle between pinned mode and floating mode. In floating mode, other open views appear dimmed behind the interaction view.

Entries in the Interaction Bar flash (or blink) when specific events occur that might require your immediate attention.

Tip: To allow for the maximum space in the Interaction Bar, when you are handling an interaction, the Team Communicator is reduced to a button.

Team Communicator

Link to video

Team Communicator lets you find someone in your company's internal directory (such as a team member, a routing point, or an agent group), and sometimes someone outside your company, such as an external resource person or even a customer contact. It's useful for getting help or consulting with someone while working with an interaction.

To start a call or email interaction, just click in the Team Communicator search field and start typing a name, number, or email address.

You can also filter the search results:

- Lo search all contacts
- 🗙 to search your favorites
- Line to search recent contacts
- 🔛 to group (or ungroup) your results by category or type

If you miss a call, the clock button changes to orange, like this: L. Click it to display any missed calls. If you hover your mouse pointer over the contact entry, a tooltip displays the missed call information, including date, time, and known contact details.

Tip: When you close the Team Communicator, or if you switch the filter to All contacts or Favorite contacts, the **Recent** button changes back to white if you have viewed your recent and missed calls, or if you have called back all of your missed calls.

Watch the video for a short demonstration of how to use Team Communicator.

😟 🖌 Avril Mai 😁	00:10 🎘 🎬 🖾 - 🎉 - 🖉 - 🔽 -	
Case Information	+ ^	٥
Origin:	Inbound email	
Subject:	Account upgrade	2
Account Number:	Party Action Menu	A
Customer Segment:	Bronze Env	
Phone Manufacturer:	Personne	
Subscription Date:	6/24/2013 12:34:00 PM	
Subscription Description UR	L: Subscription plan	
✓ Avril Mai	<u> </u>	
Call to 222+14255551212 From: A_MAI@mail.gom To: web@mcr.dev	12/8/2017 3:26:09 PM	I RESPONS
Please send me information A. Mai	on how I can updagrade to a gold account.	ES

The **Party Action** menu is a part of every interaction. You can use it during an interaction to launch a secondary interaction. For example, while you are handling an email interaction from a contact, you can use the **Party Action** menu to call the contact if their phone number address is stored in your corporate database.

Party Action menu

How to provide feedback when something goes wrong

	🌖 Kate London 👻 🙅 🔹 💡 👻
	Help
\bigcap	Feedback
	About Workspace Web Edition
	Consiste Officere ADI CODM
Feedback	
Suggestion Report i	issue
Please provide description	
	Send Cancel

Sometimes web-based applications don't work as expected. There might be network connection issues, or the system that sends you phone calls, emails, and chats might be slow or behaving in odd ways. Sometimes the sound quality of a phone call is bad. Sometimes an error message is displayed on your desktop.

These and other issues are problems that you should report to your supervisor. Open the **Help** menu and select **Feedback** to open the **Feedback** window. Choose the type of feedback that you want to give, either a suggestion or to report an issue, describe the problem or suggestion by typing in the text box, then click **Send** to submit your feedback. This information, along with logs about what you were doing in your most recent Agent Desktop session, are sent to Genesys and are available to Customer Care for later reference.

If for some reason Agent Desktop becomes disconnected from your network and you have to close your browser and launch a new one to log in again, Agent Desktop automatically opens the **Feedback** window to let you write a report about the disconnection problem immediately.

Once a feedback report is logged to you as a supervisor, contact Genesys Customer Care as soon as possible to provide the reporting user's name and DN at the time of the incident, as well as the approximate time the incident occurred. The Customer Care agent should be able to retrieve the

relevant log to determine what the issue might have been.

Keyboard navigation and accessibility

Agent Desktop lets you navigate the interface entirely by keyboard. This means that you don't have to use a mouse to activate different features or select buttons.

It also means that you can use a screen-reader application to perform all the functions you need.

Whenever an event happens in Agent Desktop, like you get a new interations or an error message is displayed, Agent Desktop makes a sound to alert you.

All the different ways that you can use the keyboard and a screen-reader to move around are described in this section.

Agent Desktop lets you use keyboard shortcuts combinations for some common actions. Ask your administrator for a list of the shortcuts that are set up for Agent Desktop.

Shortcut key combinations

A shortcut is a combination of keys that you press to make something happen in an Agent Desktop window.

OS shortcuts

The computer operating system also has shortcut keys to let you copy, cut, paste, undo, delete, find, maximize window, minimize window, open menu and select command, switch application, cancel, change focus, and so on. Consult your operating-system documentation for a list of supported keyboard shortcuts.

Agent Desktop shortcut keys

Agent Desktop supports three shortcut key combinations that you can use to make you more productive. These are the default shortcuts (your administrator might have set up different shortcuts for you):

- ${\bf Alt} + {\bf N} {\bf J}{\bf ump}$ to the next interaction if you have multiple interactions open
- Alt+B Jump to the previous interaction if you have multiple interactions open
- Alt+L Jump to the last error message that you received

Keyboard navigation

Agent Desktop supports keyboard navigation for all features, functions, options, and menus.

If you do not use a mouse or if you are using a device for accessibility that needs keyboard navigation, you can still use all the Agent Desktop features. Many *expert users* prefer to use keyboard navigation to maximize productivity.

Colors and appearance change as you select different items on the Agent Desktop. For example, buttons change color and menus open with the current selection highlighted by color.

Basic navigation using the TAB key

The simplest way to navigate by keyboard is to use the **TAB** and **SHIFT+TAB** keys.

- **Tab**—Moves your focus to the next menu, field, button, view, and so on.
- **Shift + Tab**—Moves your focus to the previous menu, field, button, view, and so on.

Movement occurs from left to right and from top to bottom, unless the ordering of components dictates otherwise. Navigation moves from component to component within a view, and from view to view within the application.

Navigation Shortcuts

This table shows you the keyboard shortcuts that let you control Agent Desktop without using a mouse.

Shortcut	Description
Left Arrow	Move left in a menu bar or out of a submenu.Move to the next tab on the left.Move left in the history slider.
Right Arrow	Move right in a menu bar or out of a submenu.Move to the next tab on the right.Move right in the history slider.

Agent Desktop keyboard shortcuts

Shortcut	Description		
Up Arrow	Move up in lists and menus.		
Down Arrow	Move down in lists and menus.		
Alt+Down Arrow	Open a selected drop-down list.		
Enter	For a modifiable list, apply the edit mode, or validate the modification. For a button, execute the associated action. For a menu item, execute the associated action.		
Space	For some controls, select or clear the check box that has the focus.		
Escape	For a modifiable list, cancel the edit mode.		

Channels (v8)

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

Channels are the different methods, such as email and chat, that you use to communicate with customers and team members in your contact center.

What does each channel do?

Each channel lets you communicate with your contacts in different ways. You can make and receive phone calls (known as the Voice channel). You can also receive and reply to emails, interactive live chats, Facebook messages, and Tweets on Twitter.

Why can't I see all the channels?

Depending on your assignment, you might have all, some, or just one of the channels available to you.

What's the difference between a consultation and a conference?

Both activities involve getting help from an agent or supervisor. Consultations let you communicate with a team member privately while handling an interaction. Conferences let someone else from your contact center join the chat or phone call with your contact.

If you want to perform a warm transfer or a two-step transfer, click Consult to talk to the consultation target and then click Transfer to transfer the call.

What can I do in the My Channels tab?

Use the My Channels tab to:

- Change your status on a channel
- Log off from a channel
- Turn on/off your Do Not Disturb status (applies to all channels)
- Forward calls that are directed to your extension to another extension

Tip

If you manually set your status to Not Ready while you are handling a phone call, chat, or email the system starts recording your time in that state rather than the time spent handling the call. Some contact centers have the Pending state enabled so that the Not Ready state does not take effect until after you end your phone call or chat interaction, or after you send your email or place it in a workbin.

Can I use more than one channel at a time?

Masha G Connected	
Call to 141	
New E-mail to email@genesys.com	
Masha	# - 😳 - 💄

Your environment might be set up to let you use another channel while you are active in a different one. For example, you might want to call a contact while you are handling their email or chat request.

To do this, use the **Party Action** menu in the Interaction Status area to find a list of all phone numbers and email addresses your company has for the contact, and select the one you want to use. If the connection is made, the status area and interaction control buttons are updated to include the new channel.

You might also be set up to handle multiple interactions over different channels simultaneously, such as three emails, two chats and a call with different customers.

If your account is set up for it, you can also click a phone number or email address that your contact sends you as a chat message to call or email the contact.

What happens when I mark an interaction as Done?

Senesys • Workspace					
Extend After Call Work Time 🔿 indefinitely					
3615 😵 00:12					
My Workspace					
My Channels	My Campaigns	Dashboard	My Statistics		
Media Status					
🕓 voice	C voice		After Call Work		
O chat			Not Ready		

The answer depends on your account setup.

You might have to mark an interaction as **Done** before you can close the interaction view.

When you click **Mark Done**, your status might automatically change from **After Call Work** to **Ready**, **Not Ready**, or some other value, or you might have to manually set your status to **Ready**, or some other value, after you complete your after call work.

You might be allotted a certain amount of time after each call to perform After Call Work (ACW). If so, your status for the voice channel will be **After call work** until the time interval has passed, then it might change to **Ready** or **Not Ready**. You might also be able to extend your after call work time indefinitely, if a call requires more than the usual amount of after call work.
Calls (v8)

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

Agent Desktop provides you with controls and features that let you handle voice interactions with contacts or team members.

Related Topics

How do I handle an incoming call?

Link to video

- · Handle it myself
- Handle it myself with help
- Transfer it



• After a consultation



If you want to perform a warm transfer or a two-step transfer, click Consult to talk to the consultation target and then click Transfer to transfer the call.

Where can I get help to handle a call?

Senesys • Work	space		•	Carole S,
🛞 🛛 Avril Mai ᢗ 00:0	∞ ℃ ℃ ℃ - ℃ - Ⅲ - ℃ -	<u>*</u> -	1	
Case Information	+	k ×		
Origin:	Inbound call to 9001			
Account Number:		Kate Lewis		l
Customer Segment:	Bronze Env	Logged Off		
Phone Manufacturer:	Personne	Kristi Sippola		
Subscription Date:	6/24/2013 12:34:00 PM		Ē-	
Subscription Description URL:	Subscripti	Start Voice Consultation (5322)	-	
	ected	 Start Consultation Start Voice Consultation (5322) Start Instant Message Consultation 		\neg
Dispositions Note				
Enter note		+14255551212	_ ^	<u> </u>
		Add Phone Number		7

- Look for standard responses
- Search contact and interaction history



• Start a conference

If you want to perform a warm transfer or a two-step transfer, click Consult to talk to the consultation target and then click Transfer to transfer the call.

What other actions can I take during a call?

 Avril Mai Connected 	
New E-mail to A_Mai@mail.dom	

- Send an email or make another call
- Update contact information
- Record the call

- Hold Cand resume
- Dial digits without using your phone. For instance, you can use this dialer when you are navigating a phone system.

How do I control the volume of my headset and mute myself?

Link to video

Your administrator can set up the controls for your microphone and speakers on your headset to let you mute and unmute yourself and/or your contact, and let you control the volume of your microphone and speakers.

Depending on how things are set up, you might see different configurations of buttons:

• Mute/unmute your microphone



· Adjust the volume of your microphone



Mute/unmute your speaker



• Adjust the volume of your speaker



• Adjust the volume of both your microphone and your speaker



What do I do at the end of a call?





- Take notes
- Select a disposition code if required



• Change status as needed

What happens when I put someone on hold?



You can see how long you have placed a caller on hold, if enabled.

After you click **Hold** (), a timer and progress bar begin to count the seconds that the call is on hold.

The progress bar changes from green to yellow to red as time goes by. If the progress bar changes to

red, the call has been on hold too long and you should click **Resume** (**MS**) to update the contact and let them know that they are still on the call.

How do I manually select a Caller Identification?

My Workspace		
Please select your Caller lo	dentification	
Sales	۲	
	Continue	Cancel

When you make a call, you might have to choose a Caller Identification to be displayed on the phone of the contact. This feature might also be enabled for calls that you are transferring or conferencing.

The person you call sees the Caller ID you select. The previous Caller ID that you selected is selected by default. To hide your identity, you can select Anonymous if available. Ask your supervisor about

when to use this feature.

How do I record a call?

The Call Recording functionality (for VoIP/SIP enabled agents only) enables you to record the current voice interaction with a contact or an internal target. Agent Desktop supports two different types of call recording: emergency recording and controlled call recording. Your system administrator configures the type of call recording that is supported in your environment.

If your account is set up for emergency recording, you can start and stop recording by using a single toggle button.

If your account is set up for controlled recording, you can start a recording, pause a recording, resume a recording, and end a recording.

In addition, you might also be configured for automatic or system-guided recording. If this is the case, you will receive a notification that recording is in progress.

Call recording enables you to perform the following functions:

- **Record the call** Select Record the Call (
- Stop recording the call Select Stop Recording the Call () to stop recording a call that you are currently recording.
- **Pause recording the call** Select Pause Recording the Call () to pause recording a call that you are currently recording.
- **Resume recording the call** Select Resume Recording the Call () to stop recording a call that you are currently recording.

When you are recording a call, the call icon in the connected-parties area changes to red.

When you pause a call recording, the red call icon changes back to gray.

A call-recording icon () is displayed in the title bar of the Main View when a call recording is active.

How do I forward my calls?

To forward calls to a different extension or phone number, on the selected media

channel, in the Forward column, click No Active Forward and Forward.

This action opens the Forward dialog box. Enter the number to which you want to forward your calls and click **Apply**. Click **Cancel** to return to the My Channels tab without forwarding your calls.

If you have an Active Forward set and you want to disable it, on the voice channel, in the Forward column, select **Forwarded to <number>**, and select **Cancel Forward to <number>**.

In the Cancel Forward dialog box, select **Yes** to cancel the forward; this removes the active forward and changes the Forward status to **No Active Forward**. To keep the forward active, select **No**.

Important When an Active Forward is set, no call is received by the application.

How do I call someone back?

If you are handling a call and the call drops you can call the contact back either by opening Team Communicator, filtering for Recent Calls (), and selecting their name, or by opening the **Party Action** menu and selecting the contact's phone number from the pop-up menu.

Email (v8)

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

The email interaction window enables you to view all of the information necessary to handle inbound and outbound email interactions with a contact.

Related Topics

How do I handle an inbound email?

Link to video

Typical actions you can take with an email are:

- Key to reply to the email, using your own message or a standard response.
- to reply all.
- 🖂 to transfer the email to another agent.
- Key to forward the email to an external resource.
- The save it in your workbin.
- View the associated case data.
- Add a note or disposition code.
- Mark it as done.

Watch the video to see what happens when an email arrives at a workstation.

How can I get help with an email?

⊜Ge	nesys • Wo	
0	Mark Avram 🔛 💾 🊰 🖉 🔀 🧏	L ~)
Case Inf	ormation	
Origin:	Dutbound email	Choose an
	Avram 😑 Outbound	R Choose an
From:	Contact Center	- action
То	MarkAv@mail.dom Ad	dd Cc •
Subject:		
Font	- Size - B <u>U</u> i ■ - \= = = =	

- Check the associated case data for information that might help you.
- Call the contact, if your site has this feature and their number is available in your contacts list.
- Example to start a consultation with a team member. If you want to perform a warm transfer or a two-step transfer, click Consult to talk to the consultation target and then click Transfer to transfer the call.

• Key to forward the email to an external third-party resource for additional support or help.

If you are sending the email to someone else, you can add your own notes or instructions for that person to review.

How do I compose and send an email?

Senesys • Workspace		🧭 Carole Spencer 👻 👤 👻	• •
🛞 🛛 Mark Avram 😁 01:54 🗳 💾 🊰 🖉 🔩 🔽 -			≡
Case Information + ^	<u>^</u> O	Information History	
Origin: Outbound email	8		
🝷 Mark Avram 😂 Outbound	UNTA		
Frame Contest Conter -	2	General	
Te MarkAv@mail.dem	=	Title Mr. 💌	
10 MarkAv@mail.uum		First Name [*] Mark	×
	I III III III III III IIII IIII IIII IIII	Last Name* Avram	×
Font • Size • B <u>U</u> <i>i</i> I • \models \models $=$ $=$ $=$	ESP		
	SNO	Phone Number	
	ES	2223615	
		Add Phone Number	
	=	E mail Address	
	nforr	E-mail Address	
	nati	MarkAv@mail.dom	
	on	Add E-mail Address	
			-
N N			
From: Web Contact Conter			
To Contact Center	-		
Web Contact Center		15	
Vicu.			

There are three main ways to compose and send an email in Agent Desktop:

- Reply to an active interaction.
- Find a contact (using your internal team or contacts directory) and select the email option from their contact details.
- During a call, click the party action menu and select New E-Mail to....

While the outbound email window is open, you can compose a message, add any required notes, dispositions, attachments, and recipients, and then send the email.

Use the **From** drop-down to choose a different 'from' email address. Your administrator sets the 'from' default address.

If you are not yet ready to send it, you can save it as a draft in your workbin, or delete it.

Forwarding an email as an attachment to an external resource

Link to video

To send a copy of an email interaction as an attachment to an external resource (someone in your company directory that is outside of the control of the Genesys environment — for example, your back office). A forwarded inbound email is copied as an attachment to a new email interaction from you. You are still responsible for responding to the original inbound email interaction. You might or might not be required to wait for an answer to this forward, depending upon your corporate policies and processes.

To forward the email, click **Forward** () on the active inbound email window toolbar. This feature is available only for current email interactions.

To add a target to the **To** address field, do one of two things:

- Type an email address in the address field. Click Add Email Address to enter the email address of the target in the address field. If your environment is set up to let you add multiple addresses, you can click in the address field and enter additional email addresses.
- Click the To... button beside the To address field to display the Contact Search view. You can use this view to perform a search of the Contact Directory for targets. The Contact Search view can also be used to add **Cc** targets (if Cc is available in your environment).

To display the Cc address field, click Add Cc. The Cc address field is displayed below the To address field. You add target email addresses to the **Cc** field in the same way that you add addresses to the To address field. Click X to remove the Cc address field.

To add a comment, information, or instructions to the forwarded email interaction for the target, enter your message in the Enter Forward Instructions area, above the original email that you are forwarding.

To send the forwarded inbound email to the targets, click () Complete Forward.



When you forward an email, it is temporarily stored in your In-Progress workbin until the forward is completed, then it is removed from the workbin.

Forwarding an email inline to an external resource

Link to video

To send a commented copy of an email interaction to an external resource (someone in your company directory that is outside of the control of the Genesys environment — for example, your back office). This is called inline forwarding. A forwarded inbound email is copied into a new email interaction. The new email has a note with the date and contact name or the header of the email that you are forwarding and below that, the contents of the original email quoted. You are still responsible for responding to the original inbound email interaction. You might or might not be required to wait for an answer to this forward, depending upon your corporate policies and processes.

To forward the email, click **Forward** () on the active inbound email window toolbar. Usually this feature is available only for current email interactions; however, some contact centers might give you the ability to forward email interactions from the Interaction History that have already been closed.

To add a target to the **To** address field, do one of two things:

- Type an email address in the address field. Click **Add Email Address** to enter the email address of the target in the address field. If your environment is set up to let you add multiple addresses, you can click in the address field and enter additional email addresses.
- Click the **To...** button beside the **To** address field to display the **Contact Search** view. You can use this view to perform a search of the **Contact Directory** for targets. The Contact Search view can also be used to add **Cc** targets (if Cc is available in your environment).

To display the **Cc** address field, click **Add Cc**. The **Cc** address field is displayed below the **To** address field. You add target email addresses to the **Cc** field in the same way that you add addresses to the **To** address field. Click **X** to remove the **Cc** address field.

To add a comment, information, or instructions to the forwarded email interaction for the target, enter your message above the original email that you are forwarding.

To send the forwarded inbound email to the targets, click (**Second Second Secon**

When you forward an email, it is temporarily stored in your In-Progress workbin until the forward is completed, then it is removed from the workbin.

Forwarding from History

You can inline forward from the Interaction History. In the following windows, select an interaction and click $\mathbf{\overline{s}}$:

- Interaction History
- Contact History
- My History

Forwarding either inline or as an attachment

Link to video

Some contact centers are set up to enable you to choose whether you want to forward an inbound email in-line or as an attachment. If this feature is enabled for you, the Forward button has a drop down menu that lets you choose how you want to forward an email.

Click **Forward** to open the menu.

- 🔀 - 🔽 -	
Forward	
Forward as an Attachm	
	\leq

Choose one of the following options:

- Forward
- Forward as an Attachment

Follow the steps in the sections above, depending on which way you are forwarding your email.

How does email quality assurance work?



Agent Desktop lets you and your team lead or supervisor work together to perform a Quality Assurance (QA) review of outbound emails. If your contact center is set up for email QA, any emails that you send are first sent to a reviewer for approval.

Here's an example of how a typical email QA review cycle might work:

- A customer sends an email to an agent.
- The agent sends a reply, which is directed to a reviewer.
- The reviewer either approves the email (sends it to the customer) or rejects it (holds it back for changes). The reviewer might make the updates themselves, or send it back to the agent with notes or instructions. The Case Information for the interaction might also show a **Rejected** status.
- After the changes are made, the review process repeats.

(Ask your administrator about the QA review process in your contact center as it might differ from the one described here.)

Chat (v8)

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

The chat channel lets you handle customer chats.

This page describes the typical options for handling a chat interaction. During a chat session, you and your contact send messages back and forth in real-time. When your contact is typing, you will see a notice that they are writing a response, but you won't see what they have written until they send it. The Interaction View keeps track of the conversation and allows you to review what has been said.

Related Topics

How do I handle a chat interaction?

Link to video

When you accept a chat request, the name of the contact is displayed at the top of the screen and the timer for the pending response indicator starts. The color of the indicator begins as green, then changes to yellow if you have not responded within the specified time limit. If you still do not respond, the indicator changes to red and begins to flash.

Some of the things you can do while handling a chat include:

- Transfer (
- Start a chat conference () with yourself, the customer, and someone else in your company.
- Start a Voice (internal targets and contacts) or Chat (an internal target only) consultation. If you want to perform a warm transfer or a two-step transfer, click Consult to talk to the consultation target and then click Transfer to transfer the call.
- Call or email the contact, if there is a phone number or email address in the contact database. (You can
 also launch a call or email from the Party Action menu by clicking an email address or phone number.)
 If your account is set up for it, you can also click a phone number or email address that your contact
 sends you as a chat message to call or email the contact.

- Add a disposition code or note.
- End the chat (



If you place your mouse pointer over the interaction in the Interaction Bar, you can see the elapsed time of the interaction and the last lines of the chat transcript. Connection-status information is displayed next to the Party Action menu.

Note: If you have a pending response and the Chat Interaction window is not the active window, it will start flashing in the Windows taskbar, regardless of the pending-response indicator status (green, yellow, or red).

Watch the video to see what happens when a chat request arrives at a workstation.

Facebook (v8)

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

The Facebook channel enables you to handle interactions with contacts and team members on the popular social networking service.

Businesses use Facebook to reach their target customers, choosing their audience by location, age and interests. Businesses can also promote their Facebook page or website, use Facebook's "Like" button to increase their advertising influence, and build a community around their business.

Important

- Some Workspace Agent Desktop features are not available in all environments. You might not have this channel available in your environment. Check with your system administrator if you are assigned this channel but do not see it in the **My Channels** tab.
- You cannot attach files or pictures to your comments.

How do I handle a Facebook interaction?



When a new inbound Facebook interaction is sent to your workstation, a preview of the interaction is displayed at the bottom right-hand corner of your desktop.

If you accept the interaction, the inbound Facebook interaction view is displayed with the originalrouted post on the left margin under the Facebook interaction toolbar. Subsequent comments are indented underneath the original post.

To view your Facebook contact information, select **Show Info** to open a user profile tab or select the username to open the Facebook page with user profile information.

To reply to an original post, click **Comment** on the right of the post. Your comment is attached with the post and sent to your Facebook contact.

Some of the things you can do while handling a Facebook interaction include:

• Transfer the interaction to someone else in your company.

- Start a chat conference with yourself, the customer, and someone else in your company.
- Start a voice (internal targets and contacts) or chat (an internal target only) consultation. If you want to perform a warm transfer or a two-step transfer, click Consult to talk to the consultation target and then click Transfer to transfer the call.
- Call or email the contact, if there is a phone number or email address in the contact database. (You can also launch a call or email from the chat transcript area by clicking an email address or phone number.)
- Respond with another media channel, such as voice or email.
- Reply with a Standard Response.
- Add a disposition code or note.
- End the interaction and mark it as done.

What actions can you take while viewing comments

Senesys • Workspace	S Canadia - Warkanaaa
Alison O'Brien 🕞 01:01 🔩	Alison O'Brien f 00:33 🗛 🛱 🔽
Case Information	Case Information
Origin: Inbound facebook	Origin: Inbound facebook
Tacebook party: Alison O'Brien () Invited	facebook party: Alison O'Brien () Invited
APP PAGE	Labuprofen ① APP PAGE
Alison O'Brien July 31 at 8:10 AM • Total Comments : 0	Alison O'Brien
Hello, I am wondering if you can help me	Hello, I am wondering if you can help me
× Labuprofen	Comment Delete Like
Type your comments/reply here	Num
	Send 📔
7	Type message Select Comment

You can reply to your Facebook contact. Select "Comment" and type your message in the text box.

You can also select **View**, **Hide**, **Expand All**, or **Collapse All** to manage the appearance of the comments.

Select the **Show Info** button to open the user profile then select the **Post** tab to view the total comments count. Total comments also appears above the original post. Your administrator sets up the number of comments to display per page. If the number of comments exceeds the set number, **Show more** appears. Click **Show more** to view additional comments.

[+] Show more screenshots.





Display the actionability and sentiment



Actionability

When a Facebook interaction arrives, you can see **Actionability** and **Sentiment** icons, which could have one of the following values:

- Actionability Can be actionable, not actionable, or undeclared
- Sentiment Can be Positive, Negative, Neutral or undeclared

Actionable Facebook posts are colored yellow and non-actionable posts are colored gray. Facebook comments are automatically expanded and colored yellow if they are actionable, and collapsed and colored gray if they are non-actionable. You can update each Facebook comment's **Actionability** and **Sentiment** icon.

If you favor an interaction, select Like.

Reply to comments



You can reply to the original routed Facebook post, or reply to a Facebook comment. The subsequent comments are indented underneath the original post. Select the applicable comment, enter your reply (you can cut and paste text), and select **Send**.

Reply to a private message: log in



You can reply to a private message from a Facebook contact (you cannot send new private messages). To do so you must log in to a special channel called **facebook private message**.

Reply to a private message: enter your reply

Brian Tested 1 05:53			
Case Information	0	Information	Histo
Origin: Inbound facebooksession	8	0 5	1
✓ Brian Tested	NTAC	General	
0 chats exchanged with this contact in the past 24 hours.	14	Title	(
[January 25, 12:55:42 PM]Brian Tested: Hi, I was wondering about your new products you have to offer?		First Name [*]	
[January 25, 12:56:38 PM]Brian Yee: What are you interested in space some new information with you.		Last Name [*]	
Brian Lested has not sent any message since 12:55:42 PM. Facebook session has expired and is now over.			/
~		Entar tau	~ I
	1		
	-		
Dispositions Note			Į
)		7

Once you've logged in to the **facebook private message** channel, you can accept private message interactions and reply to them in a way very similar to the way you conduct chat interactions.

Post to Facebook



You can post to your Facebook contact's page. From the drop-down menu beside the **Agent** icon, select **Facebook**. Select the account to which you want to send the post. Type your message and send it to your contact.

Twitter (v8)

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

Twitter, a popular online social networking and micro-blogging service, lets you send and read textbased messages called Tweets. These messages are posted to a person's or a company's Twitter feed, sent to their followers, and are found on Twitter by searching.

Important

- Some Workspace Agent Desktop features are not available in all environments. You might not have this channel available in your environment. Check with your system administrator if you are assigned this channel but do not see it in the **My Channels** tab.
- You cannot attach files or pictures to your comments.

How do I handle a Twitter interaction?

Senesys • Workspace	
🛞 Chrissy Cinfel 😏 01:02 🖳 🚰 🔽	nound interactor
Case Information	ound miler actor o
Origin: Inbound twitter Subject: Win a powerful BEAM Electrolux Allian Subscription Date: 7/30/2015 11:26:30 AM	
▼ twitter party: jhuskersam(Chrissy C ¥ Connected	/
jhuskersam Chrissy Cinfel December 8 at 6:36 PM • Reply from jhuskersam Win a powerful BEAM Electrolux Alliance Central Vacuum System & Q 30' Cleaning Set (\$	
Dispositions Note	
	₩ Chrissy Cinfel
	Case Information
Original Tweet	Origin: Inbound twitter Subject: Win a powerful BEAM Electrolux A Subscription Date Toast: 7/30/2015 11:26:30 AM
	Win a powerful BEAM Electrolux Allian
	Accept Reject

When a new inbound Twitter interaction is sent to your workstation, a preview of the interaction is displayed in the bottom right-hand corner of your desktop.

If you accept, the inbound Twitter interaction view is displayed and the original-routed Tweet appears in the left margin under the Twitter interaction toolbar.

Select **Reply**, or select the down arrow after **Reply**.

Your message is displayed to the contact on Twitter. Your message is also added to the transcript area of the Twitter interaction view.

To view your Twitter contact's profile information, select the **Show Info** icon or click the username to open the Twitter page that contains the user's profile information.

Some of the things you can do while handling a Twitter interaction include:

- Transfer the interaction to someone else in your company.
- Start a chat conference with yourself, the customer, and someone else in your company.
- Start a voice (internal targets and contacts) or chat (an internal target only) consultation. If you want to perform a warm transfer or a two-step transfer, click Consult to talk to the consultation target and then click Transfer to transfer the call.
- Call or email the contact, if there is a phone number or email address in the contact database. (You can also launch a call or email from the chat transcript area by clicking an email address or phone number.)
- Respond with another media channel, such as voice or email.
- Reply with a Standard Response.
- Add a disposition code or note.
- End the interaction and mark it as done.

Send a message to your Twitter contact

Senesys • Workspace	
Chrissy Cinfel	
Case Information	+ ^ 9
Origin: Inbound twitter Subject: Win a powerful BEAM Electrolux Allia	an Send a message
	Connected
jhuskersam Chrissy Cinfel December at 6:36 PM • Reply from jhuskers Win a powerful BEAM Electrolux Alliance Centr	am al Vacuum System & Q 30' Cleaning Set (\$1780 vals, #GIVeaWay <u>http://t.co/QrRnmpx67m</u> Direct Message Reply Retweet Quote Tweet Favorite
x socimeditest social media testing Type your message here	twitter party: jhuskersam(Chrissy C ♥ Connected jhuskersam Chrissy Cinfel @ jhuskersam Chrissy Cinfel @ December 8 at 6:36 PM • Reply from jhuskersam Win a powerful BEAM Electrolux Alliance Central Vacuum System & Q 30' Cleaning Set (\$1780 value) #Giveaway <u>http://t.co/QrRnmpx67m</u> Direct Message Reply Retweet Quote Tweet Favorite
18	x socimeditest social media testing

keply to party

To send a private message to a Twitter contact, select **Direct Message** and type your message in

the Message window.

Important

You can only send a Direct Message to a contact that is following you.

You can also send a reply to the original interaction for everyone to see. Mentions are automatically inserted into replies. The @ sign is used to call out usernames in Tweets, like this: Hello @JoeBelow! When a user name is preceded by the @ sign, it becomes a link to a Twitter contact's profile.

Display the number of your Twitter contact's Tweets and followers

•	⊜ Genesys • Workspace	
	🛞 🛛 Wayne Lecoy 😏 23:40 🖳 🎬 🔽	atuses count
	Case Information +	^
	Origin: Inbound twitter Subject: @mommykatandkids #Giveaway #Win the @	
	✓ twitter party: WayneLecoy(Wayne L ♥ Connected	
	WayneLecoy Wayne Lecoy 472 © 27165 % • F • ③ December 8 at 6:24 PM • Reply from WayneLecoy @mommykatandkids #Giveaway #Win the @Arbonne_Canada Sky for Men Gift Set-\$66 Value-CAN-Dec. 21 <a href="http://www.htttp://www.http://www.http://www.http://wwww.htt</th> <th>ite</th>	ite
	Number of followers	

The number after the **Statuses Count** icon indicates the number of user Tweets. You can also see how many followers the user has.

Display the actionability and sentiment



When a Twitter interaction arrives, you can view **Actionability** and **Sentiment** icons, which could have one of the following values:

- Actionability Can be actionable, not actionable, or undeclared.
- Sentiment Can be Positive, Negative, Neutral, or undeclared.

You can become or stop being a follower of an author of the Twitter message. Select the **Followed** button to unfollow the selected account.

Post to Twitter

Senesys • Workspace				,		
🛞 🗧 Anonymous ゾ 00:26 🖳						
Case Information				+ 📀 🔮	ļ	
Origin: Inbound twitter					/	
Anonymous				ž	/ 5100E 5100L -	
Timeline: TW SMS	K				 Post a tweet Facebook Exit 	
	S	select P	ost a tv	veet		$\mathbf{\mathbf{\mathbf{\mathbf{\mathbf{\mathbf{\mathbf{\mathbf{\mathbf{\mathbf{\mathbf{\mathbf{\mathbf{\mathbf{\mathbf{\mathbf{\mathbf{\mathbf{$
Characters remaining: 140				Send		
		\backslash				
Dispositions Note		\mathbf{N}			/	
	Selec	ct Time	line			
				Save		

You can post a tweet to your Twitter contact's page. From the drop-down menu beside the **Agent** icon, select **Post a tweet**. Select the Timeline you want to post the tweet on. Type your message and send it to your contact.

Customer interactions (v8)

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

A customer interaction has two parts: the actual communication with the customer over one or more channels, and the tools that help you address the customer's issue.

Important

What you see in Agent Desktop depends on your contact center and your role within it, so you might not be able to do or see all the things covered in this help. If you think you should be able to do or see something you can't, check with your supervisor or system administrator.

What kinds of customer interactions can I receive?

Depending on your assignment, you might receive interactions through almost any channel, directly from customers or by way of a consultation, conference, or transfer. Some contact centers are set up to always direct interactions from the same customers to the same agents. If your assignment is set up this way, then you will be able to assist certain customers whenever they call, email, chat, and so on.

What kinds of customer interactions can I start?

Depending on your assignment, you can:

- call a customer directly
- make outbound calls as part of a campaign
- send an email

 send Tweets or post to Facebook, though more likely your social media interactions will begin with customers

Only customers can initiate chat sessions.

Can I use more than one channel at a time?

In some cases, you can use multiple channels during a single customer interaction. You can, for instance, send an email to customer you are speaking with.

Where can I find answers to common questions or problems?

First, try standard responses, your own contact history, and any customized knowledge repositories your contact center uses. If none of those options works, you can start a consultation with one of your team members.

How do I search through my previous interactions with customers?

You can view customer interactions in three ways:

- My History lets you browse your interactions
- The Contact Directory lets you browse all interactions with a customer or team member
- Interaction Search lets you browse the complete interaction database using either a Quick Search or an Advanced Search

How do I accept an incoming interaction?

New interactions (calls, chats, emails, or social media postings) arrive at your workstation in a popup, which lets you decide whether to accept or reject the interaction. If you take no action at all, it will eventually time out and go to the next available agent.

If you're configured for auto-answer, of course, you can't choose to reject an interaction.

Many browsers, such as Google Chrome, Mozilla Firefox, and Microsoft Edge, also display notices to you about interactions and other events. You can manage these notifications through the settings in the browser. See the help for the browser you are using if you want to control browser notifications.

Why do my emails contain odd-looking codes?

Standard responses use "tokens" (such as <\$ Contact.FullName \$>) that replace a code with specific text. For instance, Dear <\$ Contact.FullName \$> becomes Dear John Smith in the email. If you copy and paste token code (such as <\$ Contact.FullName \$>) into your draft email, the replacement happens only after you send the email. To see the replacement text before sending, you must click **Insert Standard Response Text**.

What are these other websites I'm seeing?

Internal and external websites might be integrated into your Agent Desktop main view by your administrator. At the Agent Desktop level, the external website is displayed in dedicated tabs. These tabs allow you access to the website without leaving Agent Desktop.

At the case level, there are two ways to display websites depending on the display mode of the main interaction type.

- For voice, the external website is displayed in the background when an interaction is selected. When the interaction is unselected or closed, the external website is replaced with the previous panel displayed in the background.
- For multimedia, the external website is displayed in a dedicated view in the case itself.

How do I set a disposition code?

You can assign one disposition code to an ongoing or terminated interaction to characterize the outcome of the interaction.

The Disposition Code view is a tab in the Interaction view. It contains a list of choices that you can click to specify the outcome of the interaction. A search field is available to search among the disposition codes.

The Disposition Codes are organized within grouping folders, which cannot be selected as dispositions. These grouping folders do not correspond to business attributes, as they are only textual information.

Select a disposition for the interaction. Once a disposition is selected, the disposition list is hidden and the selected disposition appears in a textbox located at the top of the listing. You can't edit a disposition but you can select a new one.

The complete path to the disposition is available as a tooltip of the disposition name.

Depending on your system configuration:

- You might have to set a disposition code before you click **Mark Done**.
- You might be able to click **Mark Done** without a disposition code.
- The Disposition Code view might not be displayed.

How do I add a note to an interaction?

The note is a feature that enables you to enter comments about the current interaction or about a selected interaction. You can view the note in most channels as well as contact history, My History, and My Workbin.

Important: You must click **Save** to store your note.

How do I work with case information?

Senesys • Workspace		
😥 🚺 Mark Avram 🗧) 16:01 🔀 🊰 🔀 - İ	×. ✓ 🗶 ·
Case Information		+ ^ 9
Origin:	Inbound email	case
Account Number:		is the
Customer Segment:	Bronze Env Th	is is which it
Phone Manufacturer:	Personne	Formatic
Subject:	Warranty service	in an et
Subscription Date:	6/24/2013 1:34:00 PM	riew
Subscription Description UR	L: valies/ http://wable.hee.h/	-Subscription plan-
- Mark Avram 🖨 Inbour	ad) I
	iu	B/
Warranty service		8
From: MarkAv@mail.dom		7/10/2015 2:10:45 PM
To:		
Hello,		
I would like to book an appointment for warranty service on my lanton.		
	something between the service on	

The case information view (also called attached data) provides information about an interaction — for example, an account number or type of service.

Some case information might be displayed as the title of the web page, an anchor, or a link. If the link is active, it is displayed as blue text.

To make changes, select the field you want to edit or delete. Fields that you can edit display a pencil icon when you roll your mouse pointer over them.

You can add more fields with 色.
Contacts (v8)

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

Contacts can be team members or customers and are stored in the Contact Directory. From the Contact Directory, you can call or email a contact, manage a contact's profile information (such as their name, phone number, email address), and review a contact's past interactions.

Where are my contacts?

Link to video

There are a few different ways that you can access your contacts:

- Open your Contact Directory by selecting **Contact Directory** from the Supporting Views menu. This contains all of your contacts, such as team members, customers, and any external contacts.
- Use the Team Communicator to quickly contact a team member, or a favorite or recent contact. This tool is accessed from the Type name or number search bar near the top of the screen (or by clicking

the 🤷 button, if you are working with an interaction).

Watch the video to see an overview of the Contact Directory.

How do I find a contact in the Contact Directory?

Link to video

The easiest way is to use the **Quick Search** option.

Start typing a name, phone number, or email address into the **Quick Search** field and the matching results are returned in the **Contact** list.

Customize the search results by using **HE** to toggle between grid or list view, or click the headers to

sort by column (list view only).

Watch the video to see how you can search the directory and customize the results.

What is the difference between List View and Grid View?

The Contact Directory uses two different kinds of search modes to find contacts in the Contact Database.

- List View searches each field of the contact database for the keywords that you specify and displays an unsorted list of all of the contacts in the contact database that match the search criteria.
- Grid View searches each field of the contact database for the phrase that you specify and displays a list of records where at least one record field contained the search phrase.

See below for more details about these views.

List View

Click the **Show Contacts in List View** button (**:**) to display the **Contact Directory List** view.

The List view displays an unsorted list of all of the contacts in the contact database that match the search criteria. The search is a 'keyword' search that searches each field of the contact database (name, phone number, email address, or other criteria) for the word or words that you provide in the search field. The search engine tries to match *any* word of each field specified in the search criteria (that are allowed by your administrator for Quick Search or that you manually specified for Advanced Search) of the database by using the selected matching mode 'starts with' to search for the keyword(s) that you provide.

Examples:

- Quick search using the keywords John Daly as the criteria in a quick search defined to apply to only the First Name and Last Name fields will match a contact where First Name=John and Last Name= Daly
- Quick search using the keywords *John Junipero* as the criteria in quick search defined to apply to only **First Name**, **Last Name**, **City**, and **Address**, will match a contact where **First Name**=*Johnny* and **Address** = 2001, *Junipero Serra Blvd*.

Results are returned in a list that is not sortable. If the result set is too large, you can refine the search results by adding more keywords to your search criteria (the sort order in this context is undefined).

Tip

Genesys does not currently support mixed character sets in contact database searches, so, for example, it is not possible to search for words in Chinese Simplified characters and Latin characters in the same search string, and the sequence of Chinese Simplified characters immediately followed by Latin characters will not be considered as two words.

Senesys • Workspace	
Type name or number Q)
Contact Directory	
Avrij	
- Avril Mai し・ ヨー	_)
• Avril Mai 🔤 •	
	1

Grid View

Click the **Show Contacts in Grid View** button (**III**) to display the **Contact Directory Grid** view.

Grid mode performs a search that considers each field of the contact database (name, phone number, email address, or other criteria) as a *phrase* (as opposed to the list view mode that considers each field as a *tokenized* list of words) and uses the search criteria that you provide as a *phrase*, not as a list of words.

Examples:

- Quick search using the phrase John Pa as the criteria in a quick search defined to apply to only the **First Name** and **Last Name** fields will match a contact where **First Name**=John Paul and **Last Name**=Doe
- Quick search using the phrase John Daly as the criteria in quick search defined to apply to only the First Name and Last Name will not match a contact where First Name=John and Last Name=Daly

Results are returned in tabular form and sorted according to the default search field, such as **Last Name**.

The Grid view can be used to help to refine your search by sorting the results.

pe n	ame or number	Q,			
ont	act Director	ry .			
vri(×	Infor
2,	2.			≡ □ •	
	Last Name ~	First Name	Phone Number	E-mail Address	
	Mai	Avril	L 222+14255551212	A_Mai@mail.dom	
*	Mai	Avril	+14255551212	A_Mai@mail.dom	
	Mai	Avril		A Mai@mail.com	

Click a column head in the Grid view to sort the list based on that criterion. Click a column head a second time to switch between ascending and descending sort order.

What actions can I take with a contact?

Link to video

- Call or email the contact.
- View and manage their profile Information.
- View their **History** of interactions.
- Use \clubsuit to delete the contact.
- Use **More Actions** to perform other actions (depends on your permissions).

Watch the video to see how you can call or email a contact from the Contact Directory.

How do I add a contact?

Information	History				
💾 💿 Reset					
General					
Title	1	۸r.	-	×	
First Name *	7	Mark		×	
Last Name *	7	Avram			
Phone Numbe	r				
F1.555.654.7	890 Offic	e	-	×	Primary
3 317	Mobi	ile	•	×	0
Add Phone	Number 👻				
E-mail Addres	s				
rkAv@mail.c	lom Work	address	*	×	
Add E-mail	Address 👻				

Your site might be set up to add new contacts automatically. But if you are working with a contact who is not in the Contacts Directory, you might be able to add them yourself while the interaction is still active.

+ to create a new contact.

💾 to save your changes.

ito reset and clear any unsaved information.

You can also add additional phone numbers and email addresses for the new contact, and specify a phone number or email address as the *primary* contact number or address.

How do I set up my favorites?



Typically, your favorites are team members you contact frequently. You can mark a contact as a favorite by selecting **Add to Favorites** from the drop-down actions menu in Team Communicator. You can also assign the favorite to a category.

To see your personal and corporate favorites, select 🔀 (favorites filter) on the Team Communicator bar.

Favorites are marked with a 🔀 (star). Use the filters and sorting options to change the types, categories, and order of your favorites.

To make changes to a favorite, use **Edit Favorite**. To remove a favorite, use 🔽.

Favorites marked with in (locked star) are corporate favorites, and can't be edited or removed. The same favorite can belong to both your personal and corporate favorites, but it will be shown as a corporate favorite in the results list.

Note: A favorite that you created by directly dialing a contact will appear only in a favorites search *and* your list of recent calls if you previously called the person.

Contact and interaction history (v8)

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

Agent Desktop lets you look at the interactions that you and your coworkers have worked on in the past. You can view information about the interactions, including notes and case data. You can also open and process some interactions.

How can I find the interactions I've worked on?

The My History view enables you to view and manage your previous interactions with a contact.

To display the My History view in the main view, click = and select My History.

The Chronology slider lets you see all of your interaction history, or just those from the last day, week, or month.

The My History view **Filter** button enable you to refine your results by displaying only those interaction types that you select.

The Quick Search field enables you to enter keywords or a phrase to search for in the contact's interactions, such as the subject of an email or chat, the body of a chat transcript, a customer name, the name of the agent who handled the interaction, or other text that your administrator allows you to access.



[+] Show video: My History: Quick Search Link to video

The Advanced Search feature enables you to choose conditions to search only within the limits that you define.



[+] Show video: My History: Advanced Search

Link to video

When you find the voice, chat, email, Facebook, or Twitter interaction you are searching for, select it to view the details and other information.

You can open some interactions for editing or handling. Just select it and click \blacksquare .

You can open email interactions and forward them inline to an external resource. Just select it and click \mathbb{R} .

Use the **Show Details Panel on Bottom/Hide Details Panel** button () to change the display of the Details panel.

How do I explore the history of a contact?

The Contact History view lets you see and manage previous interactions with a contact you have selected from the Contact Directory or from the information view of the current voice, chat, email, Facebook, or Twitter interaction.





Use the Contact History view to do the following:

- Find interactions for the current contact or the currently selected contact.
- View information about the selected interaction..

The Chronology slider lets you see all of your interaction history, or just those from the last day, week, or month.

The Contact History view **Filter** button enable you to refine your results by displaying only those interaction types that you select.

The Quick Search field enables you to enter keywords or a phrase to search for in the contact's interactions, such as the subject of an email or chat, the body of a chat transcript, a customer name, the name of the agent who handled the interaction, or other text that your administrator allows you to access.





The Advanced Search feature enables you to choose conditions to search only within the limits that you define.



[+] Show video: Contact History: Advanced Search

Link to video

When you find the voice, chat, email, Facebook, or Twitter interaction you are searching for, select it to view the details and other information.

You can open some interactions for editing or handling. Just select it and click $\stackrel{ullet}{=}$.

You can open email interactions and forward them inline to an external resource. Just select it and click \mathbb{R} .

Use the **Show Details Panel on Bottom/Hide Details Panel** button () to change the display of the Details panel.

How do I find any interaction?

Sometimes you need to find an interaction that someone else at your contact center worked on, or maybe you worked on it, but you can't remember who the contact was or when you worked on it. You might be a team lead or supervisor who is looking for interactions related to a specific topic or was processed by a specific agent or agents.

The Interaction Search view lets you search the entire interaction database for all media types, with all contacts, and handled by any agent.

To display the Interaction Search view in the main view, click = and select Interaction Search.

The Chronology slider lets you see all of your interaction history, or just those from the last day, week, or month.

The Interaction Search view **Filter** button enable you to refine your results by displaying only those interaction types that you select.

The Quick Search field enables you to enter keywords or a phrase to search for in the contact's interactions, such as the subject of an email or chat, the body of a chat transcript, a customer name, the name of the agent who handled the interaction, or other text that your administrator allows you to access.

The Advanced Search feature enables you to choose conditions to search only within the limits that you define.

When you find the voice, chat, email, Facebook, or Twitter interaction you are searching for, select it to view the details and other information.

You can open some interactions for editing or handling. Just select it and click \blacksquare .

You can open email interactions and forward them inline to an external resource. Just select it and click \mathbb{R} .

Use the **Show Details Panel on Bottom/Hide Details Panel** button () to change the display of the Details panel.

Using Quick Search

The Quick Search field lets you to enter keywords or a phrase to search for in the interaction database, such as the subject of an email or chat, the body of a chat transcript, a customer name, the name of the agent who handled the interaction, or other text that your administrator allows you to access.



[+] Show video: Quick Search Link to video

Searches of customer information like name and address, and of interaction information like subject or body text are 'starts-with' searches, meaning that each of the fields that you are allowed to search for words or strings, are searched for words that start with the keywords that you enter in the Quick Search field.

Searches of information that has been customized by your administrator are 'equals' searches, meaning that the search looks for exact matches with what you enter. Ask your administrator about custom information.

Text search is:

- Not case sensitive. TEXT, Text, text, and teXt are all treated as the same word.
- Searchable as either a group of individual words or as sentences.
 - Put a group of words in double quotes to search for a specific sentence. Searching for "Find me" returns all interactions that contain the exact match for the phrase 'Find me'.
 - Otherwise, each word is treated as a separate search condition. Searching for Find me returns all interactions that contain one word that starts with Find *and* one word that starts with me.

Use the **Filter** menu to see only interactions of a certain type, like voice, email, or chat. Perhaps that interaction you are looking for was handled through a chat. To see only chat interactions, select **Show chat interactions** from this menu.

When you find the interaction you are searching for, select it to view the details and other information in the Details, Notes, and Case Data tabs.

Use the **Show Details Panel on Bottom/Hide Details Panel** button (

Using Advanced Search

The Interaction Search *Advanced Search* feature lets you choose a set of conditions that you want to use to limit the search to only those interactions in the interaction database that match the conditions you specify.



Your administrator decides what conditions you are allowed to search on, so your Interaction Search view might not exactly match the screen shots and video. For the **Add Condition** menu, your administrator might have set up groups of conditions which appear as submenus. This makes it easier for you to find the condition you want to use.

This is what the Advanced Search view looks like:

	e or hardise – R.							
erac	tions Search							
ter -								1
ld core	mer + Mach	Conditions () Mat	ult Any Condition					
i ana		is Property		a forther	· Brinn	* 9/7-2006	E .	ŧ
		COLUMN .		-				
				~				
							laner.	
							_	
•	10 cm		0.00.00	10 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 -	1.11.1	a		
	Status	Subject	Centacted	Stat Date -	Endland	Processed by		
	Status In Program	Subject Accountings of	Contactfol Indigent	Stat Date - 9/15/2016/8/07177	talian	Processed by Carrie Spencer		
	Status in Program in Program	Subject Account legels	Centerfel Nacional	Nat Date - 6-13/2014-8-07177 6-13/2014-9-04	tulius na	Processed by Carrier Spencer Carrier Spencer		
	Status In Program In Program In Program	Mapel Accountingen Accountingen Accountingen	Contacted Address Address Address	Nut Date - 9/13/0014-8/07177 9/13/0014-8/05 04/0 9/13/0014-8/05 04/0	tuller No No	Processed by Carole Spencer Carole Spencer Carole Spencer		
- 8	Natura In Program In Program In Program	Subject Account open Account open Account open Account open	Contacted NetCont	Stat Date - 9-13-001-8-02177 9-13-001-8-02187 9-13-001-8-02187 8-03-001-8-02187	tulius Na Na Na	Processed by Carrier Spencer Carrier Spencer Carrier Spencer Sector Spencer		
	Status In Progress In Progress In Progress In Progress Page 1 of 3 - 8	Subject Accounting to Accounting to Accounting to Accounting to Accounting to	Contactió Nacion Nacion	Start Date - 6-15/0014-6-001774 6-15/0014-6-0016-7 9-15/0014-6-0016-7 8-20/0014-6-0016-0	talian Na Na Na Na	Processed by Carrie Spencer Carrie Spencer Carrie Spencer Uncer Spencer 1 - 10 of 20	12 * 100	
	Status In Progress In Progress In Progress In Progress Progr 1 of 3 in	Subject Accounting to Accounting to Accounting to Accounting to Accounting to	Gestachd Negent Negent	Start Date - B-TA-SH-LA-M 177 B-TA-SH-LA-M LA-M B-TA-SH-LA-M LA-M B-TA-SH-LA-M LA-M B-TA-SH-LA-M LA-M B-TA-SH-LA-M LA-M B-TA-SH-LA-M LA-M	talian Na Na Na	Processed by Carrie Spencer Carrie Spencer Carrie Spencer Interferences 1 - 10 of 25	10 * (***)	
	Satus in Program in Program in Program Program Program in Sature in Sature i	Subject Account type of Account type of Account type of Account type of Account type of	Canachd Aggint Aggint	Start Bate - S-12-2014-8-07177 9-12-2014-8-05177 9-12-2014-8-0518 9-12-2014-8-0518 9-12-2014-9-0518	tallain na na na	Processed by Carole Special Carole Special Carole Special Wood Special Wood Special 1 - 10 of 20	10 * 0=0	
	Natura In Progress In Progress	Subper Access to tape of Access to tape of Acces	Canachi Agost Agost Agost	Start Bate - S-12-2014-8-07177 8-12-2014-8-0517 8-12-2014-8-0518 8-12-2014 8-12	tultur Na Na Na	Processed by Canon Spence Canon Spence Canon Spence Intel Spence Intel Canon 1-10 of 22	10 * p= j	
	Nation in Progress in Progres	Nalipert Annuell topics Annuell topics Annuell topics annuell topics Case Topics pert	Consult Nation Nation	Nut fair - Scholler an 177 Scholler an 187 Scholler an 188 Scholler an 188 Sch	tultur ng ng ng ng	Processed by Carrier Spencer Carrier Spencer Carrier Spencer Internation 1-10-0725	10 * (200)	
	Notes in Progress in Progress	Nutrient Account Topics	Consaction Name	Statilize - Sitagola Artirita Sitagola Artirita Sitagola Artical Artir Sitagola Artical Sita Report Artical Sita	tullur Na Na Na Na	Promoting Carrie Typecer Carrie Typecer Internet Internet Internet Kitte	10 * perp	

Use the controls described here to set up your search, then click **Search** to find the interactions that match the conditions that you specify.

When you find the interaction you are searching for, select it to view the details and other information.

Filter

Use the **Filter** menu to see only interactions of a certain type, like voice, email, or chat. Perhaps that interaction you are looking for was handled through a chat. To see only chat interactions, select **Show chat interactions** from this menu.

Add Condition

Use the **Add Condition** menu to add search criteria to the Advanced Search view. When you make a selection from this menu a new condition entry is added above the **Search** button. Add as many conditions as you need. The view will scroll if necessary.

To remove a condition, click the X next to the entry.

Each condition entry that you add lets you refine your search. For example, you might limit your search to interactions that have a status of "In Progress". You might know approximately when the interaction was handled. the **Start Date** and **End Date** conditions let you limit the search to interaction handled before, on, between, or after a certain date.

For some conditions, you might have to enter text instead of selecting criteria from a menu or picking a date.

Text search is:

- Not case sensitive. TEXT, Text, text, and teXt are all treated as the same word.
- Searchable as either a group of individual words or as sentences.
 - Put a group of words in double quotes to search for a specific sentence. Searching for "Find me" returns all interactions that contain the exact match for the phrase 'Find me'.
 - Otherwise, each word is treated as a separate search condition. Searching for Find me returns all interactions that contain one word that starts with Find *and* one word that starts with me.

For some conditions, you might have to search the contact database or search for someone in your contact center, such as other agents who processed the interaction you are looking for. For searches of contacts and internal targets, the Team Communicator opens when you click in fields such as **Processed By**.

Match All/Any Conditions

Use the **Match All Conditions** option to limit the search to only those interactions that meet *All* of the conditions that you specify.

Use the **Match Any Conditions** option to find the interactions that meet *at least one* of the search conditions that you specify.

Viewing search results

The search results are displayed in the interactions table. The search results table is not sortable. To sort the interactions table, clear the search field to display the full history set.

Important

Agent Desktop returns a maximum of 100 interactions. If you do not find the interaction you are searching for, you might have to refine your search criteria further.

Navigating the search results table

After you click the magnifying glass in Quick Search or **Search** in Advanced Search, Agent Desktop looks through the interaction database to find interactions that meet the conditions that you specified.

All the interactions that are found are displayed for you in the search results table. The table displays results in pages if many interactions are found. If multiple pages are returned in the search results, page through the list of search results by doing any of the following:

- Click the **Go to the Next Page** button (**>**) to view the next page.
- Click the **Go to the Previous Page** button (**4**) to view the previous page.
- Click the **Go to First Page** button (**I**) to return to the start of the list of search results.
- Click the **Go to Last Page** button (**)** to return to the start of the list of search results.
- Specify the number of items that are displayed on each page by using the per page drop-down list.

Details, Notes, and Case Data

The **Details**, **Note**, and **Case Data** tabs display information for any interaction that you select in the search results table.

- **Details** displays interaction specific information. For example, if you have selected an email interaction, the Subject, From, To, State, and body of the email interactions are displayed.
- Note enables you to view notes written by the agents who handled the interaction.
- **Case Data** enables you to view the Case Data/case information and other attached data for the selected interaction.

Workbins (v8)

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

A workbin is like a personal queue or storage area where you can store email, Facebook, and Twitter interactions to be handled later.

As an agent you have two different workbins that you can use. If you are a Supervisor (Team Lead), you might have additional workbins that you can use to manage the interactions of the agents that you supervise, and you might be set up to edit Case Information.

You can access all of your workbins from the **Supporting Views** (\equiv) menu.

How do I use the My Workbins view?

To view another workbin, select it in the Workbin explorer on the left-hand side of the view. The number of unopened email messages in each workbin folder is indicated next to the name of the workbin folder.

The list of available workbins depends on how your system is set up by your administrator. Some of the workbins which might be configured for you include:

- In Progress contains unprocessed inbound email interactions and Facebook and Twitter messages that you've saved by clicking Save in Draft Workbin.
- My Drafts contains outbound email interactions and Facebook and Twitter messages that you've saved by clicking Save in My Draft E-mails Workbin.

To view details, notes, and case date about an interaction that is stored in one of your workbins, select it. Information about the selected interaction is displayed in the tabs at the bottom of the Workbins view. To display the interaction information tabs, click the **Show/Hide Details Panel** button. (

To open an interaction for editing or handling, select it and click $\stackrel{ullet}{=}$.

Standard responses (v8)

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

The Responses view enables you to access a database of prewritten standard responses for your interactions. You can insert a response as reply into any outbound interaction, such as an email or a chat message, or you can read them to the contact during a phone interaction.

After inserting a response into an outbound interaction, such as an email or a chat message, you can modify the contents of the text.

Show video: Adding a Standard Response to an outgoing email: Link to video

Using the Responses View



To access the Responses view, select the vertical **RESPONSES** button on the active-interaction window.

The Responses view comprises two main areas: Responses Explorer folder view and the response display area.

You can find responses in one of two ways:

- 1. Browse using the Responses Explorer folder view
- 1. Search the responses database by typing in the Search and Filter field.

Responses Explorer



The Responses Explorer contains a tree view of folders (standard-response categories) and pages (standard-response documents). You can:

- Select a response in the explorer area (1) to view its contents (2).
- Navigate the responses folders and documents by selecting folders to open or close them and selecting documents to select them.
- Insert standard-response text into the current interaction at the insertion point by selecting a response document and then selecting **Insert Standard Response Text** =.
- Show and hide the responses details area by selecting Show Detail/Hide Detail
- View the contents of the selected response document in the responses details area.
- Copy content from the responses details area and paste it into the message area of your email or chat interaction. Standard responses use "tokens" (such as <\$ Contact.FullName \$>) that replace a code with specific text. For instance, Dear <\$ Contact.FullName \$> becomes Dear John Smith in the email. If you copy and paste token code (such as <\$ Contact.FullName \$>) into your draft email, the replacement happens only after you send the email. To see the replacement text before sending, you must click **Insert Standard Response Text**.

Search and Filter

The Search and Filter area enables you to specify keywords for which to search in your company's Standard Response Library. It has the following features:

- **Search field**—Enter the keyword for which you want to search, and click the magnifying-glass icon to initiate the search.
- **Search type**—A drop-down list that enables you to search using one of the following strategies:
 - Any Keyword Search—Find all responses that contain at least one of the specified keywords.
 - All Keyword Search—Find all responses that contain all of the specified keywords.
 - **Exact Text Search**—Find all responses that contain the specified keywords in the order in which they are specified.



Tip

The search is applied to the selected view; to clear the search criteria and display all contents, click the ${\bf X}$ in the search field.

Co-browse sessions (v8)

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

A Genesys Co-browse session lets you and a customer navigate the same web page at the same time. Unlike conventional screen-sharing applications where one party sees an image of the other party's browser, in a Genesys Co-browse session both you and the customer share the same instance of the web page.

Start a Co-browse session



The customer *must* initiate a Co-browsing session. You cannot start a Co-browse session. Websites set up for Genesys Co-browse include a widget with a **Start Co-browse** button that the customer must click to start a Co-browsing session.

One of the widgets that your customer sees might look something like this. Clicking the **Start Cobrowse** button will present the customer with a session ID.

ප් Workspace	● SIP 5320 マ 💇 マ 😧
🛞 🚺 John Doe 🔿 04:45 🍕 🐺 🐺 - 🍋 - 🔽 -	=
Case Information	Exit Session ID: 386292729 Mode: Pointer
John Doe Connected	← → http://www.genesys.com/solutions
3:15:24 PMJ John Doe: New party 'John Doe' has joined the session [3:15:27 PMJ Chat System: Agent will be with you shortly (through Chat Server	B GENESYS C Q =
Chatserver) [3:15:30 PM] SIP 5320: New party 'SIP 5320' has joined the session [3:16:44 PM] John Doe: {start:724064044} [3:19:03 PM] John Doe: (start:386292729)	Solutions
Co-browse	Deploy Genesys Solutions for Better Customer Experiences
Dispositions Note	Solutions:
Save	GET A FREE TRIAL
Ссо-вяюжие	

If you are engaged in a chat with the customer, the Co-browse session will automatically start in your desktop. Once the Co-browsing session starts, you see a special message in chat—**{start:123123123}** for example, where **123123123** is the session ID.

You can only have one Co-browse session open at a time (regardless of how many chat sessions you might be handling).

Important

For security considerations, you will see placeholder graphics for certain website elements.

Start a Co-browse session using a session ID

ප් Workspace		🕕 SIP 5320 + 👱 + 😗
🛞 🚺 John Doe 🔵 00:32 🍕 🥰 🗸 🐂 🗸 🗸 🗸		=
Case Information	0	Session ID
Origin: Inbound Chat		2
✓ John Doe ○ Connected	ONTA	
[3:15:24 PM] John Doe: New party 'John Doe' has joined the session [3:15:27 PM] Chat System: Agent will be with you shortly (through Chat Server ChatServer) [3:15:30 PM] SIP 5320: New party 'SIP 5320' has joined the session	đ	Session ID (1) 2 Enter Session ID
Send Dispositions Note	RESPONSES	
Save		
Open Co-browse	□ Ç	
Panel	BROWSE	

If you are on a call or a chat and your Co-browse session does not automatically start, you can use a session ID to start a Co-browsing session.

Get the session ID from the customer and enter it in the **Session ID** field, then click the globe icon.

You should now see the customer's browser. You do not need to navigate to the same page as the customer. Co-browse uses the session ID to make sure that you and the customer are viewing the same page. As soon as the session starts, the customer receives a notification on their screen that they have started a Co-browsing session.

Important

Genesys Co-browse does not support conference or transfer for chat and voice.

Use Pointer Mode



When you first join a Co-browse session, you are in *Pointer Mode*. You can see what the customer sees but you cannot perform any actions in their browser. You cannot navigate, input information, or submit forms.

You and the customer can see each other's mouse movements at all times and your mouse clicks create a red circle effect around your mouse pointer. Use the red circle effect to direct the customer to specific sections on the web page.

At any time, you can send a request to the customer to enable *Write Mode*.

Switch to Write Mode



In Write Mode, both you and the customer can perform conventional user actions. Both of you can enter text and click buttons.

To switch to Write Mode, click the pencil icon at the top right corner of the Co-browse area. The customer is asked to approve the switch to Write Mode. Write Mode is enabled only if the customer approves. You receive a notification about the customer's response.

If the customer approves the switch to Write Mode, the pencil icon turns into a pointer icon.

Tip: If Write Mode is disabled by administrators, you will not see the pencil icon.

In Write Mode, you can navigate by clicking links in the web page or by using the following navigation options in Agent Desktop:

- Click the back and forward arrows.
- Type a URL into the URL bar and press **Enter**.
- Click **Refresh** to reload the page.

Administrators can limit which interactive elements are enabled for you in Write Mode.

You can only co-browse while the customer is on your company's site. If the customer goes to another site, the co-browse session stops until they come back to your site.

Switch back to Pointer Mode

			🌔 SIP 5320 ▾ 🔍 ▾ 📀 ▾
		Click to switch back to	Pointer Mode
^	0	€ Exit Session	Session ID: 386292729 Mode: Write 🔭
		← → http://www.genesys.com/solutions	<u>ា</u> ដ
	NTACT	ଟ୍ଟ GENESYS [™]	Switched to Write mode. Now you can interact with the page.
Server		Home / Solutions	
		Solutions	
		Deploy Genesys Solutions for Better Custom	ner Experiences

To switch back to Pointer Mode, click the pointer icon at the top right corner of the Co-browse area. The customer can also switch back to Pointer Mode at any time.

Stop a Co-browse session

		● SIP 5320 ▼ 💇 ▼ 💡 ▼
		≡
>erver	C EI CONTACT	Exit Session ID: 386292729 Mode: Pointer V C Q = Ho Ho Ho Ho Ho C D D Ho Ho Ho Ho Ho Ho Ho Ho Ho Ho
Send	RESPONSES	Solutions:
Save	CO-BROWSE	GET A FREE TRIAL

Once a Co-browse session starts, both you and the customer have the ability to end the session with the **Exit Session** button. Ending your ongoing chat or call with the customer also immediately ends the Co-browsing session.

If the customer exits the session, you are notified and your browser no longer displays a view of the customer's browser. Likewise, if you exit the session, the customer receives a notification. Exiting the Co-browse session does not end your related chat or call with the customer.

Manage your virtual browser



The size of your virtual browser (a window on your computer that displays the customer's browser

window) matches the actual size at the customer's end. Scroll bars appear to help you navigate the customer's browser if their window is bigger than your Agent Desktop Co-browse area. Or, you can use the zoom-to-fit button to scale the display to fit in your window.

Visibility of sensitive data



Address *

****** ****** ۲ ********** ****** **** **** Masked fields

First Name * Last Name * Disabled elements

Administrators can limit which fields are readable to you; asterisks (****) display anywhere that characters are masked. For example, administrators might choose to mask only the customer's password and social security number—or an entire page—from all agents. Images can also be masked from you and will display as a grayed out area. Both masked fields and images are surrounded with a purple border.

At the same time, control for some elements, like buttons or links, can be disabled. These disabled elements are surrounded with a green border. By default, all **Submit** buttons are deactivated for agents. If you click on a **Submit** button, nothing happens. The customer always has permission to submit any web forms, just as they would while browsing normally.

Internal interactions (v8)

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

Internal interactions are communications between you and other people inside your company. They are typically internal-only, such as consultations, transfers, and messages from your system or administrators, but can also be conferences that involve the customer. Your supervisor might also use barge-ins or agent monitoring to listen silently or communicate with you and/or the customer.

How do I contact people in my company?



The Team Communicator tool lets you search through your company directory for an agent, team lead, agent group, or other target that you want to call, consult with, or transfer to.

Type in the name of the person that you want to call, then hover your mouse pointer over their name in the list of search results. A pop-up is displayed that lets you know whether that person is ready to take a call, is on a break, is busy, or is logged off.

If the person is available, use the action menu to call them. If not, try a different channel or try again later.

How do I start a consultation?

Genesys • Workspace	
🛞 🚺 Avril Mai 🗭 01:37 🍢 ج 🖛 🗸	<u>*</u> -
	k ×
	👤 ★ 🕒 Agent 🔹 🖳
	★ ► Kate Lewis O Logged Off
	Kristi Sippola 🖌 🖍
	Start Voice Consultation (5322)
Consultation	Start Voice Consultation (5322)
 Kristi Sippola Connected 	Start Instant Message Consultation
	222+142555512
	Add Phone Num
Welcome to Instant Messaging. Send a message to start t	the session
	F-mail Addree

A consultation lets you discuss an active call, email, or chat with another team member. It's different from a conference because the customer is not connected to the session. If you want to perform a warm transfer or a two-step transfer, click Consult to talk to the consultation target and then click Transfer to transfer the call.



starts a consultation.

Search your list of team members to find the person or internal target (an agent group, a routing point, or a skill) you want to consult with and select the type of consultation you want. Once connected, you can monitor the status and use the controls as you would for any other interaction.

Some things to keep in mind:

- Either party can end the consultation, but ending the consultation does not end your interaction with the customer.
- If you end the session with the customer, the consultation remains active.
- Consultations are private the customer can't see or hear your discussions.
- The team member can see the case and contact information and, if any, the chat transcript.
- To close an active chat, both you and the consulted team member must mark it done 🗹

If you are on a call and start a voice consultation, the original call is put on hold while you consult with your selected team member.

- Example a resumes the original call (and also allows you to toggle between the two calls).
- Note that the consultation and resumes the original call from hold.

If you start a chat, a new window opens where you can send private messages to the team member. You can also start multiple consultations. For example, you can start a voice consultation while a chat consultation is in progress.

Prior to a conference or transfer, you can consult with your team member by selecting **Consult** in the toolbar. After the consultation request is sent, the initial call is put on hold.

While in a consultation, you can also complete a conference or transfer between your team member

and your customer. To do this, select **Instant Call Transfer** (**N**) or **Instant Call Conference** (**I**), and select the same button beside the desired team member's name.

How do I call an Agent Group



In some contact centers, agents are assigned to specific groups. For example, some agents in a company might speak different languages, have particular product expertise, or have a higher level of security clearance. These are all specialties that might be associated with an agent's group.

If your administrator has enabled this capability, you can enter the name of the agent group instead of the name of an agent when looking for a team member. Click the **Action Menu** drop-down list that is displayed next to the name of the agent group that you want to call.

Sometimes, no one in the agent group is available to take the call. If your administrator has set up Agent Desktop to display the number of available agents in the agent group, then you will see a message underneath the group name that tells you how many agents are available. If there are no agents available, you might have to wait to make the call.

Important

In some scenarios, the agent group availability information might be 10 to 30 seconds behind.

How do I start a conference?

Senesys • Work	space	
3615 😢 07:29	४७८-५- ⊞ -७- <u>श्</u> र-	
Case Information	William ×	1
Origin:	Inbound call to 901	
Account Number:	🔥 🚽 Dave Williams 🙀 👰	
Customer Segment:	Bronze Env	
Phone Manufacturer:	Personne 😋 Instant Call Conference (5321)	
Subscription Date:	6/24/2013 12:34:00 PM	
Subscription Description URL:	Subscription plan	ľ
✓ 3615 (2) Connected		
Dispositions Note		/
Enter note		,

Starting a conference allows you to add another person to your current call or chat. It's different from a consultation because the customer is also connected to the session.



starts a conference when working in voice.

starts a conference when working in chat.

Search your list of internal targets to find the person, agent group, routing point, interaction queue, or skill that you want to add and then select the conference channel you are requesting. The conference begins as soon as they accept the request. (When sending a conference request to an agent group, the agent availability information might be 10 to 30 seconds behind, so you might have to wait to see if an agent is available to join the conference.)

Some things to keep in mind:

• You can always consult with a team member before adding them to a conference.

- In a voice conference, the person you added can choose to release the call. This disconnects them from the conference, but your call with the customer continues.
- If you disconnect from the call but the person you added to the conference is still connected, the call continues without you. Your system might be set up to end the conference after you disconnect if the person that you added is not part of your company.
- Everyone connected to the conference can see or hear what the other parties are discussing, unless you remove or selectively mute a participant.
- Your account might be configured to remove a party from a conference. Select the **Party Action** menu on the Voice Interaction view and select **Drop from conference** to remove that party from the conference.

A team member can select **Leave** to drop from the conference.

How do I transfer an interaction to another team member?

Link to video

You can transfer a call, email, or chat to another team member instantly, or you can consult with them first. For example, you could put the current call on hold while you talk to another team member to see if they will accept the transfer.



transfers a voice call.



d transfers a chat.



transfers an inbound email.

Some things to keep in mind:

- Case information might be visible to you, the transfer recipient, or your administrator.
- If your transfer request is not accepted, you must manually take your contact off hold.
- If there are no agents available, you might have to wait to transfer the call. (When transferring to an agent group, the agent availability information might be 10 to 30 seconds behind, so you might have to wait to transfer if there are no agents showing as available.)

Watch the video to see how a transfer works.

How do I read my messages?

				🕒 Carole Sj	pencer • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	>
		Total Abandoned		Total Answ	My Campaigns My History	
	0	0		Total Alish	Dashboard	
\backslash	0	0			My statistics	
\ \	0	0		-	Contact Center Statistics	
ļ	0	0			My Workbins	
	0	0			My Team Workbins	
/	0	0			My Interaction Queues	
/	0	0)		Contact Directory	
ł	0	0			My Messages	u
	-	0		_	U	

You might receive messages from the system or your administrator.

When a new message arrives, you'll see a preview notification (you might also hear a sound/tone play).

Common messages include:

- System-based messages (such as when a switch, channel, or contact server is out of service)
- Voicemails (if enabled)

You can view most messages on the **My Messages** page. In the Main View, click the **Access and use Agent Desktop supporting views** button (), then select **My Messages**. The most recent messages are displayed on top, with a color and a status to indicate the priority.

If you have voicemail messages, you'll see an indicator beside the mailbox, like this: 6.
To call your voicemail box select it from the **Supporting Views** menu (\blacksquare). A new internal interaction is launched. Use the keypad to enter your authentication information.

Tip: If you hover your mouse pointer over the message waiting indicator, you can see the number of messages in each of your voicemail boxes.

Outbound campaigns (v8)

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

As an agent, you might work on campaigns (for example, collections, telemarketing, or fundraising) where you make outbound calls to contacts. You can view and manage your campaigns from the **My Campaigns** tab.

What types of campaigns are available?

You might be working with one of the following campaign types:

- Preview campaigns, in which you manually request (or *pull*) a number to dial from the system.
- Progressive or Predictive campaigns, in which the system automatically sends you a number to dial.

Video Tutorial: Outbound Campaigns

Here are three tutorial videos that give you a quick overview of being an agent in an Outbound Campaign. The first video introduces Outbound Campaigns, the second demonstrates Predictive and Progressive (automatic) campaigns, and the third demonstrates Preview (manual) campaigns.

Overview



[+] Show video: Automatic Mode

Manual record retrieval



[+] Show video: Manual Mode Link to video

How do I work with Preview campaigns?

Genesys	 Workspace 							
Type name or nun	nber Q							
My Workspa	ice							
My Channels	My Campaigns	My History	Dashboard	My Statistics	Bing			
🖽 Get Record								
Status	Name		Delivery Mode		Description			
Running	Preview.040115A.14C	762EF746	Manual		040115A@TestOut	tbound_AG		
					Ou	tbound Cam Campaign Star	paign	
						Name:	Preview.040115A.14C76	2EF74604D4160A14
) Delivery Mode	Manual	
						Description:	040115A@TestOutbound	I_AG
						\square	Get Record	ок

In campaigns using Preview dialing mode, you request a record from the system and then dial the contact. You can preview the case information and other details *before* you start the call. You must be in a **Ready** status to make calls.

You'll get a pop-up notification each time an administrator loads or starts a new campaign. When you get the Campaign Started pop-up, you can choose:

- Get Record to retrieve a contact record from the campaign list.
- OK to join the campaign. (With this option you'll have to retrieve a record manually. Go to My Campaigns, select the campaign you want to use, and select Get Record.)

When you have previewed the record, use:

to call the contact. When the call is connected, you can monitor the call status and use the standard voice call controls to manage the call.

to decline the record. You can then choose **Call this contact later** to return the record to the campaign list or **Do not call this contact** to remove the contact from the campaign list.

to stop receiving previews (**Done and Stop**). To start receiving previews again, go to **My Campaigns**, select the campaign you want to use, and select **Get Record**.

If asked, select the caller ID details you want to use.

How do I work with Progressive and Predictive campaigns?

Senesys • Workspace						
😧 default To	anant 🚯 00:21 😢 🕻	७ ८ - ८ -				
Case Information						
Origin:	Outbound Campaign C	Call - Connecting				
mpaign Group Nan	ne: CampaignSIP@Agent	Group SIP One				
Customer ament:	default					
GSW Application ID:	124					
GSW_C_LL_TYPE:	ENGAGING					
GSW_SESSION_DBID	S Concerner - M					
defaultTenant	Genesys • v	vorkspace				
	9993616	01:58 🕊 🕲 C - C -				
\mathbf{X}						
	Case Information					
	Origin:	Outbound campaign call to 9993616				
	Campaign Group Name:	CampaignSIP@Agent Group SIP one				
	CardNumber:					
	Character:	b				
	GSW Application ID:	124				
	GSW_CALL_TYPE:	REGULAR				
	GSW_CALLING_LIST:	Calling List SIP				
	GSW_PHONE:	9993616				
	COM CECCION DDD-	105				
	🔻 9993616 🔇 Conn	ected				

In campaigns using Progressive and Predictive dialing modes, outbound calls are directed to your workstation and dialed automatically.

You'll get a pop-up notification each time an administrator loads or starts a new campaign. When you get the Campaign Started pop-up, click **OK** to join the campaign.

If your status is Ready, a new interaction preview appears. You can then **Accept** to connect the call, or **Reject** to return the record to the top of the calling list. If you do nothing, the interaction goes back to the top of the calling list.

When you accept the call the contact or customer is not yet on the line. In the pop-up notification and in the call **Case Information** areas, you will see that the **Origin** of the call is Outbound Campaign Call - Connecting...

As soon as the person answers the phone and the call is connected, the **Origin** of the call changes to Outbound campaign call to <name or number of contact>. Information about the call might be added to the **Case Information** area.

When you're connected to the contact, you can view the campaign call information, the Call Status, and the available Call Actions. Use the standard call controls to manage the call.

Note: In some environments, you might not be connected to the outbound call until after the contact has answered the phone. In this case, you will not see that the **Origin** of the call is Outbound Campaign Call - Connecting..., instead it will immediately show you the name and or number of the contact.

1 7		<u>,</u>						
[Schedule Callback							
	At:	4/9/2015 04:38 PM 🛟			\$			
	V Pe	ersona	al Cal	lback	C			
	0	Apr	ľ	- 20	15	•	0	
-	Su	Мо	Ти	We	Th	Fr	Sa	
-				1	2	3	4	
	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	
	12	13	14	15	16	17	18	
-	19	20	21	22	23	24	25	
	26	27	28	29	30			
Т	To: Home Phone - 998746343							
	New Phone Number						Addres	

How do I schedule callbacks for a campaign?

During a campaign, you might not be able to reach the contact or they might request to be called back at another specific date and time. You can schedule a callback at any time while you are handling an Outbound campaign call, even after the call has ended.

17 opens the Schedule Callback window, where you can set a date, time, and even a different phone number for the callback. You can also specify whether the callback is personal (you will handle the callback) or whether any available agent will handle the callback.

Tip: During Preview campaigns, you might be able to use this feature to postpone a preview call before the call is dialed.

When you've set the desired properties for the callback, the Schedule Callback button changes to Ľ.

to indicate that a callback is scheduled. You can then end the call.

If you need to make changes to a scheduled call back, you can open the Schedule Callback window and make changes to the settings.

To cancel a scheduled callback, clear the **Schedule Callback** box. This must be done *before* closing the Outbound Record or the Interaction Preview.

When a rescheduled callback is directed to your workstation, an interaction preview is displayed as usual. The only difference is that the Case Information includes an indication in the **Origin** field that the call is a **Callback** or a **Personal Callback**.

Note: You might see an error message displayed in the Agent Desktop interface when you try to mark done an Outbound interaction that you have rescheduled. This can happen if the specified rescheduled date and time are invalid (for example, you might have set the rescheduled date and time in the past). You must fix any errors or cancel the reschedule first before you can mark the interaction done.

Supervising agents (v8)

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

Some workers at contact centers are designated to be Team Leads or Supervisors. In this role, it is your responsibility to ensure that the agents that you supervise are successful.

The Supervisor Role

As a supervisor, your account might be set up to enable you to perform different tasks to manage and support your team, assist with interactions, manage in-progress interactions and queues.

Supervisor tasks include the following:

1. Monitor, Coach, and Barge-in

Agent Desktop enables you to monitor, coach, and/or barge-in to voice and/or chat interactions that are being handled by the agents that you supervise.

Depending on how your environment is set up, you might be set up to monitor individual agents or calls. If you are set up to monitor agents, then if an agent transfers a call, the monitoring of the call ends. If you are set up to monitor calls, then you continue to monitor the call as it moves through your company's system.

Overview

You can monitor their performance on voice calls and chat interactions, coach them on voice calls and chat interactions as part of their training or to help with a difficult-to-handle contact, or join (barge-in to) a voice call or chat interaction to help the contact directly.

You select which agent or agents to monitor by using the Team Communicator. You might also have the option of monitoring Interaction Queues (Routing Points); you select Routing Points by DN from Team Communicator.

Tip

- You can monitor only one agent at a time on the voice channel.
- You can monitor several agents simultaneously on the chat channel.
- If an agent that you want to monitor is logged in to both the voice and chat channels, you can monitor that agent on both channels.

When the agent whom you are monitoring accepts an interaction, an interaction notification is displayed on your desktop. If you accept the interaction, an interaction window is displayed on your desktop, and you are connected to the voice call or chat interaction.

If you are monitoring the agent, neither the agent nor the contact can hear you or are aware of your presence unless the agent's account is configured to notify the agent when he or she is being monitored (an icon is displayed in the Voice interaction window), or he or she might be configured to be monitored without his or her knowledge.

If you are coaching an agent during a voice call, the agent can hear you, but the contact cannot. If you are coaching an agent during a chat interaction, the agent can see your chat messages, but the contact cannot.

You can choose to join (barge-in to) a call or chat interaction.

Agent Desktop enables you to switch from certain team supervision modes to others.

2. Agent State

The **My Agents** dashboard lets you view and manage the state of the agents that you supervise. You can log out agents or change their status to Ready or Not Ready.

Overview

A common thing for agents to do is to forget to logoff of media channels at the end of the day or when they are on an extended not ready state, for example for meetings or lunch. If your agent accounts are set to auto answer calls, this behavior can result in interactions being accepted by an agent's unattended workstation. You can monitor the states of all the agents that you supervise and change them to ensure the best customer experience. You can log agents off globally from all logged on channels.

Agents might also forget to change their state to Ready or to Not Ready. The **My Agents** view lets you view and change agent state for each channel.

3. Email QA Review

Agent Desktop enables you to review outbound email interactions created by agents that you supervise, lead, or review, for Quality Assurance (QA) purposes. If you are a reviewer, outbound email interactions are directed to you before being sent to a customer. As a reviewer, your account might be set up to direct outbound email interactions to you, or you might have to retrieve outbound email interactions from a workbin.

4. Workbin and Queue Management

You can open, mark done, delete, and move in-progress interactions that are stored in the workbins of your team members and in interaction queues that you manage.

How do I monitor my agents?

When you monitor a selected agent who is in the group of agents that you supervise, an interaction preview window tells you that the selected agent is handling a voice or chat interaction. You can monitor the next interaction of an agent. Your account might also be set up to let you monitor the current voice interaction of an agent.

You can start monitoring an agent in your group by using the Team Communicator to find the agent.

In the Action Menu, select Monitor Agent ().

You can end monitoring an agent by using the Team Communicator and selecting **Stop Monitoring** in the **Action Menu** (20).

You can stop monitoring the current interaction by clicking **End Monitoring** (20) in the Call Actions toolbar in the interaction window.

Monitoring a Voice Interaction

Monitoring an agent who is handling an interaction means that you can listen to a voice interaction between an agent and a contact without the agent or contact being aware that you are listening. Agents can be configured to be notified when they are being monitored. You can monitor the current or next voice interaction of an agent.

Tip

You can monitor only one voice agent at a time.

1. Use the Team Communicator in the Main Window to find an agent in the agent group to which you have been assigned as a Supervisor or to find a Routing Point.

Senesys • Workspace					
Jim	×				
👱 \star	L Agent	-			
* •	Jim Miller O Logged Off	Q			
S 1	Jim Miller 🕞 Ready	<u> </u>			
2 Matching Internal Target(s)					

2. Open the Action Menu for the agent whom you want to monitor and select Monitor Agent.



Or, to monitor the next interaction if your account is set up to let you monitor the current or next interaction, open the **Action Menu** for the agent whom you want to monitor and select **Monitor**, then select **Agent**. To monitor the current interaction (if your account is set up for this feature), open the **Action Menu** for the agent whom you want to monitor and select **Monitor**, then select **Current Voice Interactions**.

Genesys • Workspace				
Carole ×				
👤 ★ 🕒 All Types	× 😃			
Carole Spencer	📩 🖭 ry Dashboard			
Call (5320)	L=			
🗩 Send Instant Message				
Monitor	Agent			
& Coach	Current Voice Interaction			

Or, to monitor calls on a Routing Point if your account is set up to let you monitor the next interaction on a Routing Point, open the **Action Menu** for the Routing Point that you want to monitor and select **Monitor**.

5000_s	s X		
1	* E Routing Point	*	2
٩.	- 5000_SIP_One		→D
5	call (5000)		
۲	Monitor		
*	Add to favorites		

A system message is displayed that informs you that monitoring of interactions on your configured channels has started for the selected agent.

In the Team Communicator, the **Action Menu** for the agent (or Routing Point) whom you are monitoring changes to the **Stop Monitoring** button.



3. When the monitored agent accepts a voice interaction, a notification is displayed on your desktop. Click **Accept** to begin monitoring the interaction. The Voice Interaction Monitoring window is displayed on

your desktop and you are connected to the call. Neither the contact nor the agent can hear you, but you can hear both parties.

If you do not click **Accept**, the notification will be dismissed automatically.

If the agent is already handling an interaction when you start monitoring, you will have to wait for the next interaction to start monitoring.

If the account of the monitored agent is configured so that the agent is notified when he or she is being monitored, an eye icon is displayed next to the party-interaction icon in the Voice Interaction window on the agent's desktop.

Senesys • Workspace							
0	Ravi Pache 🕓 00:01:13 🕊						
Case Inf	Case Information						
Origin:	Origin: Inbound call to 47 1						
Queue: 4001							
- Rav	i Pache 🍳 Connected						

The same icon is displayed in the Voice Interaction Monitoring window on your desktop next to the party Action menu.

Senesys • Workspace						
0	Ravi Pa	che (60:00:35	ও -	∅ →	
Case	Information					
Origin: Monitoring of call between 3615 and 5320						
- F	Ravi Pache	ବ	Connected	-		
÷.	Jim Miller	ଭ	Connected 🚽	-		

- 4. During a monitoring session, you can perform the following actions from the Voice Interaction Monitoring window:
 - End Monitoring—Click **End Monitoring** (2) in the Supervisor controls of the **Call Actions** toolbar to end the monitoring session.
 - Barge-in—Click **Barge-in** () in the Supervisor controls of the **Call Actions** toolbar to join the monitored call. Both parties will be able to hear you. You can switch back to monitoring by clicking) in the Call Actions toolbar.

End the Call (

If you stopped monitoring, you are disconnected from the call. The monitoring-indicator icon is removed from the Voice Interaction window of the agent. If the agent ends the call while you are still monitoring the agent, the monitoring session ends automatically.

5. Click **Done** to close the Voice Interaction Monitoring window and mark the interaction as **Done**.

- 6. To stop monitoring the agent, use the Team Communicator to find the agent (or Routing Point) whom you are monitoring.
- 7. Open the **Action Menu** for the agent (or Routing Point), and select **Stop Monitoring**.



A system message is displayed that informs you that monitoring of interactions on your configured channels has ended for the selected agent.

Monitoring a Chat Interaction

Monitoring an agent who is handling an interaction means that you can read a chat interaction between an agent and a contact without the agent or contact being aware that you are reading the interaction. Agent accounts can be configured to notify agents when they are being monitored. You can monitor the next interaction of an agent.

1. Use the Team Communicator in the Main Window to find an agent (see the Main Window Team Communicator figure) in the agent group to which you have been assigned as a Supervisor.



2. To monitor the next interaction, open the **Action Menu** for the agent whom you want to monitor and

select Monitor Next Interactions (see the Internal Target Action Menu figure).

Senesys • Workspace						
Jim	×					
1	★ 🕒 Agent	•				
٩.	Jim Miller Conditionally Available	Q				
L.	Call					
۲	Monitor Agent					
*	Coach Agent					
*	Add to favorites					

A system message is displayed that informs you that monitoring of interactions on your configured channels has started for the selected agent. In the Team Communicator, the **Action Menu** for the agent whom you are monitoring changes to the **Stop Monitoring** button.

Senesys • Workspace					
Jim	×				
👱 ★ 🖪	Agent	- 🖄			
★ ► ^{Jim M} ⊚ Lα	Miller ogged Off	<u> </u>			
Ø 🗕 🗾 🖉	Miller eady	Ω			
💋 Stop Mon	hitoring				
📞 Call	ů				
🗚 Add to Fa	avorites				

3. When the monitored agent accepts a chat interaction, a notification is displayed on your desktop. Click **Accept** to begin monitoring the interaction. The Chat Interaction Monitoring window is displayed on your desktop and you are connected to the chat session. You can read the chat transcript, but you cannot send any text to the contact or the agent.

If you do not click **Accept**, the notification will be dismissed automatically.

If the agent is already handling an interaction when you start monitoring, you will have to wait for the next interaction to start monitoring.



The same icon is displayed in the Chat Interaction Monitoring window on your desktop next to the party Action menu.

Senesys • Workspace					
🛞 🧧 Avril Mai 🖸 00:00:35 💋 ➔					
Case Information					
Origin: Monitoring of chat between Avril Mai and Jim Miller					
- Avril Mai 🔍 Connected					
- Jim Miller 🔹 Connected					
 Jim Miller Connected [7:20:28 PM] New party 'Avril Mai' has joined the session [7:20:30 PM] Chat System: Agent will be with you shortly (throi [7:20:34 PM] New party 'Jim Miller' has joined the session [7:20:49 PM] Jim Miller: Hello. How can I help you today? [7:20:54 PM] 'Kate Lewis' is monitoring the session 					

- 4. During a monitoring session, you can perform the following actions from the Chat Interaction Monitoring window:
 - End Monitoring—Click **End Monitoring** () in the Supervisor controls of the **Call Actions** toolbar to end the monitoring session.
 - Barge-in—Click **Barge-in** () in the Supervisor controls of the **Call Actions** toolbar to join the monitored chat session. Both parties will be able to see your messages. You can switch back to

monitoring by clicking End Chat (

- Coach via voice—Select Coach via Voice from the agent party Action menu. A voice session is added to the Chat Interaction window. You can coach the agent whom you are monitoring by speaking directly to the agent.
- Coach via chat—Select Coach via Chat from the agent party Action menu. A chat session is added to the Chat Interaction window. You can coach the agent whom you are monitoring by sending chat messages to the agent.

If you stopped monitoring, you are disconnected from the chat session. The monitoring indicator icon is removed from the Chat Interaction window of the agent.

If the agent ends the chat session while you are still monitoring the agent, your monitoring session ends automatically.

- 5. Click **Done** to close the Chat Interaction Monitoring window and mark the interaction as **Done**.
- 6. To stop monitoring the agent, use the Team Communicator to find the agent whom you are monitoring.
- 7. Open the **Action Menu** for the agent and select **Stop Monitoring** (see the Internal Target Action Menu figure).



A system message is displayed that informs you that monitoring of interactions on your configured channels has ended for the selected agent.

How do I coach my agents?

When you coach a selected agent who is in the group that you supervise, an interaction preview window tells you that the selected agent is handling a voice or chat interaction.

You can start coaching an agent in your group by using the Team Communicator to find the agent. In

the **Action Menu**, select **Coach Agent** (). Your account might also be set up to let you coach the current voice interaction of an agent.

You can end coaching an agent by using the Team Communicator and selecting **Stop Coaching** from the **Action Menu** (

You can end coaching the current interaction by selecting **End Coaching** (9) in the Call Actions toolbar in the interaction window.

Coaching a Voice Interaction

Coaching an agent who is handling an interaction means that you can listen to a voice interaction between an agent and a contact and speak to that agent without the contact being aware that you

are listening and speaking to the agent. You can coach the current or next voice interaction of an agent.

1. Use the Team Communicator in the Main Window to find an agent (see the Main Window Team Communicator figure) in the agent group to which you have been assigned as a Supervisor.



 Open the Action Menu for the agent whom you want to coach and select Coach Agent (see the Internal Target Action Menu figure). If there is a currently active interaction, it is displayed in the Coach menu.



Or, to coach the next voice interaction if your account is set up to let you coach the current or next voice interaction, open the **Action Menu** for the agent whom you want to coach and select **Coach**, then select **Agent**. To coach the current interaction (if your account is set up for this feature), open the **Action Menu** for the agent whom you want to coach and select **Coach**, then select **Current Voice Interactions**.

Senesys • Workspace					
Carole	ĸ				
👱 ★ 🕒 All Typ	es 🔹 😃				
Carole Spencer	Available 🔸 🙅 <mark>ny</mark>	Dashboard My Statis			
📞 Call (5320)					
Send Instant Mess	age				
Monitor					
🌲 Coach	Agent				
	Current Voice Int	eraction			
Ca	Il Activity	Current Voice Interaction			

A system message is displayed that informs you that coaching of interactions on your configured channels has started for the selected agent.

In the Team Communicator, the Action Menu for the agent whom you are coaching changes to the Stop Coaching button.



3. When the coached agent accepts a voice interaction, a notification is displayed on your desktop. Click **Accept** to begin coaching the interaction. The Voice Interaction Monitoring window is displayed on your desktop and you are connected to the call. You can hear the agent and the agent can hear you, but the contact can hear only the agent.

If you do not click **Accept**, the notification will be dismissed automatically, and you will not be able to coach the interaction unless you stop coaching and start coaching the same agent. If the agent is already handling an interaction when you start coaching, a notification is displayed immediately. If you click **Accept**, you will begin coaching the call that is already in progress. The eye icon is displayed in the Voice Interaction Coaching window on your desktop next to the party **Action** menu.

⊖ Genesys • Workspace						
🛞 🛛 Ravi Pache	🕒 00:00:19 🌷 - 😢 - 💋					
Case Information						
Origin: Coaching of c	all between 3615 and 5320					
🝷 Ravi Pache Q	Connected					
▼ Jim Miller 🔍	Coached					

- 4. During a coaching session, you can perform the following actions from the Voice Interaction Coaching window:
 - End Monitoring—Click **End Monitoring** () in the Supervisor controls of the **Call Actions** toolbar to end the coaching session.

If you stopped coaching, you are disconnected from the call. If the agent ends the call while you are still coaching the agent, your coaching session ends automatically.

- 5. Click **Done** to close the Voice Interaction Coaching window and mark the interaction as **Done**.
- 6. To stop coaching the agent, use the Team Communicator to find the agent whom you are coaching.
- 7. Open the **Action Menu** for the agent and select **Stop Coaching** (see the Internal Target Action Menu figure).



A system message is displayed that informs you that coaching of interactions on your configured channels has ended for the selected agent.

Coaching a Chat Interaction

Coaching an agent who is handling an interaction means that you can read the transcript of the interaction between an agent and a contact and send chat messages to the agent without the contact being aware that you are reading the transcript and communicating with the agent. You can

coach the next chat interaction of an agent.

1. Use the Team Communicator in the Main Window to find an agent (see the Main Window Team Communicator figure) in the agent group to which you have been assigned as a Supervisor.

Senesys 😂	• Workspac	е
Jim	×	
👱 🗶 😐	Agent	- 2
r → Jim Mil → → ⊙ Logg	ler ed Off	Ω
📞 🚽 Jim Mil	ler Iv 🕅	Ω
2 Matching Inte	ernal Target(s)	

2. Open the **Action Menu** for the agent whom you want to coach and select **Coach next interactions** (see the Internal Target Action Menu figure).



A system message is displayed that informs you that coaching of interactions on your configured channels has started for the selected agent.

In the Team Communicator, the Action Menu for the agent whom you are coaching changes to the Stop Coaching button.



3. When the coached agent accepts a chat interaction, a notification is displayed on your desktop. Click **Accept** to begin coaching the interaction. The Chat Interaction Monitoring window is displayed on your desktop and you are connected to the chat session. You can read the chat transcript and send private chat messages to the agent without the contact seeing your messages.

If you do not click **Accept**, the notification will be dismissed automatically, and you will not be able to coach the interaction unless you stop coaching and start coaching the same agent.

If the agent is already handling an interaction when you start coaching, a notification is displayed immediately. If you click **Accept**, you will begin coaching the chat session that is already in progress. The eye icon is displayed in the Chat Interaction Coaching window on your desktop next to the party **Action** menu.

Senesys • Workspace					
🛞 🖌 Avril Mai 🔿 00:00:35 💋 →					
Case Information					
Origin: Monitoring of chat between Avril Mai and Jim Miller					
👻 Avril Mai 🛛 🧟 Connected					
✓ Jim Miller					
[7:20:28 PM] New party 'Avril Mai' has joined the session [7:20:30 PM] Chat System: Agent will be with you shortly (throu [7:20:34 PM] New party 'Jim Miller' has joined the session [7:20:49 PM] Jim Miller: Hello. How can I help you today? [7:20:54 PM] 'Kate Lewis' is monitoring the session					

4. During a coaching session, you can perform the following actions from the Chat Interaction Coaching window:



• Barge-in—Click **Barge-in** ()) in the Supervisor controls of the **Call Actions** toolbar to join the monitored chat session. Both parties will be able to see your messages. Your coaching session ends when you barge-in to the chat. Click **Done** to close the coaching session in the window and mark the coaching interaction as **Done**. You can switch to monitoring the chat session (see *Monitoring a Chat Interaction* in the

Monitor tab) by clicking End Chat (

 Coach via voice—Select Coach via Voice from the agent party Action menu. An voice session is added to the Chat Interaction window. You can coach the agent whom you are monitoring by speaking directly to the agent.

If you stopped coaching, you are disconnected from the chat session. If the agent ends the chat session while you are still coaching the agent, your coaching session ends automatically.

- 5. Click **Done** to close the Chat Interaction Coaching window and mark the interaction as **Done**.
- 6. To end coaching the agent, use the Team Communicator to find the agent whom you are coaching.
- 7. Open the **Action Menu** for the agent and select **Stop Coaching** (see the Internal Target Action Menu figure).



A system message is displayed that informs you that coaching of interactions on your configured channels has ended for the selected agent.

How do I Barge-in on my agent's call?

When you barge-in (join) to an active interaction, you must already be monitoring the interaction.

To barge-in to an active interaction that you are monitoring, click **Barge-in** (ED) in the Supervision toolbar. **Barge-in** is a simple button if you are supervising a single channel interaction (voice or chat).

How do I switch my Agent Monitoring Mode?

Agent Desktop enables you to switch from certain supervision modes to others. During the monitoring, coaching, or barge-in of an interaction, you can switch from one supervision mode to another. The following transitions are supported:

- Monitoring to barge-in—Click **Barge-in** () in the Supervision bar.
- Coaching to barge-in (chat only)—Click **Barge-in** (in the Supervision bar.
- Coaching to monitoring (chat only)—Click End Chat (
- Barge-in to monitoring—Click **End Call** () or **End Chat** () in the Interaction toolbar to return to monitoring.
- Use **End Monitoring** (22) in the Interaction toolbar to end monitoring.

How do I manage the State of my agents?

The **My Agents** view lets you view and control the ready state and logged in state of all of the agents that you manage.

Open **My Agents** from the **Supporting Views** menu.

	кѕрасе		<u>6</u> s	uperVisor + 👱 +		
e name or number 🔍						
Agents			/	Search	filters	
		K				
roups Agent Group S	IP One V Cha	nnels Voice 🗸 Status Voi	ice All	♥ Q. Sean	ch By Name	
Sof S < >						
Nama 🛔	Uramana 🋔	Global Status		Status Voica		Time Line of
Phantine V	opername v	Charles Charles		OPRIND ADICS		TICS VOICE 1
5323, SIP	SIP_5323	C Logged Out		Logged Out	v	00:00:00
5323, SIP Sippola, Kristi	SIP_5323 ksippo	Logged Out Logged Out		Logged Out Logged Out	* *	00:00:00
Sippola, Kristi Spencer, Carole	SIP_5323 ksippo cspencer	Logged Out Conditionally Ready	¥	Logged Out Logged Out Beady	*	00:00:00 00:00:00 00:00:13
Sippola, Kristi Spencer, Carole Visor, Super	SIP_5323 ksippo cspencer SIP_5324	Logged Out Logged Out Conditionally Ready Not Ready	~	Logged Out Logged Out Ready Not Ready	* * *	00:00:00 00:00:00 00:00:00 00:00:13 01:37:42

This view has two parts, the filters and the table of agents. Use the filters to find agents by **Group**, **Channel**, **Status**, and first and/or last name.

In the table of agents, click a status to change it, for example from **Ready** to **Not Ready**. To set an agent to Ready or Not Ready on more than one channel, you must manage each channel separately.

To log an agent out of all channels, select **Log Out** from the **Global Status** column.

If an agent is Ready on one or more channels, but in a different state on one or more other channels, their global status displays as **Conditionally Ready**.

How do I review an outbound email?



Outbound emails are directed to reviewers before they are sent to a contact. In this example, there is problem with the email and it must be returned to the agent to be fixed.

- When an email interaction for review is directed to you, an interaction preview window opens. The Case Information indicate that the email is for QA review. In this example, the "Origin" field contains the text: "QA Review of email interaction...". Click **Accept** to display the interaction. The email interaction is displayed on your desktop.
 - The Case Information view might be set up to provide you with information about who wrote the email.
 - The Email Review icon () is displayed next to the name of the contact to whom the email interaction will be sent once it is approved.
- 2. Review the content that the agent wrote in the email composition area. You can choose to fix any issues yourself, or send it back to the original agent to fix. Depending on the policy at your company, you might provide feedback by directly editing the content of the email interaction, or you might add notes for the agent, or you might discuss the content with the agent verbally. Other actions available to you include:
 - Save changes that you made to the email interaction
 - Move the email to a workbin to save the email in your draft email workbin to process later
 - Attach a file to the email
 - Delete the email
 - Start a consultation
- 3. Email interactions that are sent to you for review have a drop-down menu on the Send button. The contents of this menu are set up by your administrator and so might be different than in this example. Click to open the menu. Since a problem was found this email is being returned to the agent to fix. In this example, the administrator has set up different Reject Reasons which will be included in the Case Information when the interaction is returned to the agent. Clicke of the "Reject" options to send the email back to the original agent.
- 4. Now you're ready to approve the email.

How do I approve a fixed outbound email?



If you are a reviewer, outbound emails are directed to you before they are sent to a contact. In this example, the agent has fixed an earlier identified problem, and the email is directed to you to review.

- When an email interaction for review is directed to you, an interaction preview is displayed on your desktop. The Case Information will indicate that the email is for QA review. In this example, the "Origin" field contains the text: "QA Review of email interaction...". Click **Accept** to display the interaction. The email interaction is displayed on your desktop.
 - The Case Information view might be set up to provide you with information about who wrote the email.
 - The Email Review icon () is displayed next to the name of the contact to whom the email interaction will be sent once it is approved.
- 2. Review the content that the agent wrote in the email composition area. You can choose to fix any issues yourself, or send it back to the original agent to fix.
- 3. Assuming that the email is now okay to send to the contact, click the Send icon to open the menu. Since the email is now ready to send to the contact, select the option that represents Accept. In this example, the administrator has added the **Approve (and send email)** option to the menu.

How do I use the My Team Workbins?

You can perform the following functions on selected interactions in workbins by using the **Workbin Actions** buttons (the available actions depend on the type of interaction that you have selected):

- Open 🚞
- Mark Done 🗹
- Delete State if you have the correct permissions
- Move to Queue if you have the correct permissions
- Move to Workbin if you have the correct permissions
- Edit Case Information \checkmark opens the Edit Case Information window to enable you to edit the content of the Case Data tab for the selected interaction(s).

You can also control-click and/or shift-click items in a workbin to select more than one item. With multiple items selected you can move them to a queue, move them to another workbin, mark them as **Done**, or update the case information for all of them in the Case Data tab.

Link to video

Accessing and Using My Team Workbins

Choose My Team Workbins from the Supporting Views menu.



The **My Team Workbins** view contains an expandable list of all of the agents that you supervise who have workbins. If you click the agent name or the arrow next to the name of one of your agents the view expands to show you the workbins for that agent and the number of interactions stored in each.

Senesys • Workspace	
Type name or number Q	
My Team Workbins	
► SIP 5323	My Team Workbins
Carole Spencer	► SIP 5323
Kristi Sippola	Carole Spencer Dave Williams
	My Draft E-mails (1)
1	My Inbound E-mails in Progress (2)
	Kristi Sippola
$h \wedge h$	\sim
My Workberrs	
My Team Workbins	
My interaction queues	

To view and manage the interactions that are stored in the agent's workbin, click the name of the workbin. The list of interactions stored in the workbin is displayed for you in the panel to the right of the workbin list.



When you select an interaction in a workbin or an Interaction Queue, the contents, notes, and case data are displayed in tabs at the bottom of the Workbin view. Controls are displayed at the top of the Workbin view that let you perform actions on the interaction that you selected.

- 14-	~ ~)	
From	-		Subject
AVV	Vang@mail.	dom	Unidentified transaction
🛛 A.M	lai@mail.do	m	Unidentified transaction
Details	Note	Case Data	
Details	Note	Case Data	
Details Inidentifie	Note ed transactio	Case Data	
Details Inidentifie From: A_N To: web	Note d transactio Aai@mail.do	Case Data	
Details Inidentifie From: A_N Fo: web Hello,	Note d transactic Aai@mail.do o@mcr.dev	Case Data m	

The following actions might be available to you, depending on how your system is set up by your administrator or what interaction type you have selected:

- Open 🗎
- Mark Done 🗹
- Delete 🔜
- Move to Queue 🚽
- Move to Workbin 🚔
- Edit Case Information N Opens the Edit Case Information window to enable you to edit the content of the Case Data tab for the selected interaction(s).

You can Ctrl-click and/or Shift-click items in a workbins to select more than one item. With multiple items selected you can move them to a Queue, move them to another Workbin, mark them as **Done**, or update the Case Information for all of them in the Case Data tab.



How do I manage My Interaction Queues?

You can perform the following functions on selected interactions in interaction queues by using the **Interaction Queues Actions** buttons (the available actions depend on the type of interaction that you have selected):

- **Open** opens the selected interaction in the Agent Desktop interaction view.
- Mark Done marks the interaction as Done and move it from the queue.
- **Delete** deletes the selected interaction
- Move to Queue — moves the interaction to a different interaction queue
- Move to Workbin moves the interaction to one of the queues of one of the agents that you supervise, or to one of your own workbins
- Edit Case Information opens the Edit Case Information window to enable you to edit the content of the Case Data tab for the selected interaction(s).

Accessing and Using Interaction Queues

Choose My Interaction Queues from the Supporting Views menu.



The **My Interaction Queues** view contains an expandable list of all of the interaction queues that your account is set up to manage. Interaction queues might be grouped by type in folders. If you click

the folder name or the arrow next to the name of the folders, the view expands to show you the queues in that folder. Click a queue to view its contents. The list of interactions stored in the queue are displayed for you in the panel to the right of the queue list.



When you select an interaction in an interaction queue, the contents, notes, and case data are displayed in tabs at the bottom of the interaction queue list view. Controls are displayed at the top of the interaction queue view that let you perform actions on the interaction that you selected.

에~ 볼~ 볼 린 🌖			18 interactions in snapshot, taken at 16:10:03 🖸 🗖		
_	Subject	То	Priority	Assigned To	
- 2	Account update	web@mcr.dev	0	1000	
1	Re: Product update	RaviP@mail.d	0	1000	
	Re: New account inform	MarkAv@mail	0	1000	
1	Re: No picture on my TV	RaviP@mail.d	0	5321_ID	
	Wrong amount charged	web@mcr.dev	0	1002	
4 4	Page 1 🕨			1 - 10 of 10+ 10 💌 per page	

The following actions might be available to you, depending on how your system is set up by your administrator or what interaction type you have selected:

- Open 🚞
- Mark Done 🗹
- Delete 🔜
- Move to Queue 📲
- Move to Workbin 🚔
- Edit Case Information N— opens the Edit Case Information window to enable you to edit the content

of the Case Data tab for the selected interaction(s).

You can Ctrl-click and/or Shift-click items in a Queue to select more than one item. With multiple items selected you can move them to another Queue, move them to a Workbin, mark them as **Done**, or update the Case Information for all of them in the Case Data tab.

Personal Workbins	Mys	abound E-mails in Progress		
Facebook Workbin InProgress.	-01-	8- E		
My Draft E-mails (0)		From	Subject	Received -
Wy inbound E-mails in Progra.	18	Matchigmail.dom		
Twitter Workbin InProgress (0)	10	A_Mai@mail.dom	Account balance	6/25/2015 10:28:47 AM
sex-click and		A, Maigmail.dom	Account balance	6/25/2015 10:27:17 AM
in the to make	-8		Account balance	
ultiple selections -	.8	Markkvijimail.dom	United to Danaktion	5/8/2015 4:02:45 PM
How do I edit Case Information for interactions in Workbins and Queues?



Supervisors and Team Leads might be set up to edit Case Information for interactions stored in Workbins

Edit Case Information	×
Bought phone from our store?:	
E-mail QA Request:	
Phone Manufacturer:	Personne
Phone Model:	
Special Discount on monthly Subscription:	
Subject:	Warranty service
Subscription Base Pricing:	
Subscription Date:	Monday, June 24, 2013 12:34 PM
	Ok Cancel

Supervisors and Team Leads might be set up to edit Case Information for interactions that are stored in a Workbin or Queue. Select an interaction to enable the Edit Case Information icon. Click the icon to open the Edit Case Information dialog box. The editing features of this dialog box work the same as the editing features of the Case Information area of an interaction window.

You can edit case information for multiple interactions by selecting two or more interactions. The following rules apply to editing the case information of multiple interactions:

- The Edit Case Information dialog box displays a mix of all of the case information fields that are available in all of the selected interactions.
- Only the common editable fields, check boxes, and menus of the selected interactions are displayed with the edit icon.
- If an editable item has the same value for all of the selected interactions, that value is displayed in the editable field.
- If an editable item has different values for one or more of the selected interactions, the field is displayed as blank.

Agent Desktop (v9)

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

Agent Desktop lets contact center agents communicate with customers and team members through phone calls and Genesys Digital channels. Supervisors can monitor, coach, and barge-in to interactions and can manage team workbins and QA email.

Important

- Due to continual changes to Agent Desktop, screen shots in this manual might show interface elements that are not yet available for this product or might not accurately reflect what you see in the product when you use it.
- Some Workspace Agent Desktop features are available only for Genesys Engage cloud users.
- Some Workspace Agent Desktop features are available only for Genesys Engage onpremises users.

If you are looking for the Agent Desktop v8 help, it is here.

Supervisor Tasks

Supervisors can monitor, coach, and barge-in to interactions and can manage team workbins and QA email.

Agent Tasks



Link to video

Agents can

- respond to or contact customers through the voice and Genesys Digital channels
- get help from team members
- make sure that you are meeting your center's expectations (Statistics and KPIs)

Ready? Watch the video for a quick tour of Agent Desktop, and then get started.

Lost? See Navigating Agent Desktop.

Looking for answers to specific questions? Try these topics:

- Customer interactions
- Internal interactions
- Channels

Are you a **supervisor**? You can monitor agents, calls, and chat interactions.

About The Agent Help

The following topics explain some of the main features of Agent Desktop:

About Agent Desktop	Voice and Digital Interactions
How to navigate Agent Desktop How to use Agent Desktop How to login to Agent Desktop Watch "How to" videos View Contact Center Statistics and Your KPIs	Call interaction features How to handle a call Inbound Chats Inbound and outgoing email In-progress and saved email My Workbins
Call Tasks	Managing Your Status and Communications
Conference Calls Transfer Calls Consultation Calls Recording Calls Calling inside your organization Calling an Agent Group	Manage your status Launch new interactions Manage your channels
Managing Contacts	Managing Interactions and History
The Contact Directory Finding Contacts Contact Interaction History Manual Contact Assignment	Interaction Search My Interaction History



change your password. This happens automatically. A message box is displayed that walks you through the steps. If you are not sure about any of the prompts, your administrator or supervisor can provide you with the details.

• If you need to change your password, send a request to your supervisor requesting a change password email. You supervisor will reset your password, and you will receive a confirmation email. Follow the instructions in the email to change your password.

What happens when I lose connection?

Sometimes network issues can cause Agent Desktop to lose connection to the system. Don't worry, see the Handling a system disconnection article to find out what to do!

What are Skills?

- Skills are things that you are good at, like product specialization or a language that you speak.
- When your supervisor sets up your account, she or he assigns skills and skill levels based on what you can do.
- Skills are used to direct calls to you. If someone calls about a product that you are specialized on, the call will be directed to you and others with the same skill on that product.

How can I find my Call Stats?

- Use the Performance Tracker to see your call activity, worktime, and other reports.
- Use the Dashboard tab to see the list of statistics about the Routing Points, Queues, and other contact center objects.

How do I transfer, conference, or consult on my call?

Agent Desktop lets you start a conference call with someone in your company, transfer your call to another agent or your team lead, or start a consultation call with another member of your team. The call controls at the top of the voice call interaction toolbar open the Team Communicator, a universal lookup tool, that lets you search for and dial other team members. You can also use the Team Communicator to call someone inside your organization.

How do I call back a contact?

You can also use the **Party Action** menu or Team Communicator to call back the contact if you become disconnected.

What kind of calls and interactions does Agent Desktop let me handle?

• Agent Desktop handles inbound voice calls, Outbound calling campaigns, and Digital Channels: chat, email, social media, and more.

I'm a Team Lead, what can I do with Agent Desktop?

- Agent Desktop has special features for those of you who are Team Leads and Supervisors. You can:
 - Monitor calls and chat (silently listen in)
 - Coach calls and chat (whisper coaching)
 - Barge-in to calls and chat (joining the call)

Supported browsers

You can use any of the following browsers to run Agent Desktop:

- Microsoft Internet Explorer 11
- Microsoft Edge
- Chrome 70+ (Note: Historical Reporting is not supported on Chrome)
- Firefox 63+

What next?

- Getting started
- Watch "How to" videos
- Navigating Agent Desktop
- Calls

Top 5 topics

- 1. Getting Started
- 2. Navigating Agent Desktop
- 3. Calls
- 4. Contacts
- 5. Contact and interaction history

Supervising agents

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

Some workers at contact centers are designated to be Team Leads or Supervisors. In this role, it is your responsibility to ensure that the agents that you supervise are successful.

Important

Due to continual changes to Agent Desktop, screen shots in this manual might show interface elements that are not yet available for this product or might not accurately reflect what you see in the product when you use it.

The Supervisor Role

As a supervisor, your account might be set up to enable you to perform different tasks to manage and support your team and assist with interactions. Supervisor tasks include the following:

Monitor, Coach, and Barge-in

Agent Desktop enables you to monitor, coach, and/or barge-in to voice and/or chat interactions that are being handled by the agents that you supervise.

You can monitor their performance on voice calls and chat interactions, coach them on voice calls and chat interactions as part of their training or to help with a difficult-to-handle contact, or join (barge-in to) a voice call or chat interaction to help the contact directly.

You select which agent or agents to monitor by using the Team Communicator.

Tip

- You can monitor only one agent at a time on the voice channel.
- You can monitor several agents simultaneously on the chat channel.
- If an agent that you want to monitor is logged in to both the voice and chat channels, you can monitor that agent on both channels.

When the agent whom you are monitoring accepts an interaction, an interaction notification is displayed on your desktop. If you accept the interaction, an interaction window is displayed on your desktop, and you are connected to the voice call or chat interaction.

- If you are monitoring the agent, neither the agent nor the contact can hear you or are aware of your presence unless the agent's account is configured to notify the agent when he or she is being monitored (an icon is displayed in the interaction window), or he or she might be configured to be monitored without his or her knowledge.
- If you are coaching an agent during a voice call, the agent can hear you, but the contact cannot. If you are coaching an agent during a chat interaction, the agent can see your chat messages, but the contact cannot.
- You can choose to join (barge-in to) a call or chat interaction that you are monitoring.
- Agent Desktop enables you to switch from certain team supervision modes to others.

How do I monitor my agents?

You start monitoring an agent in your group by using the Team Communicator to find the agent. In the Action Menu, select Monitor Agent (
).

You can end monitoring an agent by using the Team Communicator and selecting **Stop Monitoring** in the **Action Menu** (20).

You can stop monitoring the current interaction by clicking **End Monitoring** (22) in the Call Actions toolbar in the interaction window.

When you monitor a selected agent who is already handling an interaction, an interaction preview window tells you that the selected agent is handling an interaction. Your account might be set up to let you start monitoring the current voice or chat interaction of an agent; if not, you can monitor the next interaction of the agent.

Monitoring a Voice Interaction

Monitoring an agent who is handling an interaction means that you can listen to a voice interaction between an agent and a contact without the agent or contact being aware that you are listening. Agent accounts can be configured to notify the agent when they are being monitored.

Tip

You can monitor only one voice agent at a time.

1. Use the Team Communicator in the Main Window to find an agent in the agent group to which you have been assigned as a Supervisor.



2. Open the Action Menu for the agent whom you want to monitor and select Monitor Agent.



Or, to monitor the next interaction if your account is set up to let you monitor the current or next interaction, open the Action Menu for the agent you want to monitor and select Monitor, then select Agent. To monitor the current interaction, open the Action Menu for the agent you want to monitor and select Monitor, then select Current Voice Interaction.



A system message is displayed that informs you that monitoring of interactions has started for the selected agent. In the Team Communicator, the **Action Menu** for the agent whom you are monitoring changes to the **Stop Monitoring** button.



3. When the monitored agent accepts a voice interaction, a notification is displayed on your desktop. Click **Accept** to begin monitoring the interaction. The Voice Interaction Monitoring window is displayed on your desktop and you are connected to the call. Neither the contact nor the agent can hear you, but you can hear both parties.

If you do not click **Accept**, the notification will be dismissed automatically.

If the agent is already handling an interaction when you start monitoring, you might have to wait for the next interaction to start monitoring.

If the account of the monitored agent is configured so that the agent is notified when he or she is being monitored, an eye icon is displayed next to the party-interaction icon in the Voice Interaction window on the agent's desktop.



The same icon is displayed in the Voice Interaction Monitoring window on your desktop next to the party Action menu.



4. During a monitoring session, you can perform the following actions from the Voice Interaction Monitoring window:

- End Monitoring—Click **End Monitoring** (2) in the Supervisor controls of the **Call Actions** toolbar to end the monitoring session.
- Barge-in—Click Barge-in (¹) in the Supervisor controls of the Call Actions toolbar to join the monitored call. Both parties will be able to hear you. You can switch back to monitoring by clicking

End the Call (S) in the Call Actions toolbar.

If you stop monitoring, you are disconnected from the call. The monitoring-indicator icon is removed from the Voice Interaction window of the agent.

If the agent ends the call while you are still monitoring the agent, your monitoring session ends automatically.

- 5. Click **Done** to close the Voice Interaction Monitoring window and mark the interaction as **Done**.
- 6. To stop monitoring the agent, use the Team Communicator to find the agent whom you are monitoring.
- 7. Open the Action Menu for the agent, and select Stop Monitoring.



A system message is displayed that informs you that monitoring of interactions on your configured channels has ended for the selected agent.

Monitoring a Chat Interaction

Monitoring an agent who is handling an interaction means that you can read a chat interaction between an agent and a contact without the agent or contact being aware that you are reading the interaction. Agent accounts can be configured to notify agents when they are being monitored.

1. Use the Team Communicator in the Main Window to find an agent in the agent group to which you have been assigned as a Supervisor.



2. To monitor the next interaction, open the **Action Menu** for the agent whom you want to monitor and select **Monitor Next Interactions**.



A system message is displayed that informs you that monitoring of interactions on your configured channels has started for the selected agent. In the Team Communicator, the **Action Menu** for the agent whom you are monitoring changes to the **Stop Monitoring** button.



3. When the monitored agent accepts a chat interaction, a notification is displayed on your desktop. Click **Accept** to begin monitoring the interaction. The Chat Interaction Monitoring window is displayed on your desktop and you are connected to the chat session. You can read the chat transcript, but you cannot send any text to the contact or the agent.

If you do not click **Accept**, the notification will be dismissed automatically.

If the agent is already handling an interaction when you start monitoring, you might have to wait for the next interaction to start monitoring.

The monitoring icon is displayed in the Chat Interaction Monitoring window on your desktop next to the party **Action** menu.



- 4. During a monitoring session, you can perform the following actions from the Chat Interaction Monitoring window:
 - End Monitoring—Click **End Monitoring** (22) in the Supervisor controls of the **Call Actions** toolbar to end the monitoring session.
 - Barge-in—Click **Barge-in** (²) in the Supervisor controls of the **Call Actions** toolbar to join the monitored chat session. Both parties will be able to see your messages. You can switch back to

monitoring by clicking **End Chat** (**F**X) in the **Call Actions** toolbar.

- Coach via voice—Select Coach via Voice from the agent party Action menu. A voice session is added to the Chat Interaction window. You can coach the agent whom you are monitoring by speaking directly to the agent.
- Coach via chat—Select Coach via Chat from the agent party Action menu. A chat session is added to the Chat Interaction window. You can coach the agent whom you are monitoring by sending chat messages to the agent. If you stop monitoring, you are disconnected from the chat session. The monitoring indicator icon is

If you stop monitoring, you are disconnected from the chat session. The monitoring indicator icon is removed from the Chat Interaction window of the agent.

If the agent ends the chat session while you are still monitoring the agent, your monitoring session ends automatically.

- 5. Click **Done** to close the Chat Interaction Monitoring window and mark the interaction as **Done**.
- 6. To stop monitoring the agent, use the Team Communicator to find the agent whom you are monitoring.
- 7. Open the Action Menu for the agent and select Stop Monitoring.



A system message is displayed that informs you that monitoring of interactions on your configured channels has ended for the selected agent.

How do I coach my agents?

You can start coaching an agent in your group by using the Team Communicator to find the agent. In

the **Action Menu**, select **Coach Agent** (). Your account might also be set up to let you coach the current voice interaction of an agent.

You can end coaching an agent by using the Team Communicator and selecting Stop Coaching from

the Action Menu (

You can end coaching the current interaction by selecting **End Monitoring** (22) in the Call Actions toolbar in the interaction window.

When you coach a selected agent who is already handling an interaction, an interaction preview window tells you that the selected agent is handling an interaction. Your account might be set up to let you start monitoring the current voice or chat interaction of an agent; if not, you can monitor the next interaction of the agent.

Coaching a Voice Interaction

Coaching an agent who is handling an interaction means that you can listen to a voice interaction between an agent and a contact and speak to that agent without the contact being aware that you are listening and speaking to the agent. You can coach the current or next interaction of an agent.

1. Use the Team Communicator in the Main Window to find an agent in the agent group to which you have been assigned as a Supervisor.



2. Open the **Action Menu** for the agent whom you want to coach and select **Coach Agent**. If there is a currently active interaction, it is displayed in the **Coach** menu.



Or, to coach the next interaction if your account is set up to let you coach the current or next interaction, open the **Action Menu** for the agent you want to coach and select **Coach**, then select **Agent**. To coach the current interaction, open the **Action Menu** for the agent you want to coach and select **Coach**, then select **Current Voice Interaction**.



A system message is displayed that informs you that coaching of interactions on your configured channels has started for the selected agent.

In the Team Communicator, the Action Menu for the agent whom you are coaching changes to the Stop Coaching button.



3. When the coached agent accepts a voice interaction, a notification is displayed on your desktop. Click **Accept** to begin coaching the interaction. The Voice Interaction Monitoring window is displayed on your desktop and you are connected to the call. You can hear the agent and the agent can hear you, but the contact can hear only the agent.

If you do not click **Accept**, the notification will be dismissed automatically, and you will not be able to coach the interaction unless you stop coaching and start coaching the same agent.

If the agent is already handling an interaction when you start coaching, a notification is displayed immediately. If you click **Accept**, you will begin coaching the call that is already in progress. The eye icon is displayed in the Voice Interaction Coaching window on your desktop next to the party **Action** menu.



- 4. During a coaching session, you can perform the following actions from the Voice Interaction Coaching window:
 - End Monitoring—Click **End Monitoring** (22) in the Supervisor controls of the **Call Actions** toolbar to end the coaching session.

If you stop coaching, you are disconnected from the call.

If the agent ends the call while you are still coaching the agent, your coaching session ends automatically.

- 5. Click **Done** to close the Voice Interaction Coaching window and mark the interaction as **Done**.
- 6. To stop coaching the agent, use the Team Communicator to find the agent whom you are coaching.
- 7. Open the Action Menu for the agent and select Stop Coaching.



A system message is displayed that informs you that coaching of interactions on your configured channels has ended for the selected agent.

Coaching a Chat Interaction

Coaching an agent who is handling an interaction means that you can read the transcript of the interaction between an agent and a contact and send chat messages to the agent without the contact being aware that you are reading the transcript and communicating with the agent.

1. Use the Team Communicator in the Main Window to find an agent in the agent group to which you have been assigned as a Supervisor.



2. Open the **Action Menu** for the agent whom you want to coach and select **Coach next interactions**.



A system message is displayed that informs you that coaching of interactions on your configured channels has started for the selected agent.

In the Team Communicator, the Action Menu for the agent whom you are coaching changes to the Stop Coaching button.



3. When the coached agent accepts a chat interaction, a notification is displayed on your desktop. Click **Accept** to begin coaching the interaction. The Chat Interaction Monitoring window is displayed on your desktop and you are connected to the chat session. You can read the chat transcript and send private chat messages to the agent without the contact seeing your messages.

If you do not click **Accept**, the notification will be dismissed automatically, and you will not be able to coach the interaction unless you stop coaching and start coaching the same agent.

If the agent is already handling an interaction when you start coaching, a notification is displayed immediately. If you click **Accept**, you will begin coaching the chat session that is already in progress. The eye icon is displayed in the Chat Interaction Coaching window on your desktop next to the party **Action** menu.



- 4. During a coaching session, you can perform the following actions from the Chat Interaction Coaching window:
 - End Monitoring—Click **End Monitoring** (2) in the Supervisor controls of the **Call Actions** toolbar to end the coaching session.
 - Barge-in—Click **Barge-in** (²¹) in the Supervisor controls of the **Call Actions** toolbar to join the monitored chat session. Both parties will be able to see your messages. Your coaching session ends when you barge-in to the chat.

Click **Done** to close the coaching session in the window and mark the coaching interaction as **Done**. You can switch to monitoring the chat session (see *Monitoring a Chat Interaction* in the

Monitor tab) by clicking End Chat (

 Coach via voice—Select Coach via Voice from the agent party Action menu. A voice session is added to the Chat Interaction window. You can coach the agent whom you are monitoring by speaking directly to the agent.

If you stop coaching, you are disconnected from the chat session. If the agent ends the chat session while you are still coaching the agent, your coaching session ends automatically.

- 5. Click **Done** to close the Chat Interaction Coaching window and mark the interaction as **Done**.
- 6. To end coaching the agent, use the Team Communicator to find the agent whom you are coaching.
- 7. Open the Action Menu for the agent and select Stop Coaching.



A system message is displayed that informs you that coaching of interactions on your configured channels has ended for the selected agent.

How do I Barge-in on my agent's call?

When you barge-in (join) to an active interaction, you must already be monitoring or coaching the interaction.

To barge-in to an active interaction that you are monitoring, click **Barge-in** (²¹) in the Supervision toolbar. **Barge-in** is a simple button if you are supervising a single channel interaction (voice or chat).

How do I switch my Agent Monitoring Mode?

Agent Desktop enables you to switch from certain supervision modes to others. During the monitoring, coaching, or barge-in of an interaction, you can switch from one supervision mode to another. The following transitions are supported:

- Monitoring to barge-in—Click **Barge-in** (\rightarrow) in the Supervision bar.
- Coaching to barge-in (chat only)—Click **Barge-in** (²) in the Supervision bar.
- Barge-in to monitoring—Click **End Call** (S) or **End Chat** (S) in the Interaction toolbar to return to monitoring.
- Use End Monitoring () in the Interaction toolbar to end monitoring.

How do I manage the State of my agents?

The **My Agents** view lets you view and control the ready state and logged in state of all of the agents that you manage.

Open My Agents from the Monitor group.

					Groups	Agent Group SIP	One - Search	Entres	0
	Name	Usemane	Voice Status		Chat Status		Email Status		
÷	5323, SIP	\$P_\$323	Logged Off		Logged Off		Logged Off		
I	Sippola, Kristi	ksippo	C Not Ready	00.04.52	O Not Ready	00.04.59	O Not Ready	00.04.59	
1	Spencer, Carole	cspencer	C Not Ready	00:01:49	C Not Ready	00.01.54	O Not Ready	00.01.54	
÷	Visor, Super	SIP_5324	Logged Off		Logged Off		Logged Off		
:	Williams, Dave	dvillari	C Logged Off		Logged Off		Logged Off		
Ξ	Williams, Dave	deilian	Logged Off		Logged Off		E Logged Off		
1	Williams, Dave	deillan	Logged Ciff		C Logged Off		Logged Off		
1	Williams, Dave	deillan	Logged Off		C Logged Off		Logged Off		

This view has two parts, the filters and the table of agents. Use the filters to find agents by **Group**, **Status**, and **First name** and/or **Last name**. Find a specific agent or agents by using the **Search** field.

Click the pencil icon to select which channels to show in the table.

Groups Agent Group SIP One Search	Refresh 17
Voice Status	/
C Logged Off	Select columns
🕒 Not Ready	-
lot Ready	Voice Status
C Logged Off	En Status
C Logged Off	

Refresh the view by clicking **Refresh**. The view might also automatically refresh for you; if your account is enabled for this feature, a countdown to the next refresh is displayed next to the **Refresh** button.

In the table of agents, click a status to change it, for example from **Ready** to **Not Ready**. To change the status of an agent on more than one channel, click the action menu next to their name and select the status.

	Name -	Username	Voice Status	Chat Sta
:	5323, SIP	SIP_5323	C Logged Off	C Lo
:	Sippola, Kristi	ksippo	On 00-40	C No
:	Spencer, Carole	cspencer	🕒 Not Ready	C No
:	Visor, Super	SIP_5324	C Logged Off	C Lo
:	Williams, Dave	dwilliam	C Logged Off	C Lo

The table displays different agent states depending on whether they are handling interactions and whether they are at or below capacity.

Agent's state	Handling interaction	At capacity	Table display
Ready	No	No	Ready
Not Ready (with or without reason)	No	No	Not Ready (with or without reason)
After Call Work (with or without reason)	No	No	After Call Work (with or without reason)
Do Not Disturb	No	No	Not Ready
Ready	Yes	No	Engaged
Ready	Yes	Yes	Busy
Not Ready (with or without reason)	Yes	Yes	Busy
Not Ready (with or without reason)	Yes	No	Busy
After Call Work (with or without reason)	Yes	Yes	Busy
After Call Work (with or without reason)	Yes	No	Busy
Do Not Disturb	Yes	Yes	Busy
Do Not Disturb	Yes	No	Busy

Log off an agent

The Log off Agent feature is useful if you discover that an agent has forgotten to log off after their shift. Logging off the agent on all channels is beneficial because it ensures that your company is not unnecessarily consuming seat licenses, and it also prevents interactions from being routed to an agent who is not present but is configured for auto-answer!

To log off an agent, click the action menu next to their name in the table and select Log Off.

Important

If you log off an agent while they are handling an interaction you are warned that the agent is still handling an interaction and are given the opportunity to cancel the action. If you proceed with the log off, the interaction finalization is handled according to the type of interaction. Voice calls remain connected to the agent's DN, emails return to queue or workbin, and a chat returns to queue.

Genesys does not recommend logging off an agent who is handling a call until the call is ended.

00°	Workspace Connect	Monitor		
	Dashboard	My A	gents	
پ				/
00	Name	*	Username	Voice Statu
3	5323, SIP		SIP_5323	C Logg
•	Sippola Kristi		ksippo	🕒 Not Rea
	🖌 🖌 Ready		cspencer	🕒 Not Ready
	E Log Off	m	SIP_5324	C Logged Of
	Williams, Dave		dwilliam	C Logged

How do I review an outbound email?



Link to video

Agents: Your outgoing email interactions might be read and edited by your team lead, supervisor, or another person tasked with Quality Assurance at your company. They might edit the email before sending it to the contact, or they might return it to you with comments that you have to fix in the email before it will be sent.

Supervisors/Team Leads/Reviewers: You might be assigned the task of reviewing, editing, or commenting on outgoing email interactions at your company. This section and the next are for you. These sections describe what to do when an outgoing email is directed to you for Quality Review (QA) before being sent to a contact.

Your company might direct outgoing emails to you for QA purposes. The following example shows you what you might do when there is problem with an email and it must be returned to the agent to be fixed.

- 1. When an email interaction for review is directed to you, an interaction preview window opens. The Case Information indicates that the email is for QA review. In this example, the "Origin" field contains the text: "QA Review of email interaction...".
- 2. Click **Accept** to display the interaction. The email interaction is displayed on your desktop.



- The Case Information view might be set up to provide you with information about who wrote the email.
- The Email Review icon () is displayed next to the name of the contact to whom the email interaction will be sent once it is approved.
- 3. Review the content that the agent wrote in the email composition area. You can choose to fix any issues yourself, or send it back to the original agent to fix. Depending on the policy at your company, you might provide feedback by directly editing the content of the email interaction, or you might add notes for the agent, or you might discuss the content with the agent verbally. Other actions available to you include:
 - Save changes that you made to the email interaction

- Move the email to a workbin to save the email in your draft email workbin to process later (in some environments, you might have a 'pending review' workbin in which to save QA review emails)
- Attach a file to the email
- Start a consultation
- 4. Email interactions that are sent to you for review have a drop-down menu on the **Send** (Second Y) button. The contents of this menu are set up by your administrator and so might be different than in the example and video to the left.

Click to open the menu.

In this example, a problem was found, so this email is being returned to the agent to fix. The administrator has set up different 'Reject Reasons' which will be included in the Case Information when the interaction is returned to the agent.

- 5. Click one of the **Reject** options to send the email back to the original agent.
- 6. After the agent fixes the email it is directed to you or another reviewer and is ready to be approved and sent.

How do I approve a fixed outbound email?



If you are a reviewer, outbound emails might be directed to you before they are sent to a contact. In this example, the agent has fixed an earlier identified problem, and the email is directed to you to review.

- 1. When an email interaction for review is directed to you, an interaction preview is displayed on your desktop. The Case Information indicates that the email is for QA review. In the example to the left, the "Origin" field contains the text: "QA Review of email interaction...".
- 2. Click **Accept** to display the interaction. The email interaction is displayed on your desktop.
 - The Case Information view might be set up to provide you with information about who wrote the email.
 - The Email Review icon () is displayed next to the name of the contact to whom the email interaction will be sent once it is approved.
- 3. Review the content that the agent wrote in the email composition area. You can choose to fix any issues yourself, or send it back to the original agent to fix.
- 4. Assuming that the email is now okay to send to the contact, click the **Send** () button to open the menu. Since the email is now ready to send to the contact, select the option that represents **Accept**. In this example, the administrator has added the **Approve (and send email)** option to the menu.

How do I use the My Team Workbins?

If your account is set up to enable you to manage the **workbins** of the agents that you supervise, you will see the **My Team Workbins** list in the **Select Workbin** list of the **My Workbins** tab in the **Connect** group area.

The **My Team Workbins** view contains an expandable list of all of the agents that you supervise. If you click the agent name or the arrow next to the name of one of your agents the view expands to show you the workbins for that agent and the number of interactions stored in each.

°0 °	Workspace Connec	t Monitor				
9:	My Channels	My Workbins	N	My Campa	aigns	
	Select Workbin	Kristi	Sippo	la - I		
- GO	✓	kbins		• 11		
	🗂 email-pen 🗂 My Draft E	ding-qa-review (0) -mails (2)				
	My Inbour	d E-mails in Progress (4)			×	AV
Æ	- v 🧟 My Team Workbir	is workitems in Progress (0))		×	Mark
()	> Carole Spence				× 🗠	doe@
	> Dave Williams				×	A_M
(💼 email-pen	ding-qa-review (0)			× 🗠	A
	My Draft E	-mails (0)				1
	My Inbour	d E-mails in Progress (5) d Workitems in Progress (1)				

To view and manage the interactions that are stored in the agent's workbin, click the name of the workbin. The list of interactions stored in the workbin is displayed for you in the panel to the right of the workbin list.

When you select an interaction in a workbin, the contents, notes, and case data are displayed in tabs at the bottom of the Workbin view.

You can open an interaction to view or handle it by double-clicking it or by clicking **Open**

ଞ	Workspace Connect	Munitor						🔺 intere	nd Calls 0 👻 🕒 Carol	e Spencer 👻 👱 👻
<u>#</u>	My Channels	My History	My Workbins		ly Campa	igns Contact Di	rectory Interaction	Sear		(
	Select Workbin			Kristi	Sippol	a My Inbound E-	mails in Progress			\
00	 My Workbins Personal Work 	Dins		٩.;	1	~~	-			-(
_	email-pend	fing-qa-review (0) mails (2)				From	Subject		Received	
	d My Inbour	d E-mails in Progress (4)			-	AV/Wang@mail.dom	Trial offer		18/03/2019 3:47:28 PM	2
	🖆 My Inboun 🛩 🕱 My Team Workbin	d Workitems in Progress (0) s			•=	Mark/vgmail.dom	Trial offer	~	18/03/2019 3:46:23 PM	8
	> Carole Spence	r			•=	doegmail.dom	Trial offer	0	18/03/2019 3:43:30 PM	2
	 Dave Williams M Kristi Sippola 				•=	A,Maigmail.dom	Trial offer		18/03/2019 3:42:14 PM	2
	f email-perc	(no-pa-review (0)			-	A,Maigmail.dom	Trial offer		21/01/2019 1:35:12 PM	2 -
	A My Indexes	Haits (2) d E-mails in Progress (3) d Workhems in Progress (4)		Details Subject	Note Trial off	Case Data				(
	 Super Visor We Interaction Out 	0.01		Frank: Ter	Markiller	ğımail.dom				18/03/2019 3:46:23 Pt
?	> - 4 M My Interaction Queues		Helo. Theart M Ave	fan adver	forment about a trial offer	from your company. Can y	ou please send re	e more information?		

Workbin action controls are displayed at the top of the Workbin view. These let you perform actions on the interaction that you mark. Mark interactions for actions by clicking the check box next to them. The following actions might be available to you, depending on how your system is set up by your administrator or what interaction type you have marked:

Done
Delete
Move to Queue
Move to Workbin
Edit Case Information Opens the Edit Case Information window to enable you to edit the content of the Case Data tab for the marked interaction(s).

Watch this video to learn how to use My Team Workbins:

Link to video

How do I manage one or more interactions in a Workbin or Interaction Queue?

There are two ways to choose items in a Workbin or Interaction Queue, one for viewing and one for

different actions.

Kristi	Sippo	a - My Inbound E-mai	ls in Progress		
"ii	1	/ / 0			
		From	Subject v	Received	
	× 🖂	AVWang@mail.dom	Trial offer	18/03/2019 3:47:28 PM	2 î
	× 🖂	MarkAv@mail.dom	Trial offer	18/03/2019 3:46:23 PM	2
	**	doe@mail.dom	Trial offer	18/03/2019 3:43:30 PM	2
	× 🖂	A_Mai@mail.dom	Trial offer	18/03/2019 3:42:14 PM	2
		A_Mai@mail.dom	Trial offer	21/01/2019 1:35:12 PM	2.
		Select an i	nteraction from the workbi	in to view details	

Click a row to view the details, notes, and case data of the interaction in the tabs at the bottom of the view.

Kristi ¶ii	Sippol	a - My Inbound E-mai	ls in Progress			
		From	Subject v	Received		
	•	AVWang@mail.dom	Trial offer	18/03/2019 3:47:28 PM	ß	î
	*2	MarkAv@mail.dom	Trial offer	18/03/2019 3:46:23 PM	Ľ	
	• 🖬	doe@mail.dom	Trial offer	18/03/2019 3:43:30 PM	ß	
	•	A_Mai@mail.dom	Trial offer	18/03/2019 3:42:14 PM	ß	
	• 🖬	A_Mai@mail.dom	Trial offer	21/01/2019 1:35:12 PM	ß	÷
Detail Subject From: To: Hello, I hear M Avr	s Note MarkAvi web@m d an adver am	Case Data gmail dom cr.dev tisement about a trial offer from	your company. Can you please send me	18/03/2019 e more information?	9 3:46:23) PM

You can also mark one or more items for actions. The following actions might be available to you, depending on how your system is set up by your administrator or what interaction type you have marked:



• Edit Case Information Opens the Edit Case Information window to enable you to edit the content of the Case Data tab for the marked interaction(s).
Kristi Sippo	bla - My Inbound E-m	ails in Progress				
- % i - ¶i	/ / 8	\leftarrow	— available actions			
Ξ	From	Subject	 Received 			
×**	AVWang@mail.dom	Trial offer	18/03/2019 3:47:28 PM	e î		
0.7	MarkAv@mail.dom	Trial offer	18/03/2019 3:46:23 PM	2		
	@@mail.dom	Trial offer	18/03/2019 3:43:30 PM	2		
	A_Mai@nail.dom	Trial offer	18/03/2019 3:42:14 PM	2		
	A_Mai@mail.dom	Trial offer	21/01/2019 1:35:12 PM	2.		
click the box to mark one or more items for an action like move, edit, or mark done Select an interaction from the workbin to view details						

There are different ways to mark multiple interactions:

- You can click the check box next to each one that you want to mark
- You can click one, then shift+click another to mark both plus all the interactions in between
- You can click the **Mark All** box at the top of the table to mark all interactions (click it again to unmark all)

	Sippo	a - My Inbound E-mai	ls in Progress				
9 .i	-	/ / 1					
Ξ		From	Subject v	Received			
	~	Managemeild elick to	o iniark	18/03/2019 3:47:28 PM	ß	Â	
	× 🖂	MarkAv@mail.dom	Trial offer	18/03/2019 3:46:23 PM	ß		
	× 🖂	doe@mail.dom	Trial offer	18/03/2019 3:43:30 PM	ß		
The second	←=-	-A_Mai@mail.demShift+0	clickoto mark a rang	e 10631000014 PM	ß		
0	* 2	A_Mai@mail.dom	Trial offer	21/01/2019 1:35:12 PM	ß	÷	
Select an interaction from the workbin to view details Kristi Sippola - My Inbound E-mails in Progress							
Kristi	Sippo	ia - My Inbound E-mai	ls in Progress			_	
Kristi	Sippo	la - My Inbound E-mai	Is in Progress click to mark	all items Received			
Kristi	Sippo	la - My Inbound E-mai	Is in Progress click to mark Subject v Trial offer	all items Received 18/03/2019 3:47:28 PM	Ľ		
Kristi	Sippo C	la - My Inbound E-mai	Is in Progress click to mark Subject * Trial offer Trial offer	all items Received 18/03/2019 3:47:28 PM 18/03/2019 3:46:23 PM	Ľ	-	
Kristi	Sippo Sippo Signal	a - My Inbound E-mai	Is in Progress click to mark Subject Trial offer Trial offer Trial offer Trial offer	all items Received 18/03/2019 3:47:28 PM 18/03/2019 3:46:23 PM 18/03/2019 3:43:30 PM	2 2 2	-	
Kristi	Sippo C X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X	a - My Inbound E-mai	Is in Progress click to mark subject Trial offer Trial offer Trial offer Trial offer Trial offer	all items Received 18/03/2019 3:47:28 PM 18/03/2019 3:46:23 PM 18/03/2019 3:43:30 PM 18/03/2019 3:42:14 PM	2 2 2	•	
Kristi	Sippo Sippo Signal	a - My Inbound E-mai	Is in Progress	All items Received 18/03/2019 3:47:28 PM 18/03/2019 3:46:23 PM 18/03/2019 3:43:30 PM 18/03/2019 3:42:14 PM 21/01/2019 1:35:12 PM			

After marking one or more interactions, click an action button to perform that action on all the marked interactions.

How do I manage My Interaction Queues?

If your account is set up to enable you to manage the Interaction Queues of your contact center, you will see the **My Interaction Queues** list in the **Select Workbin** list of the **My Workbins** tab in the **Connect** group area.

The **My Interaction Queues** view contains an expandable list of all of the interaction queues that your account is set up to manage. Interaction queues might be grouped by type in folders. If you click the folder name or the arrow next to the name of the folders, the view expands to show you the queues in that folder. Click a queue to view its contents. The list of interactions stored in the queue are displayed for you in the panel to the right of the queue list.

	Workspace Connect	Munitor					A Inbound Calls	0 🗸 🕒 Carole	Spencer 👻	<u>*</u> ~
<u>#</u>	My Channels	My History	My Workbins	My Campaigns	Contact Directory	Interaction Se	ear			
اھ ∞	Select Workbin	navigate	Q. the tree	email-roution o	veue-inbound	>	2 interactio	ns in snapshot, taken	et 11:03:12 AM	0 0
R	trais	to select	а queue		al offer a	ntagines dev	Priority	Assigned To		e
	d enaite d enaite d enaite d enaite	r suffer-queue sufing-queue-intocund sufing-queue-intocund-ga for-intocund-email-postproc	realing		mark to p	noomerdan Derform an	n action			Ľ
	> 🖿 To assign > 🖿 Others	(nbound, less than 3 days)		1-2 of 2 10 - p	er page se Data			41 E	1af1 >	35
				Subject: Trial offer Fram: A/Wang@ma Te: web@mcr.de	ail.dom Y				15/03/2019 10	33:05 AM
				I saw an advertiserre V. Wang	nt about a trial offer from y	your company on soc	cial media. Can you plea	se send me more infor	nation?	

When you select an interaction in an interaction queue, the contents, notes, and case data are displayed in tabs at the bottom of the interaction queue list view.

To open an interaction to view or handle it, double-click it or click **Open**

6	Workspace Connec	t Monitor						4
8:1	My Channels	My History	My Workbins	М	ly Campaigns	Contact Dir	ectory Inte	raction Sear
٤	Select Workbin			email	routing-queu	e-inbound		
œ	My Workbins My Team Workbin	15		-	<u>п</u> /	~	ô	
-	 All My Interaction Qu Emails 	ieues			Subject		То	Prior
	🛍 All Emails				Trial off	er	web@mcr.dev	
	Y 🚔 All Inboun	d buffer-queue	\subset		Trial off	er	web@mcr.dev	
	👩 email-	routing-queue-inbound		3				
	🖬 email-	routing-queue-inbound-qa						5

Controls are displayed at the top of the interaction queue view that let you perform actions on the interaction that you mark. Mark interactions by clicking the check box next to them. The following actions might be available to you, depending on how your system is set up by your administrator or what interaction type you have marked:

• **Done** marks the interaction(s) as Done.

- **Delete** deletes the interaction(s).
- Move to Queue moves the interaction(s) to a different interaction queue
- **Move to Workbin** moves the interaction to the workbin of one of the agents that you supervise, or to one of your own workbins.
- Edit Case Information opens the Edit Case Information window to enable you to edit the content of the Case Data tab for the marked interaction(s).

How do I edit Case Information for interactions in Workbins and Queues?

	Workspace Connect Monitor					🔥 Inbound Ca	ills 0 🗸 🕒 Carole Spencer	~ <u>\$</u> ~
	My Channels My History	My Workbins	My Campaigns	Contact Direct	ory Interac	tion Sear		
٤	Select Workbin		email-routing-queu	e-inbound				
مە	My Workbins My Team Workbins		1 1	m 🖌 🗈		2 inter	actions in snapshot, taken at 10:43:1	7 AM 😋 🗖
3	 ✓ → My Interaction Queues ✓ ➡ Emails 		Subject		То	Priority	Assigned To	
	🖆 All Emails		Trial off	er	web@mcr.dev			2
	 All Inbound email-buffer-queue 		Trial off	er	web@mcr.dev			2
	email-routing-queue-inbound							
	🖆 email-routing-queue-inbound-qa							
	 queue-tor-inbound-email-postproi To assign (inbound, less than 3 days) 	cessing	1-2 of 2 10 🗙 per pa	ide			<< 1 of 1	> >>
	> 🖿 Others	:		.ge				
?				Select an) Subje Boug) E-ma Phon	nct ht phone from our store? il QA Request e Manufacturer	Warranty service	~
	Sup	arricolog and	Taona Laode nai	alat) Phon	e Modoi		
	\sum_{bac}	ervisors ana et un to edit	Case Informati	00	peci	ai Discount on monthly Si	IDS	
	$\int \frac{\partial e}{\partial r} dr$	interactions	stored in workh	ins -	Subs	cription Base Pricing	04/05/0010 10:01 00 00	1 ALL
		tanastian a			Subs	cription Date	24/06/2013 12:34:00 PM	
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	101100					

Supervisors and Team Leads might be set up to edit Case Information for interactions that are stored in a Workbin or Queue.

: Mark an interaction to enable the Edit Case Information icon.

Click the icon to open the Edit Case Information dialog box. The editing features of this dialog box work the same as the editing features of the Case Information area of an interaction window.

You can edit case information for multiple interactions by marking two or more interactions. The following rules apply to editing the case information of multiple interactions:

• The Edit Case Information dialog box displays a mix of all of the case information fields that are available in all of the marked interactions.

- Only the common editable fields, check boxes, and menus of the marked interactions are displayed.
- If an editable item has the same value for all of the marked interactions, that value is displayed in the editable field.
- If an editable item has different values for one or more of the marked interactions, the field is displayed as "Mixed Values".
- If you make an edit and you decide to undo it, click the 'Cancel icon: ${igodot}$

What next?

- Calls
- Chat
- Email
- Team Communicator
- Navigating Agent Desktop

Top 5 topics

- 1. Getting Started
- 2. Navigating Agent Desktop
- 3. Calls
- 4. Contacts
- 5. Contact and interaction history

Voicemail for Supervisors

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

You can access your voicemail account from the web or from local or remote telephones.

Before you can access your voicemail, you must set up your user profile. Your mailbox comes with a generic standard greeting. If you want to use a personal greeting or an extended absence greeting, you must record it.

Web access requires Chrome, Firefox, or Internet Explorer 9 or 10.

Access your voicemail from a local telephone

Your desktop telephone might have a Message Waiting Indicator (MWI) in the form of a light or an LED display, which indicates that this phone's mailbox has new messages waiting.

To access your voicemail from a telephone connected to your internal telephone system:

- 1. Press the **voicemail** key, if your phone includes one, or dial the voicemail access number. Your method of access depends upon your specific telephone model.
- 2. Enter your mailbox number and password, as required. If you are accessing your voicemail for the first time, you must change your password.
- 3. From the main menu, select from the following options:
 - Press 1 to play new messages. (Messages become old after 1 play.)
 - Press **3** to play old messages.
 - Press 4 to reach the greetings menu.
 - Press **5** to record your name or change your password.
 - Press 6 to access a group mailbox, if available to you. Press 1 and enter a group mailbox number or press 2 to hear a list of all available group mailboxes.
- 4. Use these commands while any message plays:
 - Press **1** to rewind 10 seconds.
 - Press 2 to pause or resume.

- Press **3** to forward 10 seconds.
- Press **4** to play a voice menu, which lists all commands for listeners.
- Press **5** to hear envelope information about the call, for example: message length (in H:M:S) and Caller ID of sender.
- Press 6 to forward the message.
- Press **7** to delete. (Message is saved if not deleted.)
- Press # (number sign) to go to the next message.
- Press * (asterisk) to cancel and return to the main menu.

Note: In the Telephone User Interface (TUI), mailboxes can be accessed only with mailbox credentials (mailbox number). Using DN, agent, or user credentials to access mailboxes is not supported.

Access your voicemail from a remote telephone

To access your voicemail from a telephone not connected to your internal telephone system:

- 1. Dial the voicemail access number. If you have dialed into a group mailbox, you can only play messages.
- 2. Enter your mailbox number and password. If you are accessing your voicemail for the first time, you must change your password.
- 3. Press # to confirm.
- 4. From the main menu, select from the following options:
 - Press 1 to play new messages. (Messages become old after 1 play.)
 - Press **3** to play old messages.
 - Press **4** to reach the greetings menu.
 - Press **5** to record your name or change your password.
- 5. Use these commands while any message plays:
 - Press **1** to rewind 10 seconds.
 - Press 2 to pause or resume.
 - Press 3 to forward 10 seconds.
 - Press **4** to play a voice menu, which lists all commands for listeners.
 - Press **5** to hear envelope information about the call, for example: message length (in H:M:S) and Caller ID of sender.
 - Press 6 to forward the message.
 - Press 7 to delete. (Message is saved if not deleted.)
 - Press # (number sign) to go to the next message.
 - Press * (asterisk) to cancel and return to the main menu.

Note: In the Telephone User Interface (TUI), mailboxes can be accessed only with mailbox credentials (mailbox number). Using DN, agent, or user credentials to access mailboxes is not supported.

Manage your greetings

Users can manage greetings for their personal mailboxes. Only users who are Group Mailbox Administrators can change greetings and passwords for group mailboxes.

To manage your greetings from a local or remote telephone, press 4 and use these commands:

- Press 1 to record an extended absence greeting.
- Press **2** to record a personal greeting.
- Press **5** to activate the standard greeting that inserts your recorded name into a standard message. For example: You have reached the mailbox of *play_recorded_name*.
- Press 6 to activate your personal greeting. Not available or played unless this greeting exists.
- Press 7 to activate your extended absence greeting. Not available or played unless this greeting exists.

After initiating each action, follow the audio prompts.

• Press * to exit the Greetings menu and return to main menu.

Forward Your Voicemail

- 1. Press 6.
- 2. Enter a mailbox number.
- 3. Press 1.

The voicemail is forwarded.

Notes

- Press * to cancel at any step.
- You cannot forward an expired voicemail.
- Forwarding a voicemail resets its retention limit in its destination mailbox.

Genesys Softphone

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

Genesys Softphone is an application that enables your computer and phone or headset to connect to the public phone system. This section describes how to use the Genesys Softphone.

This article tells you how to use Genesys Softphone on your workstation, including how to start Genesys Softphone, activate and register users, view device and user status, and make and receive calls.

Genesys Softphone in Connector Mode

For most Genesys Engage cloud users, Genesys Softphone is in Connector Mode and starts automatically when Windows starts up, you do not have to start Genesys Softphone yourself.

If you right-click the Softphone system tray icon, you are given one menu option, **Exit**. Selecting this option stops Softphone. You must restart Softphone to enable you to log in to Workspace.

Important

The Genesys Softphone UI described in the Standalone mode section is not available in Connector Mode.

Softphone status indicators

Genesys Softphone displays different icons in the system tray to let users know its status and if there are any warnings or errors.

If you see a warning icon, hover your mouse pointer over the icon to read a tooltip summary of the problem. This tooltip will include the type of protocol your Genesys Softphone is configured to implement: "SIP" or "WebRTC". Specify which type is displayed when reporting an incident to your Administrator.

System tray Softphone status icons

Icon	Condition
Ö	Waiting for agent login
00	Agent logged in and Softphone registered
•	Activation or registration error
Ω	Headset issue
.1	Voice quality is currently degraded
Ž	Microphone is muted

Genesys Softphone in Standalone Mode

If your system does not use Connector Mode, you can start the Genesys Softphone by double-clicking the Genesys Softphone shortcut on your desktop or by selecting it in your **Start** Menu.

To open the Genesys Softphone UI, right-click the Genesys Softphone (**B**) icon from the Icon Tray and select **Open**.



Softphone status indicators

Genesys Softphone displays different icons in the system tray to let users know its status and if there are any warnings or errors.

If you see a warning icon, hover your mouse pointer over the icon to read a tooltip summary of the problem. This tooltip will include the type of protocol your Genesys Softphone is configured to implement: "SIP" or "WebRTC." Specify which type is displayed when reporting an incident to your Administrator.

Icon	Condition
00	Registered
•	Registration error
Ω	Headset issue
al de la constante de la const	Voice quality is currently degraded

System tray Softphone status and warning icons

Icon	Condition
💋	Microphone is muted

Activating and registering the user

When the Genesys Softphone first starts, it reads the user's information from the Softphone.cfg file, and automatically registers the user.

To verify that the user is registered, after starting the Genesys Softphone, right-click the Softphone icon from the Icon Tray and hover over the **Connectivity** menu. You can register or un-register a connection by clicking and toggling the check marks. The notification area shows that the Softphone is active and ready to take calls.

1 1	 8041@SEPSDK01.us.int.genesyslab.com:5060;transport=udp 8042@SEPSDK01.us.int.genesyslab.com:5060;transport=udp 	
	Activate all	Open
	Deactivate all	Connectivity >
		Mute
		Exit
		1/18/2018

Selecting the input and output devices

The Genesys Softphone configures the input and output devices during start-up when it reads the list of devices from the Softphone.config file. However, if required, the softphone user can change the brand of device used while the Genesys Softphone is running.

To select an input or output device:

1. In the application, click the **devices** tab.

뎡 Genesys Softphone	×
8.5.401.05	
status calls devices	
Audio Input Device	
Microphone (2- High Definition Audio Device)	~
Audio Output Device	
Speakers (2- High Definition Audio Device)	~
Digital Audio (S/PDIF) (2- High Definition Audio Device) Speakers (Logitech Wireless Headset)	
Speakers (2- High Definition Audio Device)	
	0

- 2. Select the appropriate microphone from the **Input Device** drop-down list.
- 3. Select the appropriate speaker from the **Output Device** drop-down list.

Viewing the Softphone users and status

Each Genesys Softphone instance can have up to six SIP user accounts configured.

To view the number of users configured and their statuses, right-click the Softphone icon, and click **Open**. The **Genesys Softphone** window displays. Click the **status** tab.

g Genesys Softphone						×	
8.5.401.0	8.5.401.05						
status	calls	devices					
804	1 ^{SEPS}	SDK01.us.	int.genesyslab.com	:5060	Ok	0	
8042 SEPSDK01.us.int.genesyslab.com:5060			:5060	Ok	0		

Making and receiving calls

You can make and receive calls from the **calls** tab.

g Genesys Softphone	×
8.5.401.05	. ■
status calls devices	
Call connected	×
8041@SEPSDK01.us.int.genesyslab.com:506(∨ 8044	Call

From this tab, you can perform the following operations:

• Answer an incoming call—click the button of an *alerting* call to answer. If you were on another call, that call will be placed on hold.

- Hold a call—when you switch to another call, the currently active call is placed on hold.
- Retrieve a call—click the the line button of a call on hold to retrieve that call.
- Hangup a call—click the hangup button to terminate a call. You can terminate calls that are on hold.
- Dial and make a call—you can make a call by selecting an originating account (connection) from the connections combo box, entering a destination number, and clicking **Call**. Making a new call while another call is active places the existing call on hold.

g Genesys Softphone	×
8.5.401.05	
status calls devices	
8041@SEPSDK01.us.int.genesyslab.com:506(> 8044	Call
8041@SEPSDK01.us.int.genesyslab.com: \60;tra 8042@SEPSDK01.us.int.genesyslab.com: \60;tra	

Muting the microphone

The microphone button shows the current mute status, either muted or un-muted. Clicking the microphone button changes the status.

୍ଷ Ge	nesys So	ftphone					×
8.5.401.0	05					(∎
status	calls	devices					_
6 8 7	044	cted					X
8041@	SEPSDK0	1.us.int.ge	nesyslab.co	om:506C 🗸	8044		Call

Mute/un-mute functionality works on the application level and not the system level:

• The mute button is only available when there is an active call.

• Muting the microphone in the Softphone is done on the session level. The mute status does not depend on the selected devices nor on device presence and status. A session may be muted even if a microphone is not plugged in.

You may also mute/un-mute the microphone from the tray icon menu. To mute/un-mute the input device:

- 1. Right-click the Softphone icon, and click **Mute**.
- 2. From the same menu, click **Un-mute** un-mute the input device.

Important

The mute menu item is clickable only when the Genesys Softphone is in an active session.

Platform Administration

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

Welcome to the Platform Administration Help. This document introduces you to the GUI of Platform Administration and describes concepts and procedures relevant to using Platform Administration in your contact center.

About Platform Administration

Platform Administration introduces the next-generation user interface for Genesys that reduces both the overall operating costs and the time to deployment, by providing user-friendly interfaces that perform complex operations while at the same time preventing user error.

Configuration Manager

Within Platform Administration, Configuration Manager enables you to create and manage systemlevel configuration object.

The **Configuration Manager** page is a central location for viewing and managing the configuration objects used by your system.

Configuration objects, also known as Configuration Database objects, contain the data that Genesys applications and solutions require to operate in a particular environment. These objects are all contained in the Configuration Database.

Configuration Manager lists these objects by type. For example, configuration objects related to users and their accounts are listed under the **Accounts** heading.

Hover over a configuration object type to view a list of the related configuration objects on your system.

Naming Conventions

[+] Click here to reveal section

Because most objects in the Configuration Database mirror physical objects in your contact center (for example, switches, agents, and installed applications), this document uses an initial capital letter

for Configuration Database objects. For example, the word switch appears in lowercase when it refers to a physical switch in your contact center, but it is capitalized when it refers to the configuration object that mirrors your physical switch. Similarly, the word application appears in lowercase when it refers to a physical installation in your contact center, but it is capitalized when it refers to the configuration object that mirrors the installed program.

Common Object Properties

All objects have the following configuration properties and elements:

- **Name**—Names uniquely identify objects within a certain range. Therefore, the name, which can be up to 255 characters, is a required parameter for most types of objects. The exceptions are:
 - DNs and Agent Logins—Their unique numbers and codes identify them within a Switch.

The way you name objects in your environment is important. Consistent and sensible naming conventions make your configuration environment easier to understand and faster to browse, leading to a more maintainable and usable configuration.

Important

Although Platform Administration supports the full character set in object names, the use of certain characters can cause problems in the behavior of other Genesys applications. Therefore, avoid spaces, dashes, periods, or special characters in object names. Consider using underscores where you might normally use spaces or dashes.

The names you set for some types of objects must match the names of the entities that those objects represent elsewhere in an environment. For example, the names of Hosts must match the names given to the computers they represent in the data network environment.

• **State Enabled**—If checked, indicates that the entity represented by an object is in regular operating condition and can be used without any restrictions. If not checked, indicates that the entity represented by an object is being used in a non-production environment. Customer interactions cannot be directed to this target, even if operating information indicates that this object is available.

Disabling a folder or an object that is a parent to other objects also disables all objects within the folder or all child objects of that parent object.

For example:

• Disabling an Agent Group folder disables all Agent Groups configured within this folder.

However, if you disable a group of objects (for example, an Agent Group), the individual members of this group (in this example, Agents) remain enabled.

Accounts

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

The Accounts section of Configuration Manager enables you to configure the following objects:

- Access Groups
- Agent Groups
- Roles
- Users (Persons)

Access Groups

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

Access Groups are groups of Users who need to have the same set of permissions for Configuration Database objects.

In many cases, users fall into a small number of categories with similar access needs. A team of agents all performing the same tasks often has identical access needs. Two or three people responsible for maintaining a specific site of the contact center may also have identical access needs. You can greatly simplify access control by adding individuals to Access Groups and then setting permissions for those groups.

Overview

Display Options

The Access Groups list shows the Access Groups that are in your environment.

Important

Access Groups that are disabled will appear grayed out in the list.

To select or de-select multiple objects at once, click **Select**.

Click the name of an Access Group to view additional information about the object.

Change Members

Changing the Members of an Access Group

Changing Access Group Members

To change the members of an Access Group, perform the following actions:

- 1. In the header, click **Configuration**.
- 2. Under the **Accounts** heading, click **Access Groups**.
- 3. In the **Members** tab, click **Add** to add a User. To remove Users, click the check box beside each User that you want to remove and click **Remove**.
- 4. When you are done, click **Save**.

Agent Groups

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

An Agent Group is a logical grouping of Agents. Agent Groups are typically set up to provide particular sets of contact-center services.

Overview

Display Options

The **Agent Groups** list shows the Agent Groups that are in your environment.

Important

Agent Groups that are disabled appear grayed out in the list.

To select or de-select multiple objects at once, click **Select**.

Modify

Modifying Agent Group Objects

Important

You must have sufficient permissions assigned by your Administrator to view and modify Agent Groups.

To modify an Agent Group object, perform the following actions:

- 1. In the header, click **Configuration**.
- 2. Under the **Accounts** heading, click **Agent Groups**.
- 3. Select an Agent Group from the list and click Edit.

You have the ability to:

- Change the name of an Agent Group.
- Manage Supervisors for an Agent Group.
- Assign Agents to an Agent Group.
- Manage Origination DNs for an Agent Group.

Enabling or Disabling

Enabling or Disabling Agent Groups

- 1. In the header, click **Configuration**.
- 2. Under the **Accounts** heading, click **Agent Groups**.
- 3. Click the check box beside each Agent Group that you want to enable or disable.
- 4. Click **More**. In the pop-up menu, select **Enable** to enable the selected Agent Groups, or select **Disable** to disable the selected Agent Groups.
- 5. A dialog box appears to confirm the action. Click **OK** to continue.

Agent Skills

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

Overview

Display Options

The Skills list shows the Skills that are in your environment.

Important

Skills that are disabled will appear grayed out in the list.

You can sort the items in the list by clicking a column head. Clicking a column head a second time reverses the sort order.

To select or de-select multiple objects at once, click **Select**.

Add/Remove

Add or Remove Skills for an Agent

To add or remove skills for an Agent's profile, perform the following actions:

1. In the header, click **Configuration**.

- 2. Under the **Accounts** heading, click **Persons**.
- 3. Select the Agent to be modified.
- 4. Select the **Skills** tab.
- 5. Add or Remove skills for this agent.
- 6. Press Save

Roles

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

Roles define what you can do in a given application. In Platform Administration, roles and their privileges are controlled by the use of Role objects, which are assigned to Users (including Agents) and Access Groups. Roles are application-specific, and must be defined for each application that supports them.

Overview

Display Options

You can sort the items in the list by clicking a column head. Clicking a column head a second time reverses the sort order.

To select or de-select multiple objects at once, click **Select**.

Users (Persons)

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

The **Persons** window is a central location for creating, provisioning, and managing user accounts.

Users are the contact-center personnel, including agents, who need access to Genesys applications. Agents are users who handle customer interactions directly.

Overview

User (Persons) list

The **Persons** list shows the Users that are in your environment. You can quickly distinguish between Users and Agents by looking at the icon to the left of the object name.

Important

Users that are disabled appear grayed out in the list.

To filter the contents of this list:

• Click Show Quick Filter and type the name or partial name of an object in a Quick Filter field.

After you click **Show Quick Filter**, the following buttons are available:

- Group By—Group objects by various criteria.
- Column Picker—Select which columns to display in this list.
- Click a column head to sort items in the list alphabetically. Click the column head again to reverse the sort order.
- To select or de-select multiple objects at once, click **Select**.

Procedures

Possible Procedures

To create a new User, click **New**. To view or edit details of an existing object, click the name of the object, or click the check box beside an object and click **Edit**.

To delete one or more objects, click the check box beside the object(s) in the list and click **Delete**. You can also delete individual objects by clicking on the object and then clicking **Delete**.

Otherwise, click **More** to perform the following tasks:

- **Clone**—Copy a User.
- Move To—Move a User to another folder.
- Enable or disable Users.
- Create a folder.

Important

When a User is either disabled or removed, Platform Administration invalidates all sessions that are associated with this User. Upon the User's next action, he or she will be redirected to the login page.

Click the name of a User to view additional information about the object.

Creating User accounts

To create a user account, perform the following steps:

- 1. In the header, click **Configuration**.
- 2. Under the **Accounts** heading, click **Persons**.
- 3. In the **Persons** window, click **New**.
- 4. Enter the following information. For some fields, you can either enter the name of a value or click **Browse** to select a value from a list:
 - User Name—Enter the email address of the user.
 - **Agent**—A check box that you can select to indicate that this User is an Agent. If selected, additional fields appear.
 - First Name—The first name of the User.
 - Last Name—The last name of the User.

- E-mail Address—The email address of the User.
- **Employee ID**—A code of up to 64-characters that identifies this User within the contact-center staff. You must specify a value for this property and that value must be unique.
- **Password**—A password no longer than 64-characters that this User must use to log in to the environment. You cannot view the existing password. When creating a new user, this field is always enabled. When editing an existing user, this field is enabled only if **Reset Password** is not selected.

Important

Passwords can be subject to format rules.

- **Confirm Password**—Confirmation of the password entered. When creating a new user, this field is always enabled. When editing an existing user, this field is enabled only if **Force Password Reset on Next Login** is not selected.
- Force Password Reset on Next Login—A check box that, if selected, will prompt the User to enter a new password upon the next login.
- **External ID**—This setting applies only if your environment is using external authentication, either LDAP or RADIUS. This may be the user name in the external authentication system. For LDAP, it might be a whole, or partial, LDAP URL corresponding to RFC 2255.
- Tenant—N/A
- **State Enabled**—If selected, indicates that the object is in regular operating condition and can be used without any restrictions.
- 5. If **Agent** is selected, enter the following information. For some fields, you can either enter the name of a value or click **Browse** to select a value from the following list:
 - **Default Place**—The Place assigned to this Agent, by default. This optional parameter applies to a limited number of configurations, in particular those where a real-time association between a Place and an Agent cannot be established through a telephony login procedure.
 - Capacity Rule—N/A
 - Cost Contract—N/A
 - Site—N/A
- 6. In the **Member Of** tab, click the **Add** button to add an Access Group.
- 7. If **Agent** is selected, click the **Apply** button to display the following tabs.
 - In the Skills tab, click the **Add** button to add a Skill.
 - Enter the following information in the pop-up window that displays on your screen:
 - Skill—The Skill assigned to this Agent.
 - Level—The relative measure of the Agent's proficiency in this Skill.
 - In the **Agent Logins** tab, click the **Add** button to add an Agent Login.
 - Enter the following information in the pop-up window that displays on your screen:
 - Agent Login—The Agent Login code assigned to this Agent. You cannot assign an Agent Login

to more than one Agent.

- Wrap-up Time—N/A
- 8. Click the **Save** button.

Passwords

Setting and Resetting Passwords

There are multiple methods to change or reset a password. Choose a procedure below:

Resetting a Password for a Single User

- 1. In the header, click **Configuration**.
- 2. Under the **Accounts** heading, click **Persons**.
- 3. In the **Persons** window, click the name of the user for whom to reset the password. A new window opens.
- 4. In the new window, select Force Password Reset on Next Login.
- 5. Click **Save**.

Important

The **Force Password Reset** button is grayed out if the password has already been flagged to be reset by the User. It remains grayed out until the User logs in and clears the flag by resetting the password.

Specifying a New Password for a Single User

- 1. In the header, click **Configuration**.
- 2. Under the **Accounts** heading, click **Persons**.
- 3. In the **Persons** window, click the name of the user for whom to change the password. A new window opens.
- 4. In the new window, type a new password in the **Password** field and confirm the password by typing it in the **Confirm Password** field.
- 5. Click Save.

Routing/eServices

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

The Routing/eServices section of Configuration Manager enables you to configure the following object:

• Business Attributes

Business Attributes

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

Business Attributes are objects that serve as containers of a particular type for Attribute Value objects. Instances of this object are available enumerations (classifications), such as Media Type, Service Type, and others.

Important

Business Attribute names and values may be stored using UTF-8. This enables the attributes and their values to be entered and displayed in any language, including non-ASCII languages such as Japanese. If required, two or more languages can be combined for a single Business Attribute.

Overview

Business Attributes Overview

The **Business Attributes** list shows the Business Attributes that are in your environment.

Important

Business Attributes that are disabled appear grayed out in the list.

You can sort the items in the list by clicking a column head. Clicking a column head a second time reverses the sort order. You can add or remove columns by clicking **Select Columns**.

To select or de-select multiple objects at once, click **Select**.

Environment

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

The Environment section of Configuration Manager enables you to configure the following object:

Scripts

Scripts

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

Scripts identify processing scenarios or treatments that can be applied to customer interactions. For example, an Alarm Reaction Script specifies how to react when an Alarm Condition is triggered.

Important

Depending on the application type, a scenario or treatment itself might be part of the Script object, in which case it is listed in **Options** tab of the Script object.

Display Options

Display Options

The **Scripts** list shows the Scripts that are in your environment.

Important

Scripts that are disabled will appear grayed out in the list.

You can sort the items in the list by clicking a column head. Clicking a column head a second time reverses the sort order. You can add or remove columns by clicking **Select Columns**.

To select or de-select multiple objects at once, click **Select**.

Switching

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

The Switching section of Configuration Manager enables you to configure the following objects:

- Agent Logins
- DNs
- DN Groups

Agent Logins

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

Agent Logins are unique codes defined within a Switch and assigned to agents. They identify which Agent is working at which Place during a particular working session.

The configuration of Agent Logins in the Configuration Database must match exactly the configuration of those Agent Logins in the switching system. Before adding or deleting a particular Agent Login, make sure that the same change was made in the database of the switching system.

When you specify Agent Logins as objects in a Switch, they are not associated with any particular agents. For information about how to assign Agent Logins to Agents, refer to Assigning Agent Logins to Agents.

Overview

Agent Logins Overview

The **Agent Logins** list shows the Agent Logins that are in your environment.

Important

- The Switches list displays when you select Agent Logins in Configuration Manager. To access the Agent Logins list, you must first select a Switch object and then an Agent Logins folder.
- Agent Logins that are disabled appear grayed out in the list.

To select or de-select multiple objects at once, click **Select**.
Procedures

Possible Procedures from this Panel

To create a new Agent Login object, click **New**. To view or edit details of an existing object, click the name of the object, or click the check box beside an object and click **Edit**.

To delete one or more objects, click the check box beside the object(s) in the list and click **Delete**. You can also delete individual objects by clicking on the object and then clicking **Delete**.

Important

When you delete an Agent Login, the Agent Login is removed from the Configuration Database and from any Agent to which it is assigned. This might affect the configuration of a particular Agent in the contact center. Before deleting an Agent Login, consider viewing the dependencies tab to identify the Agent to which this Login is assigned. If you want to remove only the Agent Login from the Agent to which it is assigned, but leave it still existing in the Configuration Database and available for assignment to another Agent, open the User Account for the Agent, remove the Agent Login from the Agent, and click **Save**.

Otherwise, select the check box beside one or more objects and click **More** to perform the following tasks:

- Clone—Copy an Agent Login.
- Move To—Move an Agent Login to another folder.
- Enable or disable Agent Logins
- Create a folder.

Click the name of an Agent Login to view additional information about the object.

Creating Agent Login Objects

To create an Agent Login object, perform the following actions:

- 1. In the header, click **Configuration**.
- 2. Under the Switching heading, click Agent Logins.
- 3. The **Switches** list displays.
- 4. Click the Switch object in which you wish to create an Agent Login.
- 5. Click the Agent Logins folder in which you wish to create an Agent Login.
- 6. Click **New**.

- 7. Enter the following information. For some fields, you can either enter the name of a value or click **Browse** to select a value from a list:
- **Code**—The Agent Login code. You must specify a value for this property, and that value must be unique within the Switch. Once you set the value, you cannot change it.
- **Switch**—The Switch to which this Agent Login belongs. This value is automatically set, based on the Switch being viewed in the **Agent Logins** list.
- **Override**—N/A
- Switch-specific Type—N/A
- Password—N/A
- Confirm Password—N/A
- Tenant—N/A
- **State Enabled**—If selected, indicates that the object is in regular operating condition and can be used without any restrictions.
- Click Save.

DNs

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

DNs are communication devices, uniquely identified by their directory numbers (DNs), where customer voice interactions reside and are handled.

Because most types of DNs represent the actual devices of the telephone system, their specification in the Configuration Database must always correspond to their Switch settings. Remember that Platform Administration has no way of verifying this correspondence.

As a general rule, changes made to DN configurations in the Configuration Database must always follow the changes made to DNs within the telephone system, and never the other way around.

Overview

Display Options

The **DNs** list shows the DNs that are in your environment.

Important

- The **Switches** list displays when you select **DNs** in Configuration Manager. To access the **DNs** list, you must first select a Switch object and then a DN folder.
- DNs that are disabled appear grayed out in the list.

You can sort the items in the list by clicking a column head. Clicking a column head a second time reverses the sort order. You can add or remove columns by clicking **Select Columns**.

Click **Group By** to group objects by various criteria.

To select or de-select multiple objects at once, click **Select**.

Procedures

Possible Procedures from this Panel

To create a new DN object, click **New**. To view or edit details of an existing object, click the name of the object, or click the check box beside an object and click **Edit**.

To delete one or more objects, click the check box beside the object(s) in the list and click **Delete**. You can also delete individual objects by clicking on the object and then clicking **Delete**.

Important

When you delete a DN, it is removed from the Configuration Database and from any DN Group of which it is a member. If you want to remove only the DN from a DN Group of which it is a member, but leave it still existing in the Configuration Database and available for assignment to another DN Group, you must remove it from the DNs tab of the DN Group.

Otherwise, click **More** to perform the following tasks:

- Clone—Copy a DN.
- **Move To**—Move a DN to another folder.
- Enable or disable DNs.
- Create a folder.

Click the name of a DN to view additional information about the object.

Creating DN Objects

To create a DN object, perform the following actions:

- 1. In the header, click **Configuration**.
- 2. Under the **Switching** heading, click **DNs**. The **Switches** list displays.
- 3. Click the Switch object in which you wish to create a DN.
- 4. Click the DN folder in which you wish to create a DN.
- 5. Click New.
- 6. Enter the following information. For some fields, you can either enter the name of a value or click **Browse** to select a value from a list:
 - Number—A directory number assigned to this DN within the Switch. You must specify a value for

this property, and that value must be unique within the Switch for all DN types. Once you set the value, you cannot change it.

- **Type**—The type of the DN. This value must be set to **Extension**.
- **Switch**—The Switch to which this DN belongs. This value is automatically set, based on the Switch being viewed in the **DNs** list.
- Association—N/A
- Register—N/A
- Alias—N/A
- Route Type—N/A
- **DN Group**—The DN Group to which this DN belongs.
- **Override**—N/A
- Login ID—N/A
- Switch-specific Type-N/A
- Number of Trunks—N/A
- Tenant—N/A
- **State Enabled**—If selected, indicates that the object is in regular operating condition and can be used without any restrictions.
- 7. Click Save.

DN Groups

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

DN Groups are logical groupings of DNs. You can use DN Groups in network-level routing algorithms and in some types of statistics.

Although a DN Group can contain DNs that belong to a number of different Switches, you can receive correct statistical information about this DN Group only if the reporting applications connect to the servers associated with those Switches.

Overview

Display Options

The **DN Groups** list shows the DN Groups that are in your environment.

Important

DN Groups that are disabled appear grayed out in the list.

You can sort the items in the list by clicking a column head. Clicking a column head a second time reverses the sort order. You can add or remove columns by clicking **Select Columns**.

To select or de-select multiple objects at once, click **Select**.

Agents

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

Agents are Users who handle customer interactions directly. The **Agents** window lists all Agents in your environment (or Tenant, if you are in a multi-tenant environment). You can only see those objects for which you have access.

You can filter the contents of this list in several ways:

- Click **Show Quick Filter** and type a search term in the **Quick Filter** field. The list updates dynamically to show items that match the text in the **Quick Filter** field.
- Click **Show Column Filter** to show search fields for each column header. Enter a search term in one of these fields to quickly search the column for the search term.
- Click the cube icon to open the **Tenant Directory** window. In this window, click the Tenant that you want to select. Use the **Quick Filter** field to filter the Tenant list.

You can sort the items in the list by clicking a column head. Clicking a column head a second time reverses the sort order.

Creating an Agent

To create a new Agent, click Add in the Platform Administration Agents window.

[+] Show Procedure

Procedure: Creating an Agent

Purpose: To create an Agent in the Agents window.

Steps

- 1. Click Add. The Add Agent window appears.
- 2. Enter the following information. For some fields, you can either enter the name of a value or click **Browse** to select a value from a list:
 - User Information
 - **User Name**—The name that this User should use to log into the environment. You must specify a value for this property, and that value must be unique within the Configuration Database.
 - First Name—The first name of this User.
 - Last Name—The last name of this User.
 - **External ID**—This setting applies only if your environment is using external authentication, either LDAP or RADIUS. This may be the user name in the external authentication system. For LDAP, it might be a whole, or partial, LDAP URL corresponding to RFC 2255.
 - Email—The email address of this User.
 - **Employee ID**—A code of up to 64-characters that identifies this User within the contactcenter staff. You must specify a unique value for this property.
 - **Password**—A password no longer than 64-characters that this User must use to log in to the environment. You cannot view the existing password.

Important

Passwords can be subject to format rules.

- **Organization**—The folder in which the Person object for this User is stored.
- **Default Number**—The phone number of this User. This field is used to create the associated DN, Place, and Agent Login objects for this User. Platform Administration uses existing objects, if available.
- Skills
 - You can add Skills to the Agent by:
 - Selecting an existing Skill—In the Skills section, select existing Skills from a list to add to the Agent. To select a Skill, click the check box beside the Skill and enter a numerical value in the Rating field.
- Agent Groups
 - You can add the Agent to an Agent Group by clicking the check box beside an item in the list.

3. Click Save.

Important

When adding an Agent in **Hidden** mode, Platform Administration also makes the following configuration changes:

- Create Agent Logins in each Switch, using information that was entered in the **Default Number** field.
- Create the User object and associate Agent Logins to the User object. Wrapup Time for each Agent Login is set to 0.

Other Actions

Once you select an Agent, you can:

- Edit Agent Information—Select an Agent and click Edit to edit Agent information. If you edit the Default Number field:
 - If this field is emptied, the Agent is disassociated from the current Place and its Agent Login objects are emptied.
 - If a new value is given, the agent is associated with a new Place, DN, and Agent Login that match the value. New objects are created, if they do not already exist. Existing objects are emptied and not deleted.
- 2. Copy an Agent—Select an Agent and click Clone to make a copy of the Agent object.
- 3. Change State—Select an Agent and click either **Enable** or **Disable** to change the state of an Agent.

Important

- Agents that are disabled appear grayed out in the list.
- When a User is either disabled or removed, Platform Administration invalidates all sessions associated with this User. Upon the User's next action, he or she will be redirected to the login page.

To delete one or more Agents, click the check box beside the Agent(s) in the list and click **Delete**.

Important

When deleting an Agent, Platform Administration does not delete the DN, Place, or Agent Login objects assigned to the Agent.

Gplus Adapter User Guide (v8)

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

Welcome to the *Gplus Adapter User Guide*. This guide provides all the information you need to start working with the adapter in your environment.

The Gplus Adapter can be implemented in two different options:

- **Gplus Adapter for Salesforce** is a soft phone that can be embedded in your Salesforce sales or service console or be accessed in a separate window that is launched from a **Phone** icon. The standard adapter has a fixed size and therefore the features and functionality is designed for a small screen space.
- **Gplus Adapter for Salesforce Agent Desktop** is an enhanced soft phone that has a larger window size and thus provides many of the same features and functionality as the Genesys Workspace Agent Desktop.

Click any of the topics below for details.

Gplus Adapter for Salesforce

This chapter explains the features and functionality of this product.

Getting Started

Handling an Incoming Call

Chatting with a Customer

Gplus Adapter for Salesforce - Agent Desktop Option

This chapter explains the features and functionality of this product.

Gplus Adapter for Saleforce - Agent Desktop Option

Gplus Adapter for Salesforce (v8)

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

As an agent, you'll be handling calls and making sure that you keep on top of your KPIs. Gplus Adapter is your softphone for handling calls (both inbound and outbound) and other interactions, such as chat or emails. The softphone is launched from your Contact management or ticket management system.

Important

What you see in the adapter depends on your contact center and your role within it, so you might not be able to do or see all the things covered in this help. If you think you should be able to do or see something you can't, check with your supervisor or system administrator.

To get quickly up and running with your Gplus Adapter for Salesforce, see Getting Started.

Getting started (v8)

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

Now that you know what the Gplus Adapter is, you're probably wondering how to use it. Let's get started.

How do I log in?



Open a browser (if your system uses a web-based phone, use Chrome) and enter the link for the CRM or ticket application that your supervisor gave you. The Adapter is either in the left pane or you can launch it by clicking **Phone** in the bottom right corner of the screen—it's one or the other, depending on how your administrators have configured the CRM.

Depending on how your administrator has configured the adapter, you might also see a secondary login page where you're prompted to enter the name of a place, a phone number, or enter a queue.

See Logging in for more details.

How Do I Start Taking Calls?



Typically, your status will be **Not Ready** after you log in. Keep in mind that your administrator might have configured your status to be set to **Ready** after login, so it is a good idea to check your status.

You can see your status in the Gplus Adapter for Salesforce on the agent status bar at the top of the adapter. You can also hover over the status with your mouse to see more details about login time, phone number, overall state, and media channel state.

You can update your status on all channels that you are logged into or update your status on a single channel:

- To update your overall status, click the agent status bar, and select a new status.
- To update your status for a particular media channel, click the main menu, select **Channels** to see the list of channels, click the white agent status box, and then select a new status from the list.

For more information about changing your status, including a video that demonstrates how to do it, see Changing your status.

How do I handle customer interactions?



When a call, chat, or email is directed to you, you'll receive a "toast" pop-up in the bottom right-hand corner of your screen. You might also hear a sound.

To answer it, click **Accept**. (If you do not accept, it will go to the next available agent and your status will change to **Not Ready**.)

- Go here to learn about handling calls.
- Go here to learn about handling chats.

To get you started, here are some common call handling features:

C places the caller on **hold**.

C restores the call.



instantly **transfers** the call to a contact that you select.

ends the call.

Call to 919677

calls back the participant that is disconnected from the active call. You can call back a disconnected participant by using the Participants drop down.

Your organization might require you to note a reason for the call (or a *disposition*). If so, after the call is complete, click **Disposition** and select one of the items from the list. Then you can click **Mark Done** to complete the interaction.

Depending on how your organization is set up, you might now enter an **After Call Work** state. This is a period of time during which you would remain in a **Not Ready** state to allow time for completing other tasks related to the call. When this period ends, you automatically return to a ready state and can again receive calls.

Logging in (v8)

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

The adapter is either in the left pane or you can launch it by clicking **Phone** in the bottom right corner of the screen—it's one or the other, depending on how your administrators have configured the CRM. If your CRM is configured for single sign-on, you don't need to log in into your Gplus Adapter. When you launch the Adapter, you should have immediate access. If your CRM isn't configured for single sign-on, you are prompted to log in.

If your Adapter is located in the bottom right of the screen, you can also undock the Adapter by clicking the arrow at the top right of the Adapter. This opens the Adapter in a new browser window that you can resize and drag to a new location. If you want to redock the window, just click the arrow again and the window returns to the standard location.

How do I log in to the Adapter?



If you are prompted to log in, enter your Genesys username (such as an email address) and password and click **Log In**. If you have logged in before, your username should already be entered for you.

Depending on how your administrator has configured the adapter, you might also see a secondary login page where you're prompted to enter the name of a place, a phone number, or enter a queue.

If you have logged into the Adapter before, the login page automatically inputs your last known place. Most often, you can accept the last known place. If you have changed your place, phone number, or queue, you must update the field before you click **Log In**.

Changing your password



If your password has expired, you are prompted to change your password.

If needed, contact your administrator for password rules.

Adapter main view



After you log in, the main view is displayed. From this view, you can change your status, navigate among your channels, and make a call by using Team Communicator or the **Dial Pad** tab.

When you first log in, notice that your agent status is set for you — for instance, it could be **Not Ready**. The default state is determined by your system administrator. If your status is not already set to ready, change your status to **Ready**.

Tip

After refreshing the page or after a call is completed, you must click anywhere within Salesforce or the adapter. If you don't, screen pops may fail to occur.

Logging out



To log off all channels and sign out of Gplus Adapter for Salesforce, click the menu button then select **Sign Out**. The adapter returns you to the login page, where you can enter your credentials again, if needed.

When you log out, all interactions are terminated and do not resume when you log back in again; therefore, ensure that your interactions are complete before logging out and closing your browser window.

Tip

You can't sign out if you have any active calls. If you try, the following error message is displayed. You must click **OK** before you can continue working with the adapter.

The page at syour IP addres	ss> says:	
All interactions must be closed be	fore logging out.	
	ОК	
	ОК	

Changing Your Status (v8)

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

You can see your status in the Gplus Adapter for Salesforce on the agent status bar at the top of the adapter. You can also hover over the status with your mouse to see more details about login time, phone number, overall state, and media channel state.



The following video gives you a demonstration on how to change your status on a particular channel:



Status choices

When you change your status, you choose from a list of states set by your administrator. Generally, you'll see **Ready**, **Not Ready**, and **After Call Work**, but you could also see variations of these options with specific reasons.

Here's a table to describe at the status choices you might see in your adapter:

[+] Show table

Status	Icon	Description
Ready	${\boldsymbol{\oslash}}$	You're ready to start accepting calls.
Mixed status	0	Your status is Not Ready on at least one of your logged-in channels.
Not Ready	b	You're not ready to accept calls. You might also see options such as Not Ready - Lunch .
After Call Work	Ø	You're not ready to accept calls because you're completing some admin duties for a previous call. You might also see options such as After Call Work - Verification .
Log Off	\odot	Log off all channels. You can log off all channels on your adapter and still remain logged into the adapter.

Tip

Your environment might be configured to automatically change your status:

- When a call ends, your status might be set to After Call Work .
- When you click **Mark Done**, your status might be changed from **After Call Work** to **Ready**, **Not Ready**, or some other value, .

Updating your overall status



If you're logged in to multiple channels, selecting a new status from the status bar changes the status across all channels. Your overall agent status only considers the status of the channels that you are logged into. For example, if you are logged into the voice channel and in **Ready** state, but not logged into the chat channel at all, your global agent status indicates that you are in a global **Ready** state.

To update your overall status, click the agent status bar, and select a new status.

Updating your status on a single channel



To update your status for a particular media channel, click the main menu, select **Channels** to see the list of channels, click the white agent status box, and then select a new status from the list.

Navigating to a Channel (v8)

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

You can navigate to a different media channel in the Gplus Adapter for Salesforce by selecting the channel icon at the bottom of the adapter.



You can also view details about all your channels through the main menu: click **Channels** to see the list of channels that you're configured to use. You can use channel list to change your status on a particular channel.

Handling calls (v8)

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

The Genesys Gplus Adapter provides you with controls and features that let you handle voice interactions with contacts or internal targets (such as other agents).

How do I handle calls in the adapter?

Link to video

When you navigate to the voice media channel, you'll see the default view where you can:

- Handle an incoming call
- Dial a call
- Transfer a call
- Perform an instant conference call
- Initiate a consultation
- Call back a disconnected party
- Record a call

Adapter Main View



Once you have an active call — because you called someone or someone called you — the main voice channel view changes to the call view. This view has two main areas: call toolbar and call details.

When you have an active call, the call toolbar displays icons for actions that you can perform during a call. Depending on the Adapter configuration, you might see some or all of the following toolbar icons:

Icon	Description	
C.	Ends the call.	
	Places the call on hold. After the call is hold, the Retrieve button is displayed.	
C	Tip If your contact center is configured to display hold time duration, the call timer in the top-right of the Adapter window resets to display how long your call is on hold. When you take the call off hold, the timer returns to showing the duration of the call again.	

Icon	Description
e	Redirects the call to another contact you select using Team Communicator. See Transferring a Call for details.
لا	Starts a voice conference instantly with the current caller and another contact that you select using Team Communicator. See Performing an Instant Conference for details.
С.	Starts a voice conference instantly with the current caller and another contact that you select using Team Communicator. See Performing an Instant Conference for details.
***	Shows the keypad. You can use this to enter digits when you're navigating voice menus or prompts. Type or select the digits, and then press Enter on your keyboard.
2	Starts a consultation with another contact before transferring or conferencing the call to that contact. See Initiating a Consultation for details.
٩	Pauses call recording. See Recording a Call for details.

Call Details

The call details view shows you all the data the adapter has about the call, and it provides fields that you can edit to add more information:

- Case Information
- Participants
- Disposition
- Notes

Case Information

≡	🕑 Helen Jack	*	0
0 7	201	00):52
٤	© ♥ ♥ Ⅲ ₫	Ľ	-
Case	Information	~	
Origin	n Ind call from		Ζ
7201			
Subje Phon	e ct e Call to gpluscrm		
Targe ?:Nev	e t vCustomer >=1		
Parti	cipants	~	
- (3064429052		-
	C F		

The Case Information section shows you read-only information about the call — the exact information is determined by your administrator.

Here are a few examples of some information you might see in your call view:

- Origin
- Target
- Contact name
- Call type
- Account information
- Subject

Depending how your administrator configured your agent, you might be able to add, edit, or delete case information. For more information, see How Do I Edit Case Information?

Case information fields might can contain a URL that you can click to access more information.

Participants



The Participants section shows you read-only information about who else is on the call and the state of the participant (Ringing, Connected, Ended, and so on). This section is especially helpful when you're trying to keep track of who is participating in a conference call.

From the Participants section, you can also call back a participant that was disconnected from the current call. To call back, expand the **Participants** drop down, hover over the participant number and click the **Call to** action. The call is established as a normal outbound call.

Object Association

	🕝 Carol Turner	*	0
C 5	064429052	00):28
۴	હ લ ૯ Ⅲ જ		
Parti	cipants		^ ^
• (C 5064429052		
Obje	ct Association		
Se	lect Association	~)
Dien	osition		
ызр	osition		
No	Disposition	*	
Note	s		~
	t e =		•
	Voice Chat		

During a call or as part of your after-call work, you can associate the interaction with a Salesforce object, such as a customer record. The **Object Association** menu lists options that are related to the object tabs that are displayed in Salesforce.

To understand the connection between the **Object Association** menu and Salesforce objects, consider this scenario:

- 1. You accept a call from John Smith. Salesforce automatically displays John Smith's information in a tab. In the adapter, **John Smith** becomes an option in the **Object Association** menu.
- 2. You then open another Salesforce tab to display information about another customer named Willard Clinton. In the adapter, **Willard Clinton** is added as another option on the **Object Association** list.

Important

- If your contact center does not permit you to edit case data, the **Object Association** menu is not displayed.
- Avoid opening the Adapter in multiple browser tabs. Object association works only in a single browser tab.

Disposition



If configured by your administrator, you can change the disposition for a call either during the call or as part of your after-call work. You can use this field to record the business outcome of the call. To update, click the drop-down list, and then select a disposition. Ensure that you don't click **Mark Done** first before you select a disposition. You can't make any further changes after you click **Mark Done**.

Notes



If configured by your administrator, you can add notes either during the call or as part of your after call work. To update, just enter your comments in the text field. Ensure that you don't click **Mark Done** first before you add a note. You can't make any further changes after you click **Mark Done**.
Finishing a call



When your call is over, either because the other party left the call or you clicked **Hang up** , you might need to update some information in the call details area (such as disposition or notes). Your adapter might be configured to automatically change your status to **After Call Work** to give you time to complete this task; if not, you can change the status yourself. Your adapter might be also configured to automatically mark the call as done as soon as the call is over.

After you finish your after-call work, you can click **Mark Done**, which completes the call and sends you back to the main voice channel view. At this time, your status might automatically change to **Ready**, **Not Ready**, or some other value; otherwise, you have to change it yourself.

If you are finishing multiple calls, just click the tab for a call, enter any necessary information in the call details area, and click **Mark Done**. Then, move on to your next call tab.

Answer incoming calls (v8)

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

You can start receiving calls as soon as you set your status to **Ready** on the voice channel in the Gplus Adapter for Salesforce.

How do I accept a call?



When you get a call, the adapter's incoming call screen displays. You can Accept or Reject the call,

see the amount of time since the call came in, and see the call's state. You also see the call details area, which displays sections for Case Information, Participants, Disposition, and Notes. You can review this information before deciding whether to accept or reject the call. Take a few moments to identify the components of the incoming call screen.

Another visual indicator that you have calls waiting is a red circle with a number displayed on the **Voice** icon at the bottom on the adapter. The number indicates how many invitations are pending. This is useful for when incoming calls are waiting for you while you are on another screen in the adapter or working in another channel.



If you reject the call, you'll be taken back to the main view for the voice channel. If you accept the call, you'll see a list of Call Actions you can take in the call toolbar area.

Important

If your administrator has configured it, you might also see related information about the caller in Salesforce. This information might be displayed either while the call is ringing or after you click **Accept**. For example, if the caller already exists in the Salesforce contact database, you might see the Edit Contact screen.

You can work with the standard call actions, or you can modify the call data by setting the disposition or adding notes about the call.

How do I accept a second call?



While you're on an active call, you might get another unrelated direct call from someone else. If this happens, the adapter opens a new tab and shows you the same call overview information with the option to accept.

Tip

You don't see **Reject** in this scenario because rejecting a call puts it back in the system so it can be routed to another available agent. We don't want that to happen if someone is trying to call you directly.

As soon as you accept the new call, the adapter puts your original call on hold. You can go back to

your original call by selecting the corresponding tab and clicking **Retrieve** —this puts your second call on hold. If you have more than two active calls, the rest are displayed in a dropdown list next to the tabs.

Dial a call (v8)

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

You can use the Gplus Adapter for Salesforce to make calls to contacts by using the dial pad, using Team Communicator, or using click-to-dial.

In some contact centers, you can choose a Caller Identification to be displayed on the phone of the contact that you are calling.

Using the dial pad



Making a call by using the dial pad is simple—just click the numbers you want to dial (or enter them manually in the phone number field) and click **Dial**.

Using Team Communicator



Team Communicator is a powerful tool you can use to search for contacts within your organization or outside your organization and then start a call with that contact. The types of contacts that are available to you in Team Communicator are configured by your administrator — you might not see all the fields and buttons that are described in this section. Your administrator might have added some commonly-used contacts to your favorites list, but you can also add your own favorites.

To open the Team Communicator, click **Team Communicator**



There are many ways to use Team Communicator:

- The simplest is if you know the number of your contact, then you can type it in the text area and press Enter on your keyboard to immediately start a call.
- You'll probably use Team Communicator primarily to search for contacts. To get started, just type a name in the text area — as you type, Team Communicator suggests known agents, contacts, and other

resources. You can also group your results according to type by clicking **Show Types** 🕮. You can collapse these groups by selecting the arrow next to the group name.

- You can also search through your favorites, configured by your administrator, to find a contact to call.
- Finally, you can search for contacts by Skills, Groups, and so on, which can be helpful when you need to call any agent with a particular skill—for example, you might need to transfer a call to an agent who speaks a particular language.

When find a result that you want to contact, just click **Call** start.

Using click-to-dial

]	·
Notes & Attachments [0] HTML Email Status [0]	🔳 🥑 Helen Jack 👻 🛞
	91555555555 00:08
Phone (555) 555-5555	C.
Email Benefit To Dilaw Ore Chart	Case Information
Reports to IView Ord Chart	Origin
	Outbound call to 7200
Other Address	Participants ^
e Log Save & New Log Add Call Data	▼ (∰ 91555555555
	Disposition ^
Enter your n	No Disposition
	Notes
	e 💻
	Voice Chat
	Se Phone

With click-to-dial, all you have to do is click a phone number within Salesforce and the adapter automatically dials it and starts the call. For example, you might search for a contact in Salesforce and then click the related phone number.

Working with the call



Once you make the call, you'll see two slightly different views as the call transitions from Establishing to Connected. Both views display the call toolbar area and the call details area, which includes sections for Case Information, Participants, Disposition, and Notes.

You can work with the standard call actions, or you can modify the call data by setting the disposition or adding notes about the call.

Dialing another call



If you're already on a call, you can use the adapter to dial a new call.

When you make another call, the adapter automatically puts your first call on hold. You can go back

to your original call by selecting the corresponding tab and clicking **Retrieve** $\$ — this puts your second call on hold. If you have more than two active calls, the rest are displayed in a dropdown list next to the tabs.

Caller Identification for outbound calls (v8)

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

In some contact centers, the agent must choose the caller id that should be used for outbound calls.

If this feature is enabled for your account, when you make an outbound call, the **Please select your Caller Identification** dialog box is displayed. Select the appropriate Caller ID from the predefined list. This number will be displayed to the person receiving your call. The previous Caller ID that you selected is selected by default. Your system might be set up to enable you to hide the caller ID when you make an outbound voice call. If so, the Anonymous ID is included in the Caller Identification drop-down menu.

1 type phone number	Pleas	Helen Jack se select your Identification	. ✓ ⊗ Caller	Select One Sales Service
(Zseect C Cancel	one	Çontinue	
	*	0	#	
	e			

Transfer a call (v8)

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

When you're on an active call in Gplus Adapter for Salesforce, you can transfer your current voice call to another party. The other party might be another agent that you find by searching for them by name, or by the name of an agent group, a queue, a skill, or a routing point. Your administrator will give you a list of queues, groups, and skills to which you can transfer calls. Agent groups might include a different language, specific product knowledge, or a higher level of security clearance.

All you have to do is click **Instant Transfer** and choose a contact or enter a phone number in Team Communicator. A green status indicator next to the agent or agent group indicates that there are agents available and your customer will not have to wait long for the transfer to go through.

If you like, you can provide some details about the call in the **Notes** field before you click **Instant Transfer**. When the contact sees the incoming call, he or she will also see your notes in the call details area.

Important

If your administrator has configured it, the transfer target might also see related information about the active call in Salesforce. For example, if the caller already exists in the Salesforce contact database, the agent might see the Edit Contact screen.



You can also perform consultations where you talk to the transfer target before you transfer the call. See Initiating a Consultation for details.

Conference calls (v8)

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

When you're on an active call in Gplus Adapter for Salesforce, you can perform an instant conference call with another contact.

How do I start a conference call?



To start an instant conference, just click **Instant Conference** and choose a contact or enter a phone number in Team Communicator. A green status indicator next to the agent or agent group indicates that there are agents available and you and the customer will not have to wait long for the conference to go through. If you like, you can provide some details about the call in the **Notes** field before you click **Instant Conference**. When the contact sees the incoming call, he or she will also see your notes in the call details area.

Important

If your administrator has configured it, the conference target might also see related information about the active call in Salesforce. For example, if the caller already exists in the Salesforce contact database, the agent might see the Edit Contact screen.

Once the conference is established, you can see the other parties listed in the Participants section. You can remove a participant by clicking the arrow next to the party you want to remove and selecting **Delete from Conference**.



You can also start a consultation and talk with the conference target before performing an instant conference. See Initiating a Consultation for details.

Consultations (v8)

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

When you're on an active call in Gplus Adapter for Salesforce, you can initiate a consultation with another agent at any time.

Helen Jack... Helen Jack.. Helen Jack... \odot \odot × 15000 15000 72 × ⊻ @ ᡛ ᡛ Щ **⊈** @ K 6 6 6 6 III (0 ★ All Types 191 **Case Information Case Information** Laura Babcock Q Origin 🕒 Unavailable Participants Internal call Molly Johnson Q Disposition Ξ Unavailable Participants ~ Robert Mac... - 🕑 Bob Smith ₽ Notes Jnavailab Sandra Ben... Disposition A Ω ∫h ⊘ Available No Disposition Consultation Start Voice Consultation Connected 7201 Sandra Bennet Notes ~ 또 만 만 배 만 ~ 6 6 6 Voice Voice Cha Voice Chat

How do I start a consultation?

To start a consultation, click **Consult** and choose a contact or enter a phone number in Team Communicator. A green status indicator next to the agent or agent group indicates that there are agents available and you will not have to wait long to start the consultation. The adapter places your original call on hold and adds a consultation area that includes the consultation call state and a list of consultation call actions.

Тір
You can easily switch back and forth between your original call and your consultation
by clicking Retrieve Consultation

If you like, you can also provide some details about the call in the notes field. This can be helpful if you consult before transferring or starting a conference call. When the target agent sees the transfer or conference request, he or she also sees your notes in the call details area.

When you have an active consultation call, you should see a consultation area with a list of actions you can perform. **Note:** You might not see all of these buttons, depending on how your environment is configured. The following table describes the common buttons you might see in the list:

[+] Show table

Action	Button	Description	
Hang up consultation	<u>د</u>	Ends the consultation call.	
Hold consultation	ং	Places the consultation on hold. If you do this, you'll see a slightly different list of actions with a Retrieve Consultation button	
Complete as transfer	2	Redirects the call to the consulting agent. See Consult before Transfer for details.	
Complete as conference	U	Starts a voice conference with the current call and the consulting agent. See Consult before Conference for details.	
Keypad		Shows the keypad. You can use this to enter digits when you're navigating voice menus or prompts. Type or select the digits and then press Enter on your keyboard.	

Action	Button	Description		
		type digits Image: select digits 0R Image: select digits		

How do I transfer the caller to the consulting agent?



You can transfer your original call to the agent you're consulting with by clicking **Complete as**

Transfer C. This immediately transfers the call to the consulting agent and ends it for you. As usual, you can add call information and click **Mark Done** to finish.

How do I turn my consultation in a conference call?



You can initiate a conference call between you, the customer, and the agent you're consulting with by

clicking **Complete as Conference** C. This immediately retrieves your original call from hold and adds the agent. As with regular conferences, you can remove participants and add call information like disposition and notes.

Call back a disconnected participant (v8)

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

When you're on an active call in Gplus Adapter for Salesforce, you can call back a participant that is disconnected from the current call.

How do I call back a participant?



To call back a participant, expand the Participants drop down list, hover over the disconnected

Call to 919677

participant contact number, and just click the **Call to** action. You can see the call being established as an outbound call in the **Case Information** section.

Once the call is established, you can see the dialed party once again listed in the **Participants** section. For the called back participant, you can perform general call actions such as conference and consultation.

Important

You cannot place a call back for internal calls.

Recording a Call (v8)

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

The Call Recording functionality enables you to record the current conversation or consultation call with a customer or an internal caller.

How do I record a call?



To record a call, you click the **Record** button or choose an action from the drop-down list box. Your call center might be configured to record all calls by default. In this case, you can pause, stop, or restart a recording using the Record options. The following table describes the actions that you can

perform:

records the call.After you click the **Record** button, the call status indicator is red . The recording continues until you pause or stop the recording.

stops the recording. After you stop the recording, the call status indicator is green and the

Pause button returns to be the **Record** button. Pauses the recording. When you pause the recording, the **Pause** button becomes the **Resume** button.

How do I record a consultation?



You can also record a consultation. During a voice consultation, look for the controls at the bottom of the adapter.

Working with the Chat channel (v8)

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

As part of the omnichannel customer experience, customers have the opportunity to chat with a live agent while browsing on your website. This proactive touchpoint with the customer enables him or her to reach out to you for assistance, if needed. The invitation that the customer sees might resemble the following pop-up window:



Chat channel overview

Genesys Chat _ X	
Senesys [.]	what your customer sees
Representative hjackson has joined the session hjackson [11:05:29 AM] Hello Elizabeth, how can I help you today?	What you see
I need help finding my account number?	Chat Enclased Characteristic Cha
	Hello Elizabeth, how can I help you today? 11:05 am
	Send

After you log into the adapter and navigate to the chat channel, you'll see the default view where you can accept or reject a chat.

Using the chat channel, you can:

- Chat with a customer
- Manage multiple chat conversations
- Transfer a chat

When you log into the adapter and navigate to the chat channel, you'll see the default view where you can accept chat invitations. At first, your chat list will be empty. After you start accepting invitations, your chat list will include all active chats. To access the chat view for an interaction, select the arrow beside the chat list entry. This displays the chat view in which you can send and receive messages. This view has two main areas: chat transcript and chat details. To access other chat interaction son the list, select the **Back** button to return to the list and select another chat.



Important

Regardless of what page you are on in the Chat channel, the **Back** button will always take you back to your list of interactions.

Chat details

The Chat details view shows you all the data the adapter has about the chat, and it provides fields that you can edit to add more information. After you view the details, you can click the **Chat** tab to return to your conversation or click **Back** to return to the main list of chats.

Case Information



The Case Information section shows you read-only information about the chat — the exact information that is displayed is determined by your administrator.

Here are a few examples of some information you might see in your details view:

- Origin
- Target
- Contact name
- Call type
- Account information
- Subject

Tip

For chat interactions, the **Call Type** field shows all chats as Inbound.

Depending how your administrator configured your agent, you might be able to add, edit, or delete case information. For more information, see How do I edit case information?

Case information fields might contain a URL that you can click to access more information.

Notes



If configured by your administrator, you can add notes either during the chat or as part of your aftercall work. To update, just enter your comments in the text field. Ensure that you don't click **Mark Done** first before you add a note. You can't make any further changes after you click **Mark Done**.

Disposition



If configured by your administrator, you can change the disposition for a call either during the chat or as part of your after-call work. You can use this field to record the business outcome of the chat. To update, just click the dropdown list and select a disposition. Ensure that you don't click **Mark Done** first before you select a disposition. You can't make any further changes after you click **Mark Done**.

Finishing a chat

	🔗 Helen Jack	*	0
	< Back		
	Chat 📃 📃	Deta	ils
	Mark Done)
Case	Information	-	< l
Cust	omer Name		
Кау А	Anderson		
Dispo	osition	-	
No	Disposition	•	
Note	S	1	
	Voice Chat		

When your chat is over, either because the other party left the chat or you clicked **Leave Chat •**, you might need to update some information in the details area (such as Disposition or Notes).

After finishing your after-chat work, you can click **Mark Done**, which completes the chat and sends you back to the main chat channel view. At this time, your status might automatically change to **Ready**, **Not Ready**, or another status, if configured by your administrator; otherwise, you have to change it yourself.

After you mark a chat as done, the chat list is displayed where you can choose another chat to work with.

Chatting with a customer (v8)

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

When you open your chat channel, the main chat view is displayed. Initially, there are no chat invitations displayed. When a new chat interaction arrives, it is displayed in your list. A green symbol is displayed beside each unanswered chat invitation. The symbol goes away after you accept the chat and the status changes to show that your chat is in progress. This view is useful for when you are managing multiple chats.

You can click any white space on the invitation to view more details about the chat before you accept or reject it.

click here to expand the section to see more details



You can choose to **Accept** or **Reject** the chat invitation.



How to conduct a chat



When you accept a chat invitation, the Details view for the chat is opened, you can click the Chat view to chat with your customer. This is where you actively chat with your customer. Chatting is very simple. You just read the messages, and respond by typing text in the text field and then clicking **Send**. You can also click the **Details** tab to view call details.

To conduct a chat, click **Accept** when a new chat invitation arrives. If required, click the **Details** tab to view the call details. Conduct your chat conversation with your customer. When the conversation is complete, click the • symbol at the bottom of the adapter, and then select **Leave Chat**. On the **Detail** tab, enter your notes, select a disposition, and click **Mark Done**.

How to send a link



While chatting with a customer, you might want to send a link to a website. For example, you can send a link to an application form for a client card or a knowledge center on your support site.

To send a link, click **Send Link** in the Actions menu. Copy and paste (or type) the Universal Resource Locator (URL) in the URL field above the entry field that pops up. You can also type a message to accompany the link in the text entry field. Then you click **Send**. The Adapter validates the URL and sends the link to your client.

After you send a URL to a customer, the link stays active in the transcript so that the customer can access the link after the call is complete.

Warning

If your browser is refreshed or closed while you are in the middle of a chat session, the chat session will resume after you log back into the adapter. However, if you are typing a message at the time the browser closes or refreshes, your message will be lost. When you close your browser window, you are automatically logged out the Adapter. All interactions are terminated and do not resume when you log back in again; therefore, ensure that your interactions are complete before logging out and closing your browser window.

Important

If you reject the chat, the chat invitation is no longer displayed on the list and the customer is routed to another agent.

Troubleshooting tip

If the customer leaves the chat before you accept the invitation, a message is displayed in the chat transcript. This message lets you know that the chat is now offline. The only action that you can perform in an offline chat is mark the chat as done.

Managing multiple chat interactions (v8)

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

The Chat channel features make it easy for you to manage multiple chat interactions. If you have two or more active chat interactions on the go, you can see when you have incoming messages from your other parties and navigate among the chat interactions.

How do I handle two chats at the same time?



Consider this scenario. You are chatting with Bob, a customer who needs your help to complete an online form, when you see a notification on your chat channel icon at the bottom of the adapter. This notification means that you have a message from another in-progress chat or a pending invitation.



Navigate to the main chat list. Notice that you now have two entries on the list:

- Your chat that already is in progress
- A pending chat invitation from another customer



You can accept the invitation and start the interaction with Kristi. Conversely, if you need to focus on your in-progress chat with Bob, you can click **Reject**. The second chat invitation is routed to the next available agent and the entry is removed from your list.

In this scenario, though, let's accept the chat invitation.

After you greet Kristi and start chatting with her, a new message indicator is displayed on the tab header and a red circle is displayed next to Bob's entry on the chat list. Bob responded to your last message.

You can click **Back** to return to your chat list, select the arrow next to Bob's chat interaction, and continue chatting with Bob.

In this manner, you can manage several conversations at one time. Remember after each chat is concluded, you must complete the finishing tasks on the **Details** tab and mark the chat as **Done**.

Transferring a Chat (v8)

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

When you're on an active chat in Gplus Adapter for Salesforce, you can transfer a chat to another agent. Let's say, for example, that your customer has asked you a question on a topic that you are not trained in.

How do I transfer a chat to another agent?



To transfer a chat, click the plus symbol ^① at the bottom of the **Chat** tab. Click **Instant Transfer**. Choose an agent in the Team Communicator. Click the list box and select **Instant Transfer**.
Information transfer

Link to video

If your administrator has configured it, the agent to whom you are transferring the chat might also see related information about the active call in Salesforce. For example, if the caller already exists in the Salesforce contact database, the agent might see the **Edit Contact** screen.

Chat consultations (v8)

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

When you need support while chatting with a customer, you can use the Gplus Adapter for Salesforce to consult with another agent or supervisor. For example, if a customer asks you a question that you don't know or can't find the answer to, you can open a chat consultation with an agent or supervisor that has the knowledge or skill that you need to complete your chat interaction successfully. If necessary, you can easily start a conference chat with you, the customer, and the other agent, or you can transfer the customer directly to the other agent.

Start a consultation



To start a consultation, click **Consultation** on the action menu. After you choose an agent from the Team Communicator and click **Start Chat Consultation**, and the other agent accepts, a collapsible view is displayed over top the current chat view. In this consultation view, you can chat with the other agent. Any text that you type in the consultation view is not visible to your customer.

Let's take a look at the actions that you can take to conclude the chat. You can:

- End the consultation, and return to the customer chat.
- 25
- —Complete the chat as a three-way conference. This brings the customer and the agent into the same chat window, allowing for a three-way conversation.
- —Transfer the chat to the other agent. This concludes your chat with the customer, and the other agent continues.

Managing consultations



You will have chat interactions where you might have several chat views on the go at once. Even in a normal one customer and one agent consultation, you need to manage these multiple screens.

During a consultation, When you need to go back to the customer, click the dash symbol at the top of the view. This collapses the consultation view to a colored bubble. You can place this bubble anywhere on your Adapter by clicking and dragging the bubble. When the consulting agent types a message to you, a notification is displayed on the bubble. For example, if the agent send two messages to you, the number 2 is displayed on the bubble. To return to a consultation, click the chat bubble and the collapsible view is displayed again.

When you have multiple active consultations, each bubble is a different color.

Case Information management (v8)

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

In the Gplus Adapter, case information can be modified for voice calls and chat iterations. If you see the pencil icon beside a field or the plus symbol at the top of the **Case Information** section, you have the correct access permissions to update case information. Otherwise, contact your administrator or follow your contact center procedures for updating case information. |}

Link to video

Consider this scenario to understand why you would update case information. A customer calls your call center to update details on their account. While talking with your customer you realize that his last name is spelled incorrectly in the contact name field. You can easily correct the spelling error. Many other scenarios could happen such as a complete name change, an update to the reason for calling, or a change in account number.

If you have permission, you can manage the case information in the following ways:

- Edit fields to update the contents of the field.
- Add additional fields to the case information.
- Delete unnecessary fields.

How do I update a Case Information field?



To edit case information, select the field that you want to edit. A text field, a selection drop-down list, or a calendar displays depending on the type of case data.

Each type of field has validation criteria to ensure that you enter the correct information. This prevents you from typing an invalid character or exceeding the maximum number of characters. For example, if you have to enter a credit card number, the field might only allow certain numbers for a particular type of credit card.

If your edit does not match the data validation criteria for the field type, an error icon displays to tell you that you must correct your entry.

How do I add and delete Case Information fields?



To add a field to the case information, click the plus symbol (+) and select an option from the list that displays. After you add the field, you can edit the case information.

The types of fields you can add depend on what your administrator configured for your contact center. For example, you can an additional field to indicate a preferred language.

To delete a field, click X icon to the right of the field.

Voicemail (v8)

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.



If a red circle with a white number is displayed on the main menu button, you have voicemail waiting for you. Click the button to view a list of your voicemail boxes.

You have a personal voicemail box and possibly a group voicemail box associated with the agent group you belong to. Your mailboxes are only displayed when you have at least one message in the mailbox. When you do have mail, the number of messages in each of your voicemail boxes is displayed beside the name of the voicemail box. Select the voicemail box to open it and listen to your voicemail.

Contact management (v8)

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

When you need help to resolve a customer issue or you need to transfer the call, use the Team Communicator to locate the contact you need to reach. You can also use the Team Communicator to initiate a call. The contacts in the Team Communicator are already set up for you to use; however, you can add contacts and mark contacts as favorites. After you learn how to navigate the Team Communicator, you should be able to locate your contacts quickly and reduce the amount of call time you use to search for contact.

To open the Team Communicator, click Team Communicator



The Team Communicator provides several ways to find a contact.

• Type a name or number in the text field to filter the contact list. The contact list filters the list for you as

you type, even if you only type part of a name. For example, if you want to locate the contact for Sandra, you can type San and the list shows all contacts with San in the name.

- The toolbar enables you to:
 - List all contact types
 —List your personal and corporate favorite
 - List recent contacts
- The drop-down list box enables you to display categories of contacts, such as agent groups, routing points, skills, and other such groupings.

Favorite contacts have a star 📩 next to the contact name. Corporate favorites are contacts that marked as favorite by an administrator for use with all agents in your agent group or contact center.

Adding a new contact



Sometimes, you might need to add contacts to your contact list. For example, you can add an external contact.

Open the **Add Contact** panel from the main menu and fill out all mandatory fields and the email address. After you click **Save**, a confirmation message is displayed.

Tip

Ensure that you give your contact a unique name. If you have two more entries with

the same name, it will be difficult for you to pick which one to call. If you have more than one contact name with the same name, consider appending the last name. For example: John Smith (cell) and John Smith (office).

You can further verify that the contact was saved by opening the Team Communicator and typing your new contact's name in the search bar. The contact should appear in the list of results.

Add a new contact as a favorite



When you type a phone number in the Adapter, the Team Communicator recognizes whether the number is already in your contact list or not. If the typed number isn't already a contact, a new entry is added to the contact list. Click the drop-down menu next to the number and select **Add to Favorites**.

Mark an existing contact as a favorite



If you find yourself calling the same contact frequently, you can add the contact to your favorites list. Select the contact that you want to mark as a favorite, click the drop-down menu next to the number, and select **Add to Favorites**.

Viewing your reports (v8)

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

While you are working in the GPlus Adapter for Salesforce, you can view reports and statistics at any time. This information is important for you to see so that you can gauge the call wait times and monitor your Key Performance Indicators (KPIs).

Important

Reports are only available to you if Dashboards are enabled in your contact center. To enable this feature, you can log a care ticket .

Reports and statistics are available to you through the main menu. You can access the following adapter views:

Reports view



The Reports view for voice interactions displays two pages: **My Call Activity** and **My Handle Time**. To navigate between the pages, use the arrows on the left and right side of the adapter.

- On the My Call Activity page, you can view a diagram that represents the averages of calls per hour and call time. Call Activity metrics include Total calls, Inbound calls, Outbound calls, Internal calls, and Consult calls.
- On the queue statistics page, you can select a queue from the drop-down list and see corresponding statistics such as the number of calls waiting, the maximum wait time, and the average wait time.
- On the **My Handle Time** page, you see metrics (in minutes) for Total time, Talk time, Wrap Up time, Ready time, and Hold time.

My Statistics view



The **My Statistics** page of the adapter displays the list of your statistics, otherwise known as Key Performance Indicators (KPIs).

You can access the My Statistics page from the main menu at the top corner of the adapter. The statistics that you see depend on how your administrator has configured your account. For example, you might see agent statistics, skill statistics, and queue statistics. If your adapter does not include a My Statistics option on the main menu, your administrator might not have added any statistics to your agent account. In this case, contact your administrator.

You can expand sections by clicking the arrows next to the section title.

You can also type a value into the search field to filter the list of statistics that are displayed.

Note: Statistics about the Routing Points, Queues, and so on, are displayed in the Contact Center Statistics tab.

Contact Center Statistics view

≡	🕑 Helen Jack	~ ©			
x Close					
Conta	ct Center	Q			
2223_SIP_Switch		^			
Average Waiting Time		0			
Waiting Calls		0			
Max Waiting Time		0			
Serv	100				
Abar	0				
Ansv	3				
Tean	nComm_VoiceTransf	erPoint			
gpluscrm Inbound		~			
	ج 👂				
	Voice Chat				

The Contact Center page on the adapter displays a summary of your Routing Point metrics, which might include:

- Average Waiting Time
- Waiting Calls
- Max Wait Time
- Service Level
- Abandoned
- Answered

Your adapter might display more, or fewer, metrics depending on how your administrator has configured the Contact Center Statistics view.

You can also type a value into the search field to filter the list of statistics that are displayed.

Submitting feedback (v8)

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

Sometimes web-based applications don't work as expected. There might be network connection issues, or the system that sends you phone calls and chats might be slow or behaving in odd ways. Sometimes the sound quality of a phone call is bad. Sometimes an error message is displayed on your desktop. These and other issues are problems that should be reported to supervisors.

How to provide feedback when something goes wrong



Open the Help menu and select Feedback to open the Feedback window. Choose the type of

feedback that you want to give, either a suggestion or to report an issue, describe the problem or suggestion by typing in the text box, then click **Send** to submit your feedback. This information, along with logs about what you were doing in your most recent Agent Desktop session, are sent to Genesys and are available to Customer Care for later reference.

If for some reason the adapter becomes disconnected from your network and you have to close your browser and launch a new one to log in again, the adapter automatically opens the **Feedback** window to let you write a report about the disconnection problem immediately.

Once a feedback report is logged to you as a supervisor, contact Genesys Customer Care as soon as possible to provide the reporting user's name and DN at the time of the incident, as well as the approximate time the incident occurred. The Customer Care agent should be able to retrieve the relevant log to determine what the issue might have been.

Gplus Adapter for Saleforce - Agent Desktop option (v8)

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

The Agent Desktop deployed in a sales or service console is an interaction management desktop that provides you with a robust subset of features that are available in the full Agent Desktop. This product adds more functionality to your softphone and seamlessly integrates the adapter activity in your sales or service console.

How do I access the Agent Desktop console?

Link to video

If the Agent Desktop is configured in your sales or service console, you will see a **Workspace** icon at the bottom right corner of your screen. Depending on how your console is configured, the **Workspace** icon might appear elsewhere on the screen.

If your sale or service console is configured for single sign-on, you don't need to log in into your Gplus Adapter. When you launch the adapter, you should have immediate access. If your console isn't configured for single sign-on, you are prompted to log in.

After you open the Agent Desktop, you can click anywhere in the title bar along the top of the Agent Desktop window to drag it to a new position within your browser window. You can also undock Agent Desktop by clicking the arrow at the top right of the window. This opens Agent Desktop in a new browser window that you can resize and drag to a new location. If you want to redock the window, just click the arrow again and the window returns to the standard location.

Supported features

The Agent Desktop console includes some features that integrate with your sales or service console. This means that actions that you take in the console or the Agent Desktop can be seamlessly passed to each other. Integration points include:

Using click-to-dial



With click-to-dial, when you click a phone number in your console, the Agent Desktop automatically dials it and starts the call. For example, you might search for a contact and then click the related phone number.

Screen pops

	(2) after you accept,			
	screenpops on your Console			
(1) invitation in Agent Deskop	Acme * New Contact	+ ate and cannot be viewed by other users or included in reports.		
Case Information ^	Contact Edit Contact Information	Save Save & New Cancel		
Origin: Inbound call to Subject: Phone Call to Support Target: ?:(NewCustomer'>=1) Accept Reject	Contact Owner First Name Last Name Account Name Title	Margot St. James		
	Address Information Mailing Street Mailing City Mailing State/Province Mailing Zip/Postal Code Mailing Country			

Screen pops are contact records that are displayed when an agent receives or makes a call, chat or email in Agent Desktop. Your console can display one or more related records, depending on what information it has about the customer. For example, if a customer enters their case number before they talk to the agent, your console displays the case automatically when the agent receives or makes the call in Agent Desktop. If there is no contact information available, the **New Contact** page is displayed.

Activity history



When you mark a voice, chat, inbound email, or outbound campaign interactions as done (**Mark Done**), the details about the interaction are added to the contacts's activity history in Salesforce.

The types of information that are saved in the activity history include:

- call duration
- call type
- case data
- call UUID
- disposition
- notes
- time stamp
- chat transcript
- email subject
- email body

Tip

- For chat interactions, the **Call type** field shows all chats as **Inbound**.
- For emails, the Call type field shows Inbound for received emails and Outbound for sent emails and replies.

Voice calls or chats that could not be established are not saved in the history. When a voice call or chat involves multiple parties, such as consultations and conferences, the activity is saved as only one interaction.

Important

If you use the Mozillla Firefox web browser, issues might occur when you pop the Agent Desktop out to a new browser window or when you move the Agent Desktop within the Salesforce sales or service console.

Related documentation

• For agents—To learn how to use the Agent Desktop, see Agent Desktop help.

Lightning Experience (v8)

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

The Lightning Experience functionality in Gplus Adapter for Saleforce - Agent Desktop option is the same as it is in Salesforce with the following exception(s):

Activity history

5						
	ACTIVITY					
/	Email					
(Write an email		Compose			
	Filter Timeline 🔻		Expand All			
	Next Steps		More Steps			
(No next steps. To get things moving, add a task or set up a m					
	Past Activity	6				

Accessing the activity record can be done slightly differently in Lightning Experience. There is a **Refresh Activity History** icon that can be used instead of navigating off the page, or refreshing:

- 1. Click **Contacts** from the menu bar.
- 2. Select the contact name.
- 3. Click the **Refresh Activity History** icon, in the **Activity** tab to review all **Past Activity**.
- 4. Clicking on an activity will open the **Task** window for that item.

Reporting

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

What kind of reports are available in Genesys Engage cloud?

To help you and the other Team Leads who supervise your agents make informed, timely business decisions, Genesys Engage cloud offers both real-time **dashboard** views and historical operational performance **reports**. These tools are described in the *Reporting in the cloud Guide*.

Genesys Engage cloud reporting tools provide easy-to-read visual summaries of the activity in your contact center, including information about agent performance, queues, and detailed information about interactions.

- Current events To see information about customer interactions that are currently taking place, you can use *Genesys Pulse*: Real-time reporting with Genesys Pulse
- Both Current and Historical *GVP* provides both historical and up to the minute reporting on the state of your contact center: GVP reporting
- Historical information To see detailed information about what happened with customer interactions over a specified period of time, your environment includes either *Genesys Customer Experience Insights* (Genesys CX Insights) or *Genesys Interactive Insights* (GI2). If you are not sure which is available for your use, contact your administrator, or click **Reporting** in the Genesys Engage cloud Portal.
 - Historical reporting with Genesys CX Insights
 - Historical reporting with Genesys Interactive Insights
 - Genesys Info Mart historical database

Both real-time and historical reports are available using Web-based technology, so you can access contact center performance data anywhere, anytime.

Real-time reporting with Pulse

Genesys Pulse provides at-a-glance views of real-time contact center statistics on dashboards within the user interface.

GVP reporting

Genesys Voice Platform has many moving parts—individual components that perform different tasks during a call. GVP reports give you a diagnostic look at your contact center's performance, by monitoring how the components perform—by themselves and with each other. The goal is to improve your contact center's efficiency.

This page discusses how you can perform the following tasks with Genesys Voice Platform reports:

- Browse the Call Detail Records (CDRs) of in-progress and completed calls, filtering for the different components that process them. You can observe how each component is performing.
- Gather statistics on events such as call arrivals, call durations, and peak call volume— then sort or filter by IVR Profile, or by GVP component.
- Observe the success and failure rates for calls, and the IVR Actions that handle them.

Historical Reporting

Your environment includes either Genesys CX Insights or Genesys Interactive Insights, but not both.

Historical reporting with Genesys CX Insights

Use historical reports to visualize the performance of your contact center over time (as contrasted against real-time reports, which show what is going on right now. Read more: a discussion of the difference.)

The *Reporting in the cloud* guide provides detailed information about Genesys CX Insights:

- To learn how to use Genesys CX Insights, including how to access, run, read, or customize historical reports, start on the following page: Historical reporting with Genesys CX Insights.
- To view sample reports, or to read descriptions of report metrics, attributes or prompts, start on the following page: Historical reports included with Genesys CX Insights.

Historical reporting with Genesys Interactive Insights

Use historical reports to visualize the performance of your contact center over time (as contrasted against real-time reports, which show what is going on right now. Read more: a discussion of the

difference.).

If you are not sure which historical reporting tool you have, contact your Genesys representative, or launch historical reporting from the Genesys Portal by clicking **Reporting**.

The *Reporting in the cloud* guide provides detailed information about Genesys Interactive Insights:

- To learn how to use Genesys Interactive Insights, including how to access, run, read, or customize historical reports, start on the following page: Historical reporting with Genesys Interactive Insights.
- To view sample reports, or to read descriptions of report metrics, attributes or prompts, start on the following page: Historical reports included with Genesys Interactive Insights.

Genesys Info Mart historical database

Genesys Info Mart is the enterprise-level Genesys application behind the historical reports in your cloud deployment. Genesys Info Mart receives interaction data from various upstream enterprise-level Genesys applications, then processes the low-level data to produce a data mart that Genesys Engage cloud uses for contact center historical reporting. Genesys Interactive Insights relies on Genesys Info Mart.

This page introduces the Genesys Info Mart Historical Database Reference.

How do I learn more about data behind reports?

The detailed data behind historical reports is fairly complex. If Data Export capability is available in your cloud deployment, use the Genesys Info Mart Historical Database Reference to learn about the dimensional model of the Genesys historical database (called the Info Mart database), from which fact and dimension data is exported.

What is Data Export?

Data Export capability periodically copies the data that is stored in the Info Mart database into local .csv files, one file per table, so that the historical reporting data is available for further import into a data warehouse. Data Export capability is available in certain Genesys Engage cloud deployments; contact your Genesys representative for more information or see About Data Export Capability.

Historical reporting for Genesys Designer applications

Some Genesys Designer Analytics tool data is stored in the Genesys Info Mart database for historical reporting purposes. In Genesys Designer Analytics tool, this data is displayed on the Session Detail Records dashboard.

This data is stored as Session Detail Records (SDR) in Genesys Info Mart. If the Data Export feature is available in your cloud deployment, the data from the **SDR_*** tables is included in the export.

Workforce Management

Important

This content may not be the latest Genesys Engage cloud content. To find the latest content, go to Genesys Engage cloud for Supervisors.

Genesys Workforce Management (WFM) provides a sophisticated set of management tools so you can better manage your contact center workforce while still delivering top service to your customers. It allows you to easily manage your agents, schedules, and forecasts, and provides real-time monitoring of contact center performance and agent-adherence.

Your agents will have the ability to request time off or specific working hours, bid on proposed schedules, and even trade their schedules with other agents. All while maintaining optimal staffing levels.

WFM makes it easy for you to manage agents of all skill levels, in contact centers that are using single media formats (like voice calls) or a variety of media formats (such as voice calls and emails).

Current documentation set for Workforce Management

Workforce Management Help—Overview and instruction on how to use Workforce Management 8.5.1.

Important

If you are using Workforce Management 8.5.2, refer to the Workforce Management Web for Supervisors (Classic) Help.

Workforce Management Product Alerts

- **Google Chrome version 45 ends support for Java Plug-ins**—WFM Web will no longer work with Chrome v45 and later, due to Chrome's end of support for Java Plug-ins. If you are running WFM Web on Chrome v45 or later, Genesys recommends you use either Internet Explorer or Firefox.
- Limitation for WFM Web for in Google Chrome Stable Channel update version 42—By default, this browser version blocks the Java plug-in with no pop-up or other indication.

Workforce Management supports Chrome, which means:

 In WFM Web —Attempts to invoke Java applet subsystems prompts a message (after a long delay) that Java is not detected.

Resolution:

Starting with Chrome version 42, an additional configuration step is required to continue using NPAPI plug-ins.

To enable NPAPI in Chrome Version 42 and later:

- 1. In your URL bar, enter: chrome://flags/#enable-npapi.
- 2. Click the **Enable** link for the **Enable NPAPI** configuration option.
- 3. Click the **Relaunch** button that appears at the bottom of the **Configuration** page.

Official source from Oracle: www.java.com